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PREMIER
Western Australia proudly has the longest coastline of any 
state in the country.

At almost 13,000 kilometres, our stunning coastline is 
longer than the distance from Perth to Hawaii. Being girt by 
sea has many benefits. Surrounded by natural beauty, many 
of us enjoy an enviable coastal lifestyle. Our nation also 
produces some of the best swimmers on the planet.

However, this fortunate proximity to the coast also comes 
with great responsibility. Beachgoers have a responsibility 
to inform themselves of the risks associated with enjoying 
the coast. As we have seen, even with the best preparation, 
sometimes water-related accidents happen. That’s where 
Surf Life Saving Western Australia comes in.

The organisation’s 31 clubs and almost 25,000 members 
perform a critical role across our vast coastline. Surf 
Life Saving WA clubs are so much more than a safety 
net for those that come unstuck. It is a societal force in 
Western Australia that promotes a culture of water safety, 
community cohesion, as well as some friendly competition.

A MESSAGE FROM THE

It has been an exciting year for Surf Life Saving WA. In 
May, the newly renovated Albany Surf Life Saving Club 
at Middleton Beach was officially opened. Meanwhile, 
the Western Australian Government continued to work 
with Surf Life Saving WA on our Shark Hazard Mitigation 
Strategy - so Western Australians can continue to enjoy the 
State’s world class beaches with confidence.

The year ahead will prove a busy one. More people than 
ever are moving to Western Australia for work and lifestyle 
opportunities. That means more people at our beaches, and 
more prospective club members.

I wish everyone the very best for 2025-26.

ROGER COOK MLA
PREMIER OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
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PRESIDENT & CEO
A MESSAGE FROM THE

On behalf of the Board of Surf Life Saving WA, it gives us 
great pleasure to present our 2024/25 Annual Report. As we 
reflect on the past year and note the many achievements 
across all facets of our movement, there is much to be 
proud of.

This year, with the Board and management, we reviewed 
and updated our strategic plan for 2025 – 2030. Our mission 
of saving lives and building great communities, underpinned 
by our strategic goals of zero preventable drowning deaths 
on the WA coast, and supporting an inclusive and vibrant 
surf life saving community, remains our focus and drives all 
that we do.

This season on our beaches, our lifesaving services 
performed nearly 900 rescues, including more than 200 on 
just one weekend in January, a truly incredible result. Each 
of these rescues represents a near miss and a potential life 
saved, clearly demonstrating that our services are more 
critical than ever. 

Sadly, we still see too many lives lost on our coast. With the 
help of our members and stakeholders, we will continue to 
deliver initiatives that aim to reduce this toll and achieve our 
strategic goal of zero preventable drowning deaths. 

Ensuring we remain connected with our regional members 
continues to be a focus area for the Board. This season, 
we visited many of our regional clubs including Esperance 
Goldfields, Denmark, Broome, Dampier, Geraldton, 
Champion Bay, and Bunbury, and it was inspiring to see the 
fantastic work our clubs are doing out there. 

We also congratulate Esperance Goldfields, Albany, and 
Broome on their recent club redevelopments and openings. 
Appropriate and fit-for-purpose facilities are a critical 
component of the lifesaving services we provide.

Instrumental in everything achieved this season are our 
corporate partners and stakeholders. We are proud of 
the longstanding partnerships we have built and grateful 
for the unwavering support they afford us. None of the 
achievements outlined in this report would be possible 
without them.

This season, we are very proud to have extended our 
relationship with Woodside Energy, which renewed its 
support for a further five years and expanded it to include 
our Woodside Jet Ski Program, while Healthway signed 
on to support our summer surf sports season for a further 
three years, promoting the Fuel to Go & Play message.

We also continue to work closely with the WA Government 
through several departments, and this support is essential 
in helping us deliver many key initiatives that underpin our 
mission.

And finally, to our more than 24,300 members across 
Western Australia, you are the heart of our movement, and 
we thank you for the unwavering passion you demonstrate in 
all that you do. 

HEIDI GAN OLY  
PRESIDENT

JAMES O’TOOLE  
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

James O’Toole - CEOHeidi Gan OLY - President
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LIFE MEMBERS
L W LeQuesne* 1927
J L Paton OBE* 1930
I T Birtwistle OBE* 1938
R E Gatherer* 1939
Sir L P Gadsdon* 1941
C Bader* 1946
D G White OAM* 1946
E Jaggard OAM* 1948
M H Becher OAM* 1949
A C Peacock* 1950
A E Prior* 1951
R A Elliot* 1951
F T Haywood MBE* 1952
A J Marks* 1956
R T Meadmore* 1956
T H Johnstone* 1956
D Molyneux* 1961
J G Hatchett* 1963
H K Riley MBE, JP* 1963
F J Thorne* 1964
C V Addison* 1965
R J Peacock* 1966
G M Brown OAM* 1969
E V Hofmaster* 1969

D P Morrison OAM* 1969
R J Trigg OBE* 1972
J Trethowan* 1974
W D Summers* 1974
I F Anderton* 1975
D T Blackley* 1975
C E Jarrott* 1975
W R Somerford* 1975
R G Bennett JP* 1979
N G Lamb* 1979
I D Scott OAM 1983
W E Gaynor OAM 1985
G G Russell* 1985
G P Castieau* 1987
D J Smith 1987
D R Rose 1987
J C Wall* 1988
P J Bermingham OAM* 1989
D E Clark ESM* 1989
R J Howard ESM OAM* 1990
E K G Jaggard OAM 1991
R G Roberts OAM* 1991
J F Somers* 1992
D H R Becker 1993

F J Parlevliet 1993
M E Cook 1994
A K Porteus 1994
R A Blake OAM 1995
C D Cook* 1995
W A Robertson* 1996
J A Griffiths* 1997
I D McRae 1997
R P Redfern* 1997
A S Marshall* 1998
W H Amesz 2000
R Welch OAM 2000
D D Shearer* 2001
J King OAM 2002
J E Burling OAM 2003
W H Read* 2003
W W Fry OAM 2003
E B Jones* 2004
J H Kitts 2004
B C Olson 2004
K Smith 2004
I D Vilkson 2004
T Snelling 2005
F Senior 2007

G Clark 2007
A Widermanski 2008
D Somers 2008
L Tilbury 2008
J Knight-Smith 2008
A M Smith OAM 2009
G M King 2010
C J Gibbs 2010
N R Gibbs 2010
J F McCourt 2011
K C Jenner 2011
R Buist 2013
G W Mumford 2013
J Wright 2013
P Shipway 2013
L Buchan 2014
M Irwin 2015
M Thornton 2016 
B Carthew OAM JP* 2017
C Waugh 2017 
C Brien ESM 2022
M Hills 2022
C Smith-Gander AM 2024

*Deceased
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OUR CLUBS
Cottesloe SLSC 	 1909
City of Bunbury SLSC  	 1915
North Cottesloe SLSC 	 1918
City of Perth SLSC  	 1925
Scarboro SLSC 	 1928
Geraldton SLSC 	 1930
Swanbourne Nedlands SLSC  	 1932
Fremantle SLSC  	 1934
Floreat SLSC 	 1948
Trigg Island SLSC 	 1954
Albany SLSC 	 1956
Denmark SLSC 	 1958
Sorrento SLSC 	 1958
Mullaloo SLSC  	 1961
Secret Harbour SLSC 	 1981
Quinns Mindarie SLSC 	 1982

CLUBS YEAR EST.

Broome SLSC 	 1988
Esperance Goldfields SLSC  	 1990
Yanchep SLSC  	 1991
Mandurah SLSC 	 1996
Champion Bay SLSC  	 2001
Binningup SLSC  	 2002
Coogee Beach SLSC 	 2003
Dongara Denison SLSC  	 2003
Margaret River SLSC 	 2003
Dalyellup Beach SLSC 	 2004
Port Bouvard SLSC 	 2004
Busselton SLSC 	 2008
Smiths Beach SLSC 	 2011
Dampier SLSC  	 2015
Alkimos SLSC 	 2017

CLUBS YEAR EST.



SPORTING HALL OF FAME 

LEGENDS OF THE SURF
The Legend of the Surf status is the single highest honour bestowed upon individual competitors and teams affiliated 
with SLSWA. This award signifies the exceptional and outstanding achievements of an individual or team within their 
chosen surf sport discipline.

Donald Morrison OAM  
Cottesloe SLSC - Inducted in 2012

Kenneth Vidler OLY  
Scarboro SLSC - Inducted in 2012

North Cottesloe J Crew  
North Cottesloe SLSC - Inducted in 2015

^Elevated to Legend of the Surf status

George Burton 1996
Ray Elliott 1996
Ron Fussell 1996
Neville Gliddon 1996
W F “Gus” Graham 1996
Bruce Hutchinson 1996
Arthur “Danny” Kay 1996
Bruce McKenzie 1996
Don Pass 1996
Warren Somerford 1996
Alan White 1996
Peter Hawkins 1999
John Stringfellow 1999
John Wright 1999
Jack Alliss 2000
Ken Gathercole 2000
Garry Hotchkin 2000
Richard Meadmore 2000
Michael Cook 2000

Bernie Kelly 2000
Donald Morrison OAM^ 2000
Kenneth Vidler^ 2000
Jack Hampshire 2001
Terrance Landwehr 2001
Deane Pieters 2001
Jack Trail  2001
Colin Vidler 2001
Leigh Buchan 2002
Stan Jacks 2002
Graham ‘Tuppy’ Lahiff 2002
Robert Watkins 2002
Michael Wright 2002
Ken Foster 2003
Richard Hartley 2003
Robert Milne 2003
John Leivers 2003
John Ryan 2003
Dean Beament 2004

Jeff Davidson 2004
Sam Law 2004
Denis Smith 2004
Mark Nolan 2005
Gregory Mickle 2005
Eric Hoffmaster 2007
Robert Somerford 2007
Frederick Annesley 2009
Rod Baker 2009
Simon Martin 2009
Peter Smith 2009
Brad Trotter 2009
Lindsay Bistrup 2010
Bill Mattingley 2010
North Cottesloe Beach Relay     	
  Team (1948-57) 2010
Michael MacDermott 2011
James O’Toole 2011
Carolyn Whiting 2012

Renée McCabe 2012
Willow Williamson 2012
North Cottesloe J Crew  ̂2012
Natasha Leaversuch 2013
Alicia Marriott  2013
Alison O’Toole 2013
Andrew Mosel  2014
Ian Scott OAM 2014
Fremantle Men’s Beach  
  Relay Team (1981-92) 2017
Floreat Men's IRB Assembly            	
  Race Team (1996-2000) 2018
Robert Pickard 2018 
Mark Finucane 2019
Natalie Morris 2019
Brendon Sarson 2021 
Simon Huitenga 2022 
Reece Baker 2024 
Thomas Nolan 2024 
Jackson Symonds 2024
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LIFESAVING 
SERVICES

Services provided by our trained and committed surf lifesavers are critically 
important as we strive to achieve our mission of saving lives and building great 
communities to preserve the Western Australian coastal lifestyle. Our surf lifesavers 
commit thousands of hours in training, development, and service delivery with a 
singular focus on helping people safely enjoy our beautiful coastline and beaches.

These Lifesaving services are a crucial factor in enabling the Western Australian 
community to use beaches more safely. 

1 MAY 2024 - 30 APRIL 2025
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Volunteer Beach Patrols

Recreating along our coastline plays an important role in 
the West Australian lifestyle. Through the delivery of beach 
patrols, emergency response, and water safety services, 
surf lifesavers are critical to helping the community enjoy 
aquatic recreational activity more safely. The number of 
rescues performed each season is a key reason beach 
users return home alive. Our surf lifesavers are brave and 
selfless members of their local community. We commend 
their continued dedication to the organisation. 

The statistics recorded this year highlight the outstanding 
outcomes in what has been one of the busiest seasons in 
recent times. Surf lifesavers with proficient skills increased 
by 9% which assisted in achieving a 10% increase in 
patrol hours committed. Despite a near 20% increase in 
preventative actions, the number of rescues performed  
was almost 40% higher than the previous year.

Despite the numerous positive outcomes, with almost 
13,000 km of coastline, there is still more to be done to 
ensure the safety of West Australian beach users.

120,814
PATROL
HOURS

6,556
PATROLLING

SURF LIFESAVERS

633
RESCUES

30,352
PREVENTATIVE

ACTIONS

2,310
FIRST AIDS

115
LIFEGUARDS

81,162
PREVENTATIVE  

ACTIONS

240
RESCUES

638
FIRST AIDS

29,585
PATROL 
HOURS

Lifeguard Services

Surf Life Saving WA is the largest provider of contracted 
lifeguard services in Western Australia, at a state and local 
government level, complementing the voluntary weekend 
patrols delivered by our clubs. 

The following beaches were serviced by SLSWA lifeguards 
during the 2024/25 season:

•	Middleton Beach (City of Albany)
•	Ocean Beach (Shire of Denmark)
•	Margaret River Mouth Beach  

(Shire of Augusta/Margaret River)

•	Yallingup Beach, Smiths Beach (City of Busselton)
•	Secret Harbour Beach (City of Rockingham)
•	City Beach, Floreat Beach, Roving (Town of Cambridge)
•	Cottesloe Beach (Town of Cottesloe)
•	Hillarys Boat Harbour, Mullaloo and Sorrento Beaches 

(City of Joondalup)
•	Quinns Beach, Yanchep Lagoon, Roving  

(City of Wanneroo)
•	Penguin Island based at Mersey Point,  Meelup Beach, 

Bunker Bay, The Basin – Rottnest, (WA Government)
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SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB BEACH PATROL STATISTICS

CLUB RESCUES FIRST 
AIDS

Albany

Alkimos

Binningup

Broome

Busselton

Champion Bay

City of Bunbury

City of Perth

Coogee Beach

Cottesloe

Dalyellup Beach

Dampier

Denmark

Dongara Denison

Esperance Goldfields

Floreat

Fremantle

Geraldton

Mandurah

Margaret River

Mullaloo

North Cottesloe

Port Bouvard

Quinns Mindarie

Scarboro

Secret Harbour

Smiths Beach

Sorrento

Swanbourne Nedlands

Trigg Island

Yanchep

TOTAL

 13 

 7 

 -   

 3 

 -   

 2 

 2 

 22 

 -   

 8 

 1 

 -   

 1 

 1 

 14 

 4 

 41 

 54 

 14 

 -   

 2 

 18 

 10 

 22 

 191 

 43 

 1 

 1 

 1 

 152 

 5 

 633

 14 

 32 

 8 

 69 

 108 

 30 

 23 

 189 

 157 

 140 

 3 

 8 

 5 

 9 

 9 

 38 

 134 

 80 

 24 

 2 

 81 

 217 

 17 

 97 

 206 

 61 

 3 

 151 

 59 

 264 

 72  

 2,310

PREVENTATIVE 
ACTIONS

PATROLLING 
MEMBERS

CLUB PATROL 
HOURS

LIFESAVER 
PATROL HOURS

 400 

 187 

 14 

 362 

 419 

 295 

 255 

 2,310 

 364 

 1,965 

 82 

 -   

 724 

 121 

 1,162 

 1,025 

 2,775 

 334 

 172 

 -   

 536 

 996 

 457 

 882 

 6,405 

 3,951 

 45 

 1,015 

 1,033 

 1,872 

 194 

 30,352

  134 

 70 

 56 

 103 

 82 

 32 

 157 

 428 

 354 

 297 

 29 

 19 

 158 

 39 

 79 

 188 

 406 

 89 

 87 

 41 

 643 

 748 

 64 

 195 

 393 

 260 

 37 

 567 

 315 

 350 

 136 

 6,556

 196 

 317 

 99 

 236 

 251 

 132 

 414 

 512 

 496 

 524 

 76 

 16 

 214 

 122 

 141 

 415 

 1,014 

 215 

 139 

 55 

 602 

 841 

 293 

 640 

 705 

 372 

 67 

 748 

 390 

 581 

 123  

10,941

 1,374 

 3,138 

 635 

 2,002 

 2,078 

 953 

 1,753 

 3,635 

 6,137 

 5,305 

 747 

 225 

 1,707 

 984 

 1,467 

 4,133 

 4,729 

 1,689 

 1,620 

 640 

 7,989 

 3,929 

 1,612 

 6,028 

 6,476 

 4,675 

 484 

 5,759 

 2,732 

 4,940 

 1,482  

 120,814 
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LIFEGUARD PATROLLED BEACH STATISTICS

LIFEGUARD  
LOCATIONS RESCUES FIRST 

AIDS
PREVENTATIVE 
ACTIONS

BEACH PATROL 
HOURS

LIFEGUARD 
PATROL HOURS

City of Wanneroo

Wanneroo Roving

Yanchep Lagoon

Quinns Beach

City of Joondalup

Mullaloo Beach

Hillarys Boat Harbour

Sorrento Beach

Town of Cambridge

Cambridge Roving

Floreat Beach

City Beach

Town of Cottesloe

Cottesloe Beach

Rottnest Island Authority

The Basin

City of Rockingham

Penguin Island Sandbar

Secret Harbour Beach

City of Busselton

Meelup Beach

Bunker Bay

Yallingup Beach

Smiths Beach

Shire of Augusta - Margaret River

Margaret River Mouth Beach

City of Albany

Middleton Beach

Shire of Denmark 

Ocean Beach 

TOTAL

-

7

1

28

-

3

25

3

21

14

15

21

12

3

-

12

16

26

1

32

240

-

108

9

41

55

27

59

8

21

86

106

3

20

38

8

10

8

18

6

7 

638

 3,032

3,463

1,017

3,136

1,877

2,339

15,709

645

5,418

13,504

3,387

2,374

2,635

8,109

2,416

2,653

2,300

4,019

556

2573 

81,162

847

1,334

501

713

650

713

3,772

492

1,304

2,230

648

364

500

648

648

432

432

1088

224

592 

18,132

847

2,668

1,002

1,426

1,300

1,426

3,772

492

2,354

4,084

1,296

728

1,000

1,296

1,296

864

864

2,176

448

246 

29,585
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Westpac Life Saver Rescue Helicopter Service
SUPPORT OPERATIONS

Supported by the Government of Western Australia and 
proudly partnered by Westpac, the Westpac Life Saver 
Rescue Helicopter Service (WLRHS) continues to deliver 
critical safety outcomes for West Australians recreating 
along the state’s coast. This service remains at the apex of 
the WA Government Shark Hazard Mitigation Strategy.

Operating from Rous Head, Fremantle and Busselton 
Margaret River Airport, the service provides 
comprehensive aerial patrol and emergency response 
capabilities from Yanchep to Port Bouvard and from 
Bunbury to Hamelin Bay. These two aircraft cover some 

SHARK SIGHTINGS
•	 323 Metro
•	 447 South West

     770 TOTAL

CLOSURES
•	 80 Metro
•	 21 South West

   101 TOTAL

PATROL HOURS
•	 510 Metro
•	 486 South West

     996 TOTAL

KM’s  PATROLLED
•	 56,671 Metro
•	 54,015 South West

  110,686 TOTAL

SEARCH & RESCUE TASKS
•	 50 Metro
•	 14 South West

    64 TOTAL

PREVENTIONS^
•	 4,271 Metro
•	    992 South West

     5,263 TOTAL

ADVISED^
•	 16,607 Metro
•	    6,196 South West

     22,803 TOTAL

NUMBER OF PATROLS
•	 440 Metro
•	 279 South West

     719 TOTAL

^Preventions - the number of people exiting the 
water due to the issuing of a Direct Warning.

^Advised - the number of people in surrounding 
areas and on-beach.

of the most heavily visited coastal stretches in the state, 
supporting the more than 30 on-ground lifesaving and 
lifeguard operations within this area.

A standout operational outcome this season was the 137% 
year-on-year increase in search and rescue taskings, 
rising from 27 missions in 2023/24 to 64 this season. This 
marked increase highlights both the growing demand for 
aerial emergency response and the critical role that the 
helicopters play in supporting emergency services and 
protecting lives along the WA coast.
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Drone Patrol

547
PATROL FLIGHTS

1,012
HOURS OF PATROL 

 AVAILABILITY

SurfCom
Key to SLSWA operational communications is the state-
wide communication and operations control team, known 
as SurfCom. SurfCom supports volunteer lifesaving 
and SLSWA centre operations, plus multiple external 
agencies, including but not limited to WA Police, St John 
Ambulance WA, Department of Biodiversity, Conservation 
and Attractions, Department of Primary & Regional 
Development Shark Response units, and nine metropolitan 
and regional local government areas. 

SurfCom is responsible for coordinating requests for 
emergency tasking (13SURF), undertakes operational asset 
tracking and distress monitoring, incident logging and 
recording, monitoring Emergency Rescue Communications 
(ERCN), and recording of operational data that assists with 
operational situational awareness and analysis.

Surf Alert Modules (SAMs)
SurfCom continues to provide support to the seven (7) 
SAMs located along our coast at Claytons Beach, Leighton 
Beach, Falcon Bay, Pyramids Beach, Picnic Cove, Twilight 
Beach and Whylie Bay. 

Remotely operated by SurfCom, these units enhance beach 
user safety through key features including LED safety 
messaging screens, audible alerts, shark alarms, and direct 
intercom access to SurfCom for real-time communication 
and incident coordination.

13SURF and St John Ambulance First Responder 
Program
As a conduit to seek first response and request operational 
support of relevant lifesaving services in a coastal 
emergency, 13SURF provides external emergency response 
agencies (specifically St John Ambulance WA and WA 
Police) with direct access to SLSWA SurfCom operations. 

During the 2024/25 season, the 13SURF hotline received 
149 calls for operational support. Surf lifesavers were able 
to respond to 80 requests, committing 50 hours.

Capital Equipment Support Program
Through the Department of Fire and Emergency Services, 
the WA Government supports the delivery capabilities of 
our lifesaving services via the SLSWA Lifesaving Capital 
Equipment Support program, which provided the following 
valuable resources to clubs this season:

•	 Six (6) x Jet Skis
•	 Eight (8) x Side by Side Vehicles (SSVs); and
•	 Five (5) x Inflatable Rescue Boats (IRBs)

Surf Life Saving Clubs
•	 Alkimos 
•	 Binningup 
•	 Busselton 
•	 City of Bunbury 
•	 City of Perth 
•	 Coogee Beach 
•	 Cottesloe 
•	 Esperance Goldfields 
•	 	Floreat 
•	 Fremantle 

•	 Mullaloo 
•	 North Cottesloe 
•	 Port Bouvard 
•	 Quinns Mindarie 
•	 Scarboro 
•	 Secret Harbour 
•	 Sorrento 
•	 Swanbourne Nedlands 
•	 Trigg Island 

The continued integration of localised drone operations into 
lifesaving services provides operational benefits through 
improving the availability of real-time situational awareness 
and response capabilities to on-beach patrols.

Through the support of a Lotterywest grant, the program 
has benefited from improved access to equipment 
and increased operational activity. This has led to an 
improvement in the availability of member training and the 
development of club-based trainers. 

These initiatives have seen a positive increase in the 
use of drones to support delivery of lifesaving services, 
demonstrated by a 33% increase in the hours that a beach 
patrol had access to a drone operator and equipment, a 
135% increase in the number of drone patrol flights, and a 
27% increase in the number of clubs integrating drones into 
their operations this season. These results demonstrate 
that integration of this lifesaving strategy is moving toward 
becoming a normalised part of lifesaving operations.  

125
OPERATORS

28
TRAINERS

19
LOCATIONS
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Woodside Jet Ski Program

Along with the support of the WA Government, this season, 
SLSWA partner Woodside Energy extended its partnership 
to become a key supporter of our Jet Ski operations. The 
Jet Ski is an integral component of club lifesaving services. 
It is central to providing efficient and effective emergency 
response and search and rescue operations, with our 
respected and highly skilled operators often called upon by 
external agencies such as the WA Water Police to support 
emergency response operations.  

Supported and facilitated by SLSWA, 26 clubs integrate this 
equipment into their planned service arrangements and 
out-of-hours emergency response. 

This season, club volunteers dedicated over 2,480 hours 
to operating jet skis during lifesaving service activities, 
including crucial support for the four abalone fishing 
sessions.

48
JET SKIS

28
LOCATIONS

277
OPERATORS

5
SEARCH & RESCUE 

MISSIONS

Surf Life Saving Clubs
•	 Albany
•	 Broome
•	 Busselton
•	 Champion Bay
•	 City of Bunbury
•	 City of Perth
•	 Coogee Beach
•	 	Denmark
•	 Dongara Denison
•	 Esperance Goldfields
•	 	Floreat
•	 Fremantle
•	 Geraldton

•	 Mandurah
•	 Mullaloo
•	 Margaret River
•	 North Cottesloe
•	 Port Bouvard
•	 Quinns Mindarie
•	 Secret Harbour
•	 Scarboro
•	 Smiths Beach
•	 Sorrento
•	 Swanbourne Nedlands
•	 Trigg Island
•	 Yanchep
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Abalone Patrol

Abalone fishing is a popular yet dangerous Western 
Australian recreational fishing activity, with thousands of 
individuals being issued with a fishing licence each season. 
This activity remains one of the most tightly regulated 
fishing activities in the world, with WA’s West Coast Zone 
only open for four sessions of one hour each (7-8 am), 
between December and February each year. 

With many fishers unfamiliar with the areas in which 
they harvest the abalone and little to no swimming ability 
placing them at high risk, the prevention, rescue and 
emergency response actions delivered by SLSWA and 

3,224
PREVENTATIVE  

ACTIONS

118
RESCUES

66
FIRST AIDS

our lifesavers at these sessions are the single most crucial 
factor in their safety. 

To deliver these services, 16 clubs were involved through 
planned and coordinated actions underpinned by 
Local Operating Plans and Hazardous Surf Forecast 
Assessments and each fishing session was supported on 
average by:  

•	 210 surf lifesavers
•	 800 person-hours 
•	 3 drones
•	 30 powercraft (Jet Skis and IRB)
•	 Westpac Life Saver Rescue Helicopter Service

To support the participation by surf lifesavers, the 
Department of Primary Industries and Regional 
Development, via the Recreational Fishing Fund, maintains 
a service agreement with SLSWA. This support is received 
with thanks. This season marked the final year of a three-
year agreement.

17 SLSWA 2024/25 ANNUAL REPORT



SURF 
SPORTS

Surf sports play a key role in the Surf Life Saving movement developing the 
necessary skills to carry out surf lifesaving’s core purpose – saving lives. 

Annually, thousands of members utilise and challenge their lifesaving skills in a 
competitive sporting environment by participating in various  
surf sports events throughout the year.

PATRICK ELE Y -  2025 BERNIE KELLY MEDALLIST & ATHLETE OF THE YEAR
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Key Events & Activities
The 2024/25 surf sports season delivered a strong and 
engaging program, with 48 events held across the state, 
providing athletes with a valuable platform to refine their 
skills and compete at a high level throughout the year. 

Many clubs took on the responsibility of hosting events, 
with the support of SLSWA where needed. This approach 
not only enabled increased club involvement but also 
provided opportunities for clubs to build capacity in event 
management and generate additional revenue. 

This season, as we renewed our longstanding partnership 
with Healthway for a further three years, and it also marked 
the transition to a new naming rights health message, 
from SunSmart to Fuel to Go & Play. We look forward to 
continuing to work with the team at Healthway to share this 
healthy eating message with the membership across the 
coming seasons.

Fuel to Go & Play Regional Nipper Championships
The Fuel to Go & Play Regional Nipper Championships 
continued to provide an important opportunity for young 
nippers to get involved in surf sports within their local 
communities. Held throughout January and February, 
the events were hosted across four regional locations: 
Champion Bay (Mid West), Mandurah (Peel), City of 
Bunbury (South West), and Denmark (Great Southern). 
Each host club played a key role in delivering a successful 
event, welcoming and supporting more than 500 
enthusiastic participants from the U8 to U13 age groups.

These regional championships also provide an additional 
qualification pathway to our Fuel to Go & Play WA Nipper 
Championships. 

The sporting event portfolio included a full calendar of events across the year, including the below Championship Events:

N
EVENT HANDICAP WINNERCHAMPION CLUB

WA Board Riding Championships

WA Pool Rescue Championships

WA IRB Racing Championships

Fuel to Go & Play WA Endurance Championships  

Fuel to Go & Play Little Nipper Championships

Fuel to Go & Play WA Country Championships 

Fuel to Go & Play WA Masters Championships

Fuel to Go & Play WA Nipper Championships

Fuel to Go & Play WA Surf Life Saving Championships - Youth/Open  
		        		                             Champion Youth Club

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Mandurah SLSC

N/A

Mullaloo SLSC

Sorrento SLSC
N/A

Trigg Island SLSC

Sorrento SLSC

Mullaloo SLSC

Sorrento SLSC

N/A

City of Bunbury SLSC

Mullaloo SLSC

Sorrento SLSC

Sorrento SLSC
Sorrento SLSC

CHAMPIONSHIP EVENTS

7% 
INCREASE IN CHAMPIONSHIP  
ENTRIES FROM LAST SEASON

48 EVENTS
RUN OR SUPPORTED  
BY SLSWA

Fuel to Go & Play WA Surf League
The  Fuel to Go & Play WA Surf League continues to attract 
high levels of participation with a total of 852 entries across 
the three-event series. Delivered at multiple locations to 
provide varied conditions,  this season’s program featured 
slightly shorter distances and, kicking off the summer sport 
season, offered abundant racing opportunities for athletes, 
serving as a selection opportunity for the Western Suns 
representative teams.
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Officials and Coaches
SLSWA has continued to expand and enhance its coaching 
and officiating programs through a range of initiatives 
aimed at supporting both metropolitan and regional clubs. 
These initiatives included inviting High-Performance 
coaches from Surf Life Saving Australia to share their 
expertise, giving local participants exposure to diverse 
coaching styles that they can apply, from Woodside 
Nippers to advanced athlete development. 

With funding received from the Department of Sport 
& Recreation, we were able to help fund nine surf boat 
sweeps to attend the ASRL Sweeps Academy in NSW to 
refine their skills. 

With this same funding, we were also able to help the R&R 
group deliver a successful two-day workshop for over 95 
participants, while Fremantle SLSC hosted a Core Officials 
course that trained 55 new officials. These programs have 
significantly boosted capability and collaboration across clubs.

Further support has been directed to clubs across the state, 
from the Great Southern to the Mid West, to address gaps 
in coaching and officiating development, with a total of 87 
individuals (46 males and 41 females) completing training 
workshops during the season. Of these, 31 were from 
regions where access to training is often limited, helping 
bridge the opportunity gap. 

The participant data reflects a wide age range and gender 
diversity, demonstrating the reach and inclusivity of the 
initiative. These efforts ensure clubs across WA are better 
equipped to deliver safe, engaging, and high-quality surf 
sports programs at all levels.

WA Championships Events
WA Board Riding Championships

Held in June at Scarborough Beach, the 2024 
Championships saw some of the best conditions in recent 
years, with large, clean waves that made for thrilling 
competition, highlighting the skill of competitors. Trigg 
Island claimed the overall first position, with Sorrento in 
second, and North Cottesloe third.

WA Pool Rescue Championships

The 2024 WA Pool Rescue Championships were once 
again held at Perth’s HPC and featured some impressive 
racing by athletes, including two of Australia’s best in Trigg 
Island’s Jake Smith & Harrison Hynes. Over the day and 
a half of competition, we saw many athletes from Nippers 
through to masters take home their first medals.

Overall, Sorrento took home their fourth consecutive 
Champion Club title, but not without fierce competition 
from Cottesloe in second, and Scarboro in third. 

These Championships held additional significance as they 
served as the selection event for the Western Suns Pool 
Rescue team. 

WA IRB Racing Championships

The WA IRB Racing Championships at Trigg Beach saw 
thrilling competition, with exciting conditions throughout 
the day testing the team’s skills. Mullaloo came out on top, 
securing their eighth consecutive Champion Club pennant, 
followed by Fremantle and Coogee Beach, rounding out the 
top three. 

Fuel to Go & Play WA Endurance Championships

Taking place in mid-October, with both ocean and beach 
events held at Leighton Beach, this event is the first major 
hit out for the championship season. With a healthy 462 
competitors across all disciplines aged U12 – 70+, the 
slightly rough conditions meant for some fun racing on the 
day, with Sorrento awarded Champion Club.

Fuel to Go & Play WA Country Championships

The WA Country Championships, held in Bunbury over the 
January long weekend, brought together 230 competitors 
from 15 regional clubs. While Friday’s swell was looking 
daunting, the waves calmed by Saturday, offering a fun and 
exciting environment for competitors.

City of Bunbury dominated the event, winning the overall 
point score with 879 points, followed by Mandurah on 277 
and Secret Harbour with 271 points. This event highlighted 
the talent and sportsmanship of regional clubs, making for 
a thrilling weekend of surf life saving competition.
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Fuel to Go & Play WA Masters Championships

The Masters Championships, held at Sorrento Beach over two 
days, saw 334 competitors showcasing their skills across multiple 
events. The two-day format provided a great atmosphere 
for both competitors and spectators alike, especially for the 
country clubs who travelled in for the weekend.

Mullaloo emerged victorious, taking first place with 573 points, 
followed by Trigg Island in second and Sorrento in third.

Fuel to Go & Play WA Little Nippers 
Championships 

Held at Fremantle Beach in February, the Little Nipper 
Championships saw an exciting display of young talent, 
with 462 participants aged U8 and U9, representing 20 
different clubs. The competition featured a variety of events, 
including beach sprints, beach flags, board races, and swim. 

Perfect conditions on the day made for an enjoyable 
and competitive atmosphere, highlighting the spirit of 
sportsmanship and camaraderie amongst the participants.

Fuel to Go & Play WA Nipper Championships

The Nipper Championships over the March long weekend 
at Trigg Beach were held under perfect, sunny conditions, 
creating a fantastic atmosphere for both competitors 
and spectators. With an impressive 866 competitors, the 
championships were a celebration of talent, teamwork, and 
great sportsmanship.

Sorrento claimed the Nipper Champion Club title for the 
fifth consecutive year, while North Cottesloe finished 
in second, ahead of Mullaloo in third. Mullaloo was also 
recognised as the Nipper Handicap winner for the most 
improved club, adding to the excitement of the weekend.

Fuel to Go & Play WA Surf Life Saving 
Championships – Youth/Open

The 2025 Youth and Open Championships saw over 
1,200 athletes compete across two weekends of thrilling 
competition. Trigg held the beach events, followed by City 
Beach with the ocean events. City of Perth SLSC proudly 
hosted as part of their 100-year celebrations, the milestone 
setting added a special sense of occasion to what is already 
the pinnacle event on the surf sport calendar.

With intense competition across all disciplines and age 
groups, the championships highlighted the impressive 
depth of talent across the state, while livestreaming both 
days of competition showcased the athletes’ performances 
to a broader audience. 

Sorrento emerged as the overall winner, claiming the 
club’s first-ever Championship banner, in addition to the 
Handicap title and the Champion Youth Club, closing out an 
impressive and dominant season of sport.
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Western Suns State Teams
SLSWA supported 95 athletes across the representative teams for Pool Rescue, 
Surf Boats, Ocean/Beach, Pathway Cup, as well as two Super Surf League Teams, 
the Broome Pearlers and Scarborough Sunsets.

WESTERN SUNS OCEAN & BEACH INTERSTATE TEAM

WESTERN SUNS PATHWAY CUP TEAM

Youth (U17) Male Athletes
NAME	   	 CLUB
Eoghan Barrowclough	Sorrento
Tom Linehan	 Sorrento
Markus Booth             Sorrento 
Eddie Davis                  North Cottesloe 
Jay Goodwin                 Sorrento 

Male Athletes
AGE   NAME	        CLUB
U15   Oliver Browne             Trigg Island 
U15   Billy Hawkes             Trigg Island 
U15   Harry Linehan           Sorrento 
U15   Trent Yates                Trigg Island 
U14   Monty Stork	         Cottesloe 
U14   Liam Barrowclough  Sorrento 
U14   Kostya Rogoysky       Sorrento 
U14   Henry Hinson             Quinns Mindarie 

Female Athletes 
AGE  NAME	      CLUB
U15   Neive Tierney         North Cottesloe 
U15   Skye McCaffrey      North Cottesloe 
U15   Martha Chin            Sorrento 
U15   Scarlett Callaghan Sorrento 
U14   Ellie Neervoort	      Trigg Island 
U14   Ella Brigden	      Trigg Island 
U14   Olivia Allum	      Sorrento 
U14   Mia Bright	      Sorrento 

Open Male Athletes
NAME		  CLUB
Jules Fredonnet         City of Perth (C) 
Charlie Hewitt             City of Perth 
Kent Jenkinson           City of Perth 
Lachlan Bean              Mullaloo 
Bradley Varkevisser   Sorrento 

Open Female Athletes 
NAME		  CLUB
Jazmin Shipway-Carr	Trigg Island (C)
Annika Negus              Trigg Island 
Femke Negus              Trigg Island 
Sienna Howard            Cottesloe 
Holly Fraser                 City of Perth 

Youth (U17) Female Athletes 
NAME	  	 CLUB
Milly Kok                          Trigg Island 
Eleanor Flowers	 Trigg Island 
Macy Boisvert	 Trigg Island 
Anna Lockley                  City of Bunbury 
Emma Atwell                  Cottesloe 

Delivering some of the biggest surf seen at this competition in many years, our 
Western Suns Youth/Open team took on the SLSA Interstate Championships at 
Wanda, NSW, in December 2024, delivering some fantastic performances in the 
water and on the sand. 

Despite the running track being thoroughly washed away due to the large surf, 
our beach athletes performed well with both Holly Fraser & Emma Atwell taking 
second placings in the Beach Flags, and our Open Mixed Beach Relay team also 
finishing with a silver medal.

Overall, the team performed well, and as our youngest team ever selected, the 
experience gained will stand them in good stead for years to come.

WESTERN SUNS POOL RESCUE TEAM

Male Athletes
AGE    NAME 	     CLUB
U14      Lars Belmont	     Sorrento 
U17      Mitchell Tuckey	     City of Bunbury 
U17      Marcus Booth	     Sorrento 
Open    Kelton Rothnie	     Trigg Island 
Open    Matthew Colliss	    Trigg Island 
Open    Harrison Hynes	     Trigg Island 
Open    Jake Smith	     Trigg Island 
 

Female Athletes 
AGE    NAME	            CLUB
U14     Aoife Dunne	           Mullaloo 
U14     Iona Alsop                  Secret Harbour 
U15     Hitomi Cording          Cottesloe 
U15     Charlie Czaplinska    Cottesloe 
U17     Eleanor Flowers        Trigg Island 
U17     Kate Rigoll	           Cottesloe 
Open   Jaimee Traeger (U17)  Cottesloe 
Open   Sofie Frichot	           Sorrento 
 

The SLSA Interstate and National Pool Rescue Championships took place 2 - 4 
August 2024, at the Southport Aquatic Centre on the Gold Coast (QLD). The 
team of fifteen West Australian athletes delivered outstanding performances 
with a combined total of 23 individual medals, closing out the weekend with an 
overall fourth-place finish.

Team Managers: Graham Snook & Maddison Walker

Team Managers: Graham Snook & Stevee Belcher           Assistant Managers: Amanda Hunt & Aaron Bell
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SUPER SURF TEAMS LEAGUE

WESTERN SUNS SURF BOAT ROWERS TEAM

U19 Male - Fremantle Sons
Jack Groom, Charlie Groom, Thomas Cameron, Anthony Plange-Kornforfer, 	Darren Miller (Sweep)

U23 Male - North Cottesloe Saints
Kaden Davis, Liam Davis, Tex Gorski, Blake Wyatt, David Hunt (Sweep)

Reserves Male - Fremantle Burritos 
Zac Martin, Rory Eakin, Brad Cox, Javier Mogollon, Michael Cameron (Sweep)

Open Male -  North Cottesloe Uppies
Josh Senzio, Rohan Biglin, William Moore, Willis Armstrong, David Hunt (sweep)

U19 Female - North Cottesloe Calypso
Lily Hannaford, Matilda Finlayson, Lily Donaldson, Jaz Shervington, Andrew Pope (Sweep)

U23 Female - North Cottesloe Glossies
Ellen Sinclair, Harriet Mann, Georgina Roberts, Eloise Rosser, David Hunt (Sweep)

Reserves Female - Fremantle Fire
Freya Walsh, Lisa Somers, Ange Crowley, Fiona Carroll, Michael Cameron (Sweep)

Open Female - North Cottesloe Shifters
Gloria Nock, Courtney Alyett, Jessica Walsh, Emma Wilson, Jeff Hegarty (Sweep)

SCARBOROUGH SUNSETS 
Male Athletes
Jules Fredonnet             City of Perth 
Charlie Hewitt                City of Perth 
Kent Jenkinson              City of Perth 
Bradley Varkevisser      Sorrento 
Lachlan Bean                 Mullaloo  (Reserve)

BROOME PEARLERS 
Male Athletes
Eoghan Barrowclough	   Sorrento
Tom Linehan	    Sorrento 
Eddie Davis                     North Cottesloe 
Jay Goodwin                   Sorrento 
Markus Booth                Sorrento  (Reserve) 

This season, the two-day Super Surf Teams League national series held in 
Wanda, NSW, over the same weekend as the Interstate Championships, provided 
categories for both an Open and an U17 team to compete. These two teams 
performed exceptionally well, with the U17 Broome Pearlers picking up a bronze 
medal after finishing third in their division.

WA had a remarkable showing at the ASRL Interstate Championships event 
in Coffs Harbour, NSW, putting up an incredible fight against the competition. 
Despite narrowly missing out on second place to QLD by just one point, WA’s 
performance was nothing short of outstanding. 

The highlight of the event was the thrilling victory in the All-Age Mixed Relay, 
where the Western Suns’ display of exceptional teamwork and skill secured a 
well-deserved win. The victory in this event left the team on a high, proud of their 
achievements and solidifying WA’s reputation as a force to be reckoned with.

Female Athletes
Milly Kok                       Trigg Island 
Eleanor Flowers           Trigg Island 
Anna Lockley                City of Bunbury 
Emma Atwell                Cottesloe 
Macy Boisvert	  Trigg Island  (Reserve)

Female Athletes
Jazmin Shipway-Carr	 Trigg Island 
Annika Negus	 Trigg Island 
Sienna Howard	 Cottesloe 
Holly Fraser                City of Perth 
Femke Negus	 Trigg Island  (Reserve)

Team Managers: Blake Sawyer & Sandy Clarke
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Australian Life Saving Team
Trigg Island’s Jake Smith and Harrison Hynes were again 
chosen to represent the Australian Life Saving Team for the 
2024 Lifesaving World Championships, held on the Gold 
Coast. Jake, named as a team captain, helped steer them to 
a victory, as did Harrison’s performance in the men’s 100m 
Manikin Tow with Fins, breaking his own World Record set 
in 2023, with an impressive time of 47.68 seconds.

The Aussies
The 2025 Australian Surf Life Saving Championships were 
held on Queensland’s North Kirra Beach. Kicking off with 
the Youth Championships, highlights included Trigg Island’s 
Oliver Browne winning his third consecutive Australian 
Surf Race gold, and their U15 Male Cameron Relay team 
claiming the title, and Sorrento’s U14 Beach Sprinters Mia 
Bright & Kai Barrett won gold in their respective events. 

The WA masters athletes had their share of success, with 
many competitors winning gold, notably Ceris Humble of 
Trigg Island, who came home with three. 

In the Open competition, Anna Lockley from City of 
Bunbury (competing for City of Perth) won the U17 Female 
Single Ski, and the Cottesloe Open Female 2x1km Beach 
Relay Run took gold as well. 

In the Adaptive Championships, Ryan Grant of Coogee 
Beach walked away with a total of six medals, four of which 
were gold, while Max Letizia (Sorrento) medalled in four 
events also.

Overall, these championships were very successful for WA, 
and we look forward to heading back to North Kirra next 
season.

. 

2025 AUSSIES YOUTH MEDAL TALLY:

GOLD SILVER BRONZE

8 2 4
TOTAL - 14

GOLD SILVER BRONZE

- 8 16
TOTAL - 24

2025 AUSSIES OPENS MEDAL TALLY:

GOLD SILVER BRONZE

11 18 11
TOTAL - 40

2025 AUSSIES MASTERS MEDAL TALLY:

GOLD SILVER BRONZE

4 2 3
TOTAL - 9

2025 AUSSIES ADAPTIVE MEDAL TALLY:

AUSSIES ENTRY NUMBERS FOR WA
Open               232
Youth	                        137
Masters            59
Ocean Swim    47
Adaptive             2

477
TOTAL ENTRIES

Special Thanks
The SLSWA Surf Sports team would like to express 
our heartfelt thanks to everyone who has supported us 
throughout the season, both on and off the club grounds. 
This includes officials, announcers, setup and teardown 
crews, water safety staff, coaches, trainers, administrators, 
team managers, interest groups, and panel members. 

We also extend a special thanks to the host clubs for their 
dedication and hard work. The smooth execution of our 
events is only possible because of the combined efforts of 
all these individuals and teams.

Additionally, we are grateful for the ongoing support of 
our valued naming rights partner, Healthway, in promoting 
the Fuel to Go & Play message and their commitment to 
promoting healthy eating. Their dedication to encouraging 
nutritious choices has been a key factor in the success of 
our events.
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NIPPERS  
& YOUTH

Woodside Nippers
The past season saw a total of 8,421 Nippers enrolled in the 
Woodside Nippers program across our 31 clubs, marking 
growth from the previous season. Several regional clubs 
also experienced substantial increases, with Busselton, 
Dalyellup Beach, and Esperance Goldfields each recording 
growth of 20% or more.

We were also delighted to renew our highly successful 
partnership with Woodside for a further five years, through 
until 2028/29. This partnership continues to provide 
invaluable support to our Nippers and clubs across WA, 
helping teach vital beach safety skills to young West 
Australians.

26 Section 01: YEAR IN REVIEW



Youth Program
SLSWA’s Youth Programs, for members aged U14-U17, 
continue to engage young members across all pillars of 
surf life saving, and provide clubs with a framework to run 
engaging and purposeful sessions on Sunday mornings. 
This season, 1,918 youth members were involved across the 
Programs.  

The Youth Leaders Program (YLP) is an opt-in initiative 
that enables participants to progress through three 
achievement levels: Bronze, Silver, and Gold. This season, 
25 members achieved the Bronze level, 13 the Silver level, 
and 23 reached the Gold level. These achievements were 
celebrated at the 2025 Nipper & Youth Awards. 

Many of these exceptional young members continue to 
develop their leadership skills by taking on roles within their 
clubs, contributing to the future of surf life saving in WA.

YOUTH LEADERS PROGRAM  
GOLD RECIPIENTS

Recipients

•	 Elysia Boschin - Alkimos 
•	 Olivia Chapman - Alkimos 
•	 Michellie Neaves - City of Bunbury 
•	 Aidee Baker - Esperance Goldfields 
•	 Oisin Murphy - Esperance Goldfields 
•	 Brady Fulcher - Quinns Mindarie 
•	 Hannah Quirk - Quinns Mindarie 
•	 Molly Colgan - Quinns Mindarie 
•	 Jack Brohman - Scarboro 
•	 Jessica Goddard - Secret Harbour 
•	 Rhett Gibbons - Secret Harbour 
•	 Arielle Butler - Trigg Island 
•	 Georgia Gleim - Trigg Island 
•	 Giaan Versace - Trigg Island 
•	 Holly Shiels - Trigg Island 
•	 Isaac May - Trigg Island 
•	 Josie Burton - Trigg Island 
•	 Marley Johansson - Trigg Island 
•	 Milla Tan - Trigg Island 
•	 Morgan Buck - Trigg Island 
•	 Olivia Shiels - Trigg Island 
•	 Sian Back - Trigg Island 
•	 Kayla Campbell - Yanchep 

A range of Youth Pathway Courses were also delivered, 
introducing youth members to the roles available to them 
as they progress through their journey in surf life saving. 
Delivered both in person and online, allowing for a strong 
representation of members from both metropolitan and 
regional clubs, the following attendance was demonstrated: 

•	 Youth Age Manager/Coach – 50 participants
•	 Youth Trainer – 25 participants
•	 Youth Official – 37 participants

Youth Development Camps

The annual Rise-Up and TOAD camps were successfully 
held throughout December and January at the South West 
Development Centre (SWDC), which once again proved to 
be an ideal venue for delivering these activities.

The Rise-Up camp welcomed 59 U17 members, who kicked 
off their experience with a series of games and ice-breaker 
activities to build connections. Over the following days, 
participants took part in adventurous challenges, such as 
abseiling and coasteering, which encouraged them to push 
their limits and develop resilience. They also completed 
a bridging course to upgrade their Bronze Medallion 
to First Aid Certificate, a prerequisite for the Advanced 
Resuscitation Techniques Certificate.

The TOAD camp hosted 60 youth members from the U14 
and U15 age groups. During their stay, participants earned 
their Radio Operators Certificate and engaged in a variety 
of team-building activities. Highlights included coasteering, 
surfing, and the ever-popular nightly game of spotlight, creating 
a memorable and enjoyable experience for all involved.

We are once again incredibly grateful to the Scottish 
Masonic Charitable Foundation of WA for their generous 
and ongoing sponsorship, which continues to make these 
opportunities for our Youth members possible.

Youth Committee

This season, the Board established the new Youth 
Committee, comprising U17 members, to provide feedback 
on programs and initiatives for their peers. With the SLSWA 
Development Committee setting objectives for the Youth 
Committee, the resultant cross-collaboration enabled a 
valuable youth perspective to be brought to the table. 

The committee met five times during the season, also 
having the opportunity to sit with the SLSWA Board and 
share ideas, including initiatives to help clubs increase 
youth participation and retain youth members.
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TRAINING 
& EDUCATION

Member Awards

This season, SLSWA volunteer Trainers, Assessors, and 
Facilitators (TAFs) delivered over 3,000 awards to club 
members, providing them with the skills, knowledge and 
awareness to deliver essential lifesaving and emergency 
response services for their club and community.

This season also saw the rollout of the Silver Medallion 
Aquatic Rescue (SMAR) course to clubs after trials were 
conducted throughout the previous season. This training 
provides enhanced rescue skills, including rock entries, 
search patterns, and underwater patient recovery. Over 100 
members gained their SMAR qualification during the season.

Following a national update in IRB operations, there 
was a focus this season on upgrading powercraft TAFs, 
IRB drivers, and IRB crew to be trained in the new skill 
requirements. The new skills include refined rescue 
techniques and IRB patient approach procedures. SLSWA 
representatives have been active in providing feedback to 

MEMBERS
the Surf Life Saving Australia (SLSA) Powercraft Advisory 
Group, contributing to the ongoing development of IRB and 
RWC operations.

Thanks to a grant from Lotterywest, SLSWA continues 
to expand drone operations through developing TAFs to 
train members within their own clubs, as well as offering 
centralised course opportunities. Through these training 
pathways, the SLSWA Drone Program has now extended to 
19 clubs with 28 TAFs and 125 operators.

SLSWA has continued to offer free HLTAID011 Provide 
First Aid and HLTAID015 Provide Advanced Resuscitation 
and Oxygen Therapy Units of Competency to members 
with assistance from the Federal Government’s Vocational 
Education and Training (VET) Funding grant. This nationally 
accredited training was delivered to 528 members this 
season. Providing these nationally accredited emergency 
response awards offers the opportunity for volunteer 
club members to develop their lifesaving skills while also 
increasing the patrolling capacity of surf clubs.
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      MEMBER AWARDS 2024/25
AWARDS ISSUED TOTAL

Advanced Resuscitation Certificate

Assessor Award

Assessor - Bronze Medallion

Assessor - IRB

Bronze Medallion

Drone Patrol Operator

Facilitator - Advanced Resuscitation Techniques

Facilitator - Drone Patrol Operator

Facilitator - First Aid

Facilitator - Pain Management

Facilitator - Silver Medallion Aquatic Rescue

Facilitator - Silver Medallion Patrol Captain

First Aid Certificate

Gold Medallion 

IRB Crew Certificate

Nipper Rescue Certificate

Pain Management Certificate

Radio Operator

Resuscitation Certificate

RWC Operator

Silver Medallion - Aquatic Rescue

Silver Medallion - IRB Driver

Silver Medallion - Patrol Captain

SSV Operator

Surf Rescue Certificate

Training Officer Award

Training Officer - Bronze Medallion

Training Officer - IRB

Training Officer - RWC

Training Officer - SRC

202

36

12

3

694

32

9

1

1

2

5

6

542

2

230

564

47

88

14

35

105

79

68

19

484

54

28

14

2

2

3,380
MEMBER AWARDS

Rookie Lifeguard Program
This season marked the fifth year of delivering the Rookie 
Lifeguard Program, held at the South West Development 
Centre with 30 members from metropolitan and regional clubs. 

The program provided hands-on training across key 
operational areas, including the Woodside Jet Ski Team, 
Westpac Life Saver Rescue Helicopter, advanced rescue 
skills, and leadership development.

For the first time, the program provided participants the 
opportunity to gain the Silver Medallion in Aquatic Rescue, 
a significant advancement that bolstered their readiness for 
frontline lifeguard service.

Upon completion of the Rookie Lifeguard program, ten 
Rookies were selected for the Immersion Program, gaining 
on-the-job experience alongside professional SLSWA 
Lifeguards at iconic locations such as Rottnest Island and 
Smiths Beach.

ROOKIE LIFEGUARDS  
IMMERSION PROGRAM

•	 Caitlin Harwood – North Cottesloe  
•	 Carris Terry – Secret Harbour  
•	 Elise Fry – City of Bunbury  
•	 Harry Pazin – Swanbourne Nedlands  
•	 Isaac Ahola – Margaret River  
•	 Luke Franks – Binningup  
•	 Ned Eldon – Cottesloe  
•	 Riley Job – Fremantle  
•	 Sophie Gallagher – Swanbourne Nedlands  
•	 Thomas Van Bruchem - City of Perth  
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Youth Lifeguard Program
The 2024/25 season saw the further expansion of the 
SLSWA Lifeguard Academy with the introduction of the 
Youth Lifeguard Program. This two-day program for U14/15 
youth members offers a fun and interactive introduction to 
SLSWA’s Lifesaving Services, featuring a range of activities 
designed to help attendees develop essential skills and 
knowledge for a career in the industry.

Activities include advanced surf and ocean skills training, 
introduction to powercraft, including Jet Skis and IRBs, 
insight into professional Lifeguarding, as well as first aid 
and emergency response training. 

Nipper Lifeguard Program
In its second year, over 30 participants took part in the 
one-day Nipper Lifeguard Program. For U13 Nippers, the 
day offers a range of engaging activities that introduce the 
lifesaving skills and knowledge applicable to working as 
a Lifeguard while developing relationships with members 
from other clubs and having fun.

Activities delivered in the program included practical surf 
skills and basic first aid sessions, as well as information 
related to Lifeguard and powercraft operations, and the 
Westpac Life Saver Rescue Helicopter service. These 
sessions were delivered by a range of presenters, including 
Lifeguards, helicopter crew, and SLSWA Instructors, and 
provided an insight into surf life saving opportunities 
beyond the Woodside Nippers program.
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First Aid Training

SLSWA continues to provide First Aid and emergency 
response training to members, as well as community and 
corporate customers. As a Registered Training Organisation 
(RTO 51104), we deliver nationally Vocational Education and 
Training (VET) accredited First Aid Units of Competency, 
including HLTAID011 Provide First Aid, to the Western 
Australian community. We also deliver non-accredited 
training, including the Community Surf Rescue Certificate, 
which is a recognised award for teachers and instructors 
delivering training, coaching, or education sessions in an 
open water environment.

This season, SLSWA also completed RTO re-registration, 
which is a requirement for all RTOs every seven years. This 
is an intensive process that involves a compliance audit of 
all aspects of course delivery and administration. Following 
the successful outcome of the audit, SLSWA is now 
registered through to 2031.

BeachSAFE Presentations 
Surf Life Saving WA’s “Introduction to BeachSAFE” 
presentations teach surf awareness and ocean safety 
to groups from schools, universities, and community 
organisations that may have limited access to the ocean. 
These sessions provide safety information regarding beach 
and ocean conditions, marine life, and environmental factors.

BeachSAFE presentations can be classroom-based or 
delivered on the beach, to be combined with practical 
sessions to offer basic surf skills and awareness to course 
participants.

SurfBabies & SurfKids
The SurfBabies and SurfKids programs provide a fun 
opportunity for children and their parents to participate 
in beach activities, develop basic surf sense, and build 
confidence to recreate in the ocean safely. 

Open to children aged 2-7, these programs are held on 
Saturday mornings over two six-week series commencing 
in October and February. This season saw the program 
delivered to 1,020 participants in eight beach locations of 
Alkimos, Busselton, Coogee, Cottesloe, Leighton, Mullaloo, 
Sorrento, and Quinns.

COMMUNITYYoung Leaders Camp
In August 2024, the inaugural Young Leaders Camp was 
hosted at the South West Development Centre in Margaret 
River. Hosting 19 up-and-coming leaders between the ages 
of 18 and 25, the camp provided valuable opportunities for 
learning and networking. 

Workshops covering topics such as leadership styles, 
emotional intelligence, and conflict negotiation, while a panel 
discussion with SLSWA President Heidi Gan, Board Member 
Jack Dowie, and former SLSWA Development Committee 
Chair Angela Razvi, provided attendees with the opportunity 
to ask questions about leadership and the panellists’ 
experiences in surf life saving. 

The coasteering activity, undertaken in challenging conditions, 
tested lifesaving skills and also put into practice new leadership 
skills acquired over the weekend. The camp was ultimately a 
great success and will continue into future seasons. 

SLSA Masterclass
The annual SLSA Masterclass was held at the University 
of South Australia from 24 – 28 July, 2024. For members 
aged 30 and above who hold senior leadership roles in surf 
life saving, the program aims to provide participants with 
strategic thinking concepts and tools, as well as equip them 
to better lead within their club or workplace. 

SLSWA continues to support its members’ attendance at the 
Masterclass by fully subsidising two representatives from WA. 
Last season, those representatives were Kate Hutchison 
(Swanbourne Nedlands) and Shaun Caruana (Busselton).

SLSA National Leadership College
During the last week of January 2025, 24 young surf lifesavers 
from across Australia and New Zealand came together in 
Sydney for the annual SLSA National Leadership College, 
a week-long program designed to develop leadership skills 
and foster connections among our young, emerging leaders 
within surf life saving. 

SLSWA continues to support its members’ attendance at the 
Leadership College by fully subsidising the successful West 
Australian applicants. This year, WA was represented by 
Dominic Bertschinger (Swanbourne Nedlands), Julian Ming 
(North Cottesloe), and Nikita Fredonnet (City of Perth).

14,657
FIRST AID & COMMUNITY 
TRAINING  PARTICIPANTS
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BeachSAFE Communities

In November 2024, Stockland announced its acquisition of 
several Lendlease communities across Australia, including 
Alkimos Beach and Alkimos Vista, with a commitment to 
continue its support for the delivery of our highly successful 
BeachSAFE programs for the 2025/26 season.

Celebrating the eleventh year of the partnership, this 
coastal aquatic safety initiative helps develop essential 

life skills and build awareness and confidence in residents 
through the delivery of vital beach safety and First Aid 
programs. The first of its kind in Australia, we are proud to 
celebrate its 11th year in 2024/25 

The scorecard below highlights the significant engagement 
achieved during the period.

BeachSAFE Program Scorecard

57 adults and children developed  
their skills in a community based program

    31    SurfBabies and SurfKids / 2 - 7 year olds

   26   HLTAID011 Provide First Aid &  
	 HLTAID009 Provide CPR certificates

COMMUNITY PROGRAMS St James Training Facility and Alkimos Beach

459 students from St 
James' Anglican School completed 
BeachSAFE programs

    300    Surf Life Saving Carnival

       64     Surf Survival Year 5’s

         8    HLTAID011 Provide First Aid certificates

       8   HLTAID009 Provide CPR certificates

     15    Community Surf Rescue certificates

     64    Life Skills for Life

SCHOOL PROGRAMS St James’ Anglican School  
Surf Life Saving Facility and Alkimos Beach

  21  Bronze Medallions awarded
     8  Age Manager certificates 
   18  Member HLTAID011 Provide First Aid certificates
 110  attended Alkimos SLSC Open Day
188  attended Alkimos Development Carnival U8-U13     

151  Nipper Members / 5 - 12 year olds

228  Senior Members / 13 +

ALKIMOS SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB PROGRAMS Alkimos Surf Life Saving Facility and  
Alkimos Beach

5 Alkimos SLSC Youth members 
registered for various Youth Pathways

379 people became members 
of Alkimos Surf Life Saving Club

1,245  people were engaged in a 
BeachSAFE program at Alkimos Beach & 
Alkimos Vista this year

SEASON 2024/25 (JULY 2024 TO JUNE 2025)

4, 400 residents currently  
in Alkimos Beach & Alkimos Vista

32 Section 01: YEAR IN REVIEW



Drowning Overview

Please note: All figures presented are sourced through the 
National Coronial Information System (NCIS), media and 
internal SLS systems. Currently, all cases included remain 
open in the NCIS and, as such, should be considered interim 
and subject to change once confirmed through both internal 
and the coronial investigations and validation processes.

Coastal drowning death: where the location of the drowning is 
on the coast, in the ocean up to 3NM offshore or inland up to 
five times the width of the inlet/river.

Ocean drowning death: where the location of the drowning is 
in the ocean between 3NM and 12NM (the Australian territorial 
water limit).

SLSWA collects and analyses coastal drowning data to 
identify trends and support evidence-based decision-
making for drowning prevention efforts. Data is collected 
through media monitors and confirmed through the 
National Coronial Information System (NCIS).

The figure of 27 is higher than the previous year, and while 
we continue to work toward a goal of zero preventable 
drowning deaths on the WA coast, we recognise that this 
figure would be significantly higher were it not for the 
rescues performed by our lifesaving services.

COASTAL  
DROWNING RESEARCH

OCEAN 
DROWNING 
DEATHS

26

19

20

TOTAL
COASTAL  
DROWNING 
DEATHS

1 JULY –  
30 JUNE

2024-25

2023-24

2022-23

1

1 

1

27

20

21

OVERALL
• 27 coastal and ocean drownings deaths 
• 35% increase on the previous year

DEMOGRAPHICS
• 82% were male
•	18% were female 
•	26% were in the 40+ age group

TIME
• 56% occurred between 12pm and 6pm
• 26% occurred between 6am and 12pm
• 30% occurred on the weekend
• 52% occurred in the summer
• 22% occurred in autumn

LOCATION (REGIONS)
•	37% occurred in regional areas
• 26% occurred in the Perth Metropolitan area
•	26% occurred in remote areas

ACTIVITY
• 30% related to swimming/wading
• 18% related to boating
• 15% related to scuba diving
• 11% related to snorkeling
• 11% while attempting a rescue

The table below summarises the past three seasons of 
coastal and ocean drowning deaths in WA.

^Remote location: coastal areas including the North coast: Pilbara to Kimberley, 
the Gascoyne coast and Goldfields-Esperance coastline. 
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MARKETING & 
EVENTS

Marketing
Surf Life Saving WA continues to focus on marketing 
activities underpinned by our mission of saving lives and 
building great communities, and ensuring the iconic and 
highly respected Surf Life Saving brand remains central in 
all that we do. 

This summer, we participated in the national safety 
campaign starring Australian actor Angus Sampson. 
Launched in November, the STOP. LOOK. STAY ALIVE 
campaign was rolled out nationally across TV, print, online, 
and outdoor advertising mediums. 

With a primary target audience of men, who continue to be 
overrepresented in coastal drowning deaths, the campaign 
aimed to encourage beachgoers to make safety a priority 
when going to the beach, highlighting the surf life saving 
services and resources available to help keep them safe.

The campaign also partnered with new national partner 
Qantas to unveil the Beach Passport, a free, online beach 
safety educational tool. Available in both adult and child 
versions and multiple languages, the Passport was 
designed to equip every beachgoer with basic beach safety 

knowledge. Qantas also offered everyone who completed 
the Beach Passport 150 Qantas Points, along with the 
opportunity to go in the draw for 1 million points. 

Nationally, West Australians accounted for 12% of the 
Beach Passport completions.

We also continue to invest in marketing activities to support 
club membership, specifically with a focus on our Woodside 
Nippers program. This season, we again delivered a multi-
channel marketing campaign utilising print, social, digital 
and out-of-home advertising mediums to support club 
recruitment efforts. Clubs were also provided with a range 
of digital resources to leverage this activity across their own 
channels and activities. 

Thanks to our partnerships with Woodside Energy and 
Westpac, we were also afforded exciting opportunities to 
feature in their campaigns over summer, providing some 
exceptional brand visibility during this peak summer period, 
helping the surf life saving and beach safety message to 
remain top of mind for West Australian beachgoers. 
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20,8658,868

SOCIAL MEDIA
74,633

FOLLOWERS

FOLLOWERS FOLLOWERS

43,257
FOLLOWERS

Digital & Social Media
As we seek to engage with our members, partners, and 
stakeholders, both digital and social media play a key role 
in our strategy for communicating beach safety messaging, 
celebrating the achievements of our members and 
clubs, highlighting the contributions of our partners and 
stakeholders, and keeping the membership engaged and 
abreast of activities across the state. 

This year, we experienced positive growth and engagement 
across our social media platforms, including a 7% increase 
in Facebook followers, nearly 14% on Instagram, 14.5% on 
LinkedIn, and 17.5% on YouTube. 

Our X account continues to play a key role in delivering up-
to-date and timely beach safety messages, including shark 
sightings and beach closures, helping people make better-
informed decisions regarding beach use, and it continues 
to play an integral role in the state government’s Shark 
Mitigation Strategy. 

We also communicate year-round with our clubs, members 
and stakeholders via our fortnightly My Beach eNewsletter, 
distributed to over 23,500 email addresses, and our weekly 
Club News to club committees and administrators.

Media & Public Relations
We have had another successful year in the media, achieving 
exceptional coverage as we’ve continued to take a proactive 
and targeted approach to sharing stories highlighting the 
activities and achievements of our members and services 
across all four pillars of the organisation. 

With the weekly updating and release of national and 
state lifesaving and drowning statistics across the summer 
period, we were able to deliver timely media updates, 
helping keep beach safety messaging at the forefront of 
beachgoers’ minds. 

This approach also enabled us to capitalise on the activities 
of our lifesaving services, highlighting the critical role they 
play in keeping West Australian beachgoers safe. 

We also achieved excellent coverage of the achievements 
of our members across a breadth of areas, through our 
Nipper & Youth Awards, Awards of Excellence, and the 
accomplishments of athletes in the surf sports arena.

Surf Life Saving Foundation
In July 2024, Surf Life Saving WA (SLSWA) proudly 
rejoined Surf Life Saving Australia (SLSA)’s national 
fundraising programs, marking a significant shift 
back to nationally integrated fundraising. This 
decision followed an 18-month collaborative journey 
with SLSA, ensuring alignment with best-practice 
fundraising standards and providing a guaranteed 
financial distribution for the term of the fundraising 
agreement. The move reflects SLSA’s transformation 
into a national leader in fundraising excellence and 
offers SLSWA increased scale, reduced risk, and 
greater reach, benefiting both WA surf life saving 
clubs (SLSCs) and local supporters.

Since the transition, SLSA has maintained a 
strong focus on community engagement, ensuring 
fundraising activity continues under SLSWA branding 
and speaks directly to local supporters. 
WA donors were thoughtfully transitioned to the 
national Guardians of the Surf regular giving program, 
and many received a dedicated supporter tier in 
recognition of their contributions. State-specific 
content was a hallmark of two successful campaigns 
- the Seasonal and Tax Appeal campaigns. The 
SLSWA Autumn Newsletter, delivered as part of 
a personalised supporter journey, celebrated the 
impact of volunteer surf lifesavers across WA and 
reinforced the vital role community contributions play 
in keeping WA beaches safer.

As part of the new national fundraising arrangement, 
SLSWA now also benefits from the expertise of 
SLSA’s Grant Seeking Unit (GSU), a dedicated 
national service that helps SLSCs access vital 
grassroots funding. The GSU offers a suite of services 
to the clubs, including grant writing, proofreading, 
acquittal support, and funding opportunity research, 
completely free of charge. To date, 13 of SLSWA’s 
31 clubs have received tailored support, resulting in 
successful funding for a wide range of initiatives that 
have strengthened club capacity.
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Nipper of the Year
George Cowan - City of Bunbury SLSC

Youth of the Year
Emma Gibbs - Sorrento SLSC

Youth Official of the Year
Florence Shaw - City of Perth SLSC

U14/U15 Lifesaver of the Year
Brady Fulcher - Quinns Mindarie SLSC

Nipper Athlete of the Year
Edward Wallis - North Cottesloe SLSC

U14/U15 Athlete of the Year
Oliver Browne - Trigg Island SLSC

Now in their sixth year, the 2025 Nipper & Youth Awards 
presented by the Scottish Masonic Charitable Foundation of 
WA (SMCFWA) were held on Saturday, 17 May, where more 
than 120 outstanding young members were recognised for 
their achievements across areas, including lifesaving, surf 
sports competition, and volunteering.

Over 300 guests, including SLSWA Chief Patron, the 
Honourable Chris Dawson AC APM, Governor of Western 
Australia, presenting partner Chairman George Rogers, and 
recipients’ families and friends, gathered at Woodside’s Cara 
Auditorium to celebrate.

Twenty-three outstanding individuals were also recognised for 
attaining Gold Level in SLSWA’s Youth Leaders’ Program, which 
required them to have accumulated more than 230 volunteer 
hours as a youth member, demonstrating outstanding 
commitment and dedication across multiple seasons.

Congratulations to all recipients, finalists, and winners 
who are outstanding young ambassadors for their clubs, 
showcasing the bright future Surf Life Saving has in WA.

AWARDSNIPPER & YOUTH 
Surf Life Saving WA

presented by

2025
WINNERS

2024 Surf Life Saving Australia  
Awards of Excellence
On Saturday, 9 November 2024, members from across the 
country gathered in Sydney to celebrate achievements 
from around the nation and to recognise the dedication, 
commitment, and successes of the past season.

SLSWA extends its congratulations to all WA 
representatives who attended, particularly to Coogee 
Beach’s Lachlan Olive, who was named 2024 Youth Surf 
Lifesaver of the Year, and Trigg Island’s Andrew Mosel, who 
took home Coach of the Year. 

Life & Sporting Hall of Fame Member Dinner
Over the weekend of the Fuel to Go & Play WA Surf Life 
Saving Championships, it was excellent to host our Life 
and WA Sporting Hall of Fame Member Dinner. This year 
at Scarboro Surf Life Saving Club, over 70 of our esteemed 
members gathered together. 

The dinner continues to create a wonderful opportunity 
for the stalwarts of Surf Life Saving in WA to catch up, 
reminisce and hear about the activities and achievements 
of the organisation over the past year. 

36 Section 01: YEAR IN REVIEW



WINNERS
COACH OF THE YEAR
James Duncan - City of Bunbury SLSC

COMMUNITY EDUCATION PROGRAM OF THE YEAR
Sea Lions Program - North Cottesloe SLSC

LAVAN CLUB OF THE YEAR (REG TRIGG MEMORIAL TROPHY)

1st Place:  Sorrento SLSC
2nd Place: City of Perth SLSC
3rd Place:  Trigg Island SLSC

OFFICIAL OF THE YEAR	
Justin Meldrum - Trigg Island SLSC

PATROL CLUB OF THE YEAR (IT BIRTWISTLE TROPHY)

Fremantle SLSC

SUPPORT OPERATIONS VOLUNTEER OF THE YEAR
Lawson Rimmer - Sorrento SLSC

SURF LIFESAVER OF THE YEAR
Patrick Rivers - Coogee Beach SLSC

SURF SPORTS TEAM OF THE YEAR
Cottesloe Open Female 2x1km Beach Run Team
- Isabella Neervoort, Sienna Hanikeri

TRAINER OF THE YEAR
Chris Kuster - Scarboro SLSC

VOLUNTEER OF THE YEAR
Grant Trew - City of Perth SLSC

WOODSIDE NIPPERS CLUB OF THE YEAR
City of Bunbury SLSC

WOODSIDE NIPPERS PROGRAM  
VOLUNTEER OF THE YEAR
Brad Woodruff - Denmark SLSC

YOUNG ATHLETE OF THE YEAR
Anna Lockley - City of Bunbury/City of Perth SLSC

YOUNG SURF LIFESAVER OF THE YEAR
Kai Libricky - Busselton SLSC

YOUNG VOLUNTEER OF THE YEAR
Jordana Broomhall - Swanbourne Nedlands SLSC

Joined by Chief Patron, the Honourable Chris Dawson 
AC APM, Governor of Western Australia, more than 450 
attendees representing WA’s 31 surf life saving clubs, and 
corporate and government partners, celebrated the past 
season and member achievements at our 2025 Awards of 
Excellence.

Kicking the evening off, Secret Harbour’s Garry Williams 
was awarded the President’s Medal for his extensive 
contributions to powercraft operations at a state and 
national level.

Taking out the coveted Lavan Club of the Year title, 
including a cheque for $10,000, Sorrento Surf Life Saving 
Club had a year of success across all areas of Surf Life 
Saving, with the awards selection committee highlighting 
their commitment to building a thriving club culture.

Among the individual award recipients on the evening 
was Coogee Beach Surf Life Saving Club’s Patrick Rivers, 
named Surf Lifesaver of the Year, and City of Perth member 
Grant Trew, who was named Volunteer of the Year. 

City of Bunbury continued to prove that they’re a 
dominating force across surf sports, with James Duncan 
named Coach of the Year, and Anna Lockley taking home 
Young Athlete of the Year. Their commitment to the club’s 
Nipper program didn’t go unnoticed either, as they took out 
Woodside Nippers Club of the Year.

Congratulations to all the finalists and medallists on the 
evening, and thank you to the dedicated committees and 
judges who worked hard to assess each nomination. 

PRESIDENT’S MEDAL
Garry Williams - Secret Harbour SLSC

AGE MANAGER OF THE YEAR
Kate Carbone - North Cottesloe SLSC

ASSESSOR OF THE YEAR
Jacqueline McGregor - Mullaloo SLSC

ATHLETE OF THE YEAR
Patrick Eley - Sorrento SLSC

BERNIE KELLY MEDAL
Patrick Eley - Sorrento SLSC



PARTNERSHIPS
The dedication of SLSWA members is matched only by that of our extraordinary 
partners, whose collective commitment and passion for Surf Life Saving in WA 
enables us to focus on what we do best – saving lives. We thank them for their 
continued and valued support. 

DHL

As a Major National Partner of Surf Life Saving Australia, 
DHL has been helping surf lifesavers deliver safer beaches 
since 2003. DHL is the global market leader in the logistics 
and transportation industry and shares many core values 
with Surf Life Saving Australia, including speed, passion and 
a can-do attitude.

Isuzu Ute Australia

Isuzu UTE Australia, home to the award-winning Isuzu 
D-MAX Ute and 7-seat MU-X SUV, is taking their safety-
centric approach to a whole new level, as a Major National 
Partner and the Official Automotive Supplier of Surf Life 
Saving Australia.

At the heart of every Isuzu vehicle lies over 100 years of 
automotive experience and the tried and tested tough truck 
DNA—making them the pragmatic choice for SLSA with its 
proven reputation for durability and reliability. Providing our 
lifesavers across the country with a fleet of D-MAX and MU-X’s, 
Isuzu UTE Australia is proud to support Surf Life Saving’s 
mission and commitment to keeping our beaches safe.

Qantas

Qantas, Australia’s national carrier, is proud to be 
embarking on a monumental new partnership with Surf 
Life Saving Australia to promote water safety and support 
their mission to achieve zero preventable deaths in 
Australian waters.

At the heart of the partnership is a new online training tool 
called the Beach Passport. Launching in time for the peak 
summer holiday period, Beach Passport provides the public 
with basic water safety knowledge and is free and available 
to every Australian citizen and visitor.

Westpac

Westpac has been a proud partner of Surf Life Saving 
Australia (SLSA) for over 50 years, since the inception of 
the Westpac Lifesaver Rescue Helicopter Service (WLRHS) 
in 1973. It is one of the longest corporate community 
partnerships in Australia.

Over 300 rescue professionals and volunteers make up the 
national operation, which includes WA’s two helicopters, 
operating out of North Fremantle and Busselton. During 
summer, the service covers over 84% of the Australian 
population. To date, it has performed more than 100,000 
missions across Australia, with no one ever having to pay 
to be rescued.

MAJOR NATIONAL PARTNERS

Alkimos SLSC
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MAJOR PARTNERS

Healthway

Healthway is a long-standing supporter of SLSWA. After 
many years of sharing the SunSmart message through our 
summer surf sports season, this year saw a change to the 
healthy eating message of Fuel to Go & Play. This change 
presents exciting new opportunities to share this important 
health message across our surf sports events, including 
the Fuel to Go & Play WA Surf Life Saving Championships 
and the Fuel to Go & Play WA Surf League, as well as to the 
broader surf life saving community.

Woodside Energy

Woodside Energy continues to be a strong supporter of 
our organisation, providing essential safety equipment 
for our lifesavers and supporting the development and 
enhancement of our Woodside Nippers Program. In 
2024, this support extended to include the Woodside 
Jet Ski program, helping to maintain the readiness and 
effectiveness of rescue operations along our coastline. 

GOVERNMENT OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA
SLSWA receives significant support from the WA 
Government by way of service agreements and grants 
through the Departments of Premier and Cabinet, Creative 
Industries, Tourism and Sport, Primary Industries and 
Regional Development, and Fire and Emergency Services, 
which assists in the delivery of a range of services and 
capital equipment projects. 

Lotterywest also provides invaluable support to SLSWA and 
many of WA’s surf life saving clubs, assisting with grants for 
vital infrastructure and equipment needs.

COMMUNITY PARTNERS

Scottish Masonic Charitable Foundation of WA

The Scottish Masonic Charitable Foundation has long 
supported our youth members through their generous 
support of our highly popular Rise Up and TOAD summer 
camps, our Youth Program and as presenting partners of 
our annual Nipper & Youth Awards. 

Stockland

In November 2024, Stockland announced its acquisition of 
several Lendlease communities across Australia, including 
Alkimos Beach and Alkimos Vista, with a commitment to 
continue its support for the delivery of our BeachSAFE 
programs in the Alkimos community for the 2025/26 
season. We look forward to continuing to build on this 
successful program with them in the years to come. 

SUPPORTING PARTNERS

Engine

SLSWA is proud to have Engine as the official apparel 
partner of our Western Suns state representative teams 
and our preferred supplier of swimwear and apparel. 

Lavan

Thanks to Lavan, who continues to generously support 
our annual SLSWA Awards of Excellence through their 
sponsorship of the Lavan Club of the Year category.

STATE PARTNERS
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Heidi Gan OLY - President

Appointed to the SLSWA Board in September 2017 and elected 
President in September 2023, Heidi is a recognised leader, 
experienced commercial lawyer, and business development 
professional.  She has over 10 years’ experience in corporate law 
and disputes working in top-tier law firms in Perth and Sydney, 
and in-house roles. She is experienced in corporate governance, 
contract negotiation, dispute resolution, and risk management. 

Heidi is currently a Principal in the BHP Global Business 
Development team. She was previously Senior Legal Counsel and 
Assistant Company Secretary at Lynas Rare Earths Limited, and 
an Associate with global law firm Clifford Chance. Heidi also has 
extensive experience in the not-for-profit sector. She is currently 
a tribunal panel member of Football West, and a Community 
Representative Member of the Australian Bravery Decorations 
Council (an advisory council to the Governor General).

Heidi is a two-time Olympian in the sport of open water 
swimming. She has competed at the world championships in 
both surf lifesaving and swimming, and is a multiple medallist at 
both the State and National Surf Lifesaving Championships. Heidi 
is a member of the City of Perth SLSC and has been an active 
patrolling surf lifesaver since 2005.

Dr Leesa Equid

Appointed to the SLSWA Board in June 2019, Leesa is SLSWA’s 
Honorary Medical Officer and SLSWA’s representative on the 
Australian Resuscitation Council WA Branch. Leesa was the 2015 
SLSWA DHL Lifesaver of the Year, sat on the SLSWA Lifesaving 
Advisory Committee from 2015-2016, and was a mentor in the 
first cohort of the SLSA Women’s Mentoring Program in 2020-
2021. Leesa has been a member of the SLSA National Medical 
Advisory group since 2023. As an active member of Swanbourne 
Nedlands SLSC since 2009, Leesa has continued to hold multiple 
officer positions at her club within the Lifesaving, Education and 
Competition portfolios and competes at Club, State and National 
level, achieving numerous podium positions across each level.

Leesa is an Emergency Doctor working at Fiona Stanley 
Hospital and Joondalup Hospital Emergency Departments as 
an Emergency Specialist, with additional work at the Western 
Australian Country Health Acute Patient Transport Service team 
coordinating retrievals throughout WA. Leesa completed her 
Bachelor’s Degree in Medicine and Surgery (HONS) in 2012 at 
the University of Western Australia, completed her Fellowship 
in Emergency Medicine in 2020 (FACEM – Australasian College 
of Emergency Medicine), and holds a Certificate IV in Training 
and Assessment; Certificate of Clinician Performed Ultrasound 
(CCPU) AAA/eFAST/FELS (Australasian Society of Ultrasound 
in Medicine) and is working towards completing her Diploma of 
Diagnostic Ultrasound – Emergency (DDU).

Michael Shaw

Appointed to the SLSWA Board in September 2022, Mike was the 
2022 SLSWA Assessor of the Year, 2019 SLSWA Volunteer of the 
Year and 2019 Trainer of the Year.  Mike has been the Chair of the 
SLSWA Education Advisory Committee since 2016, and has been 
an active patrolling surf lifesaver since 2011 after gaining his bronze 
medallion at Fremantle SLSC.  Mike was President of Fremantle 
SLSC from 2013 to 2017 and has been the Club’s Education 
Manager since 2019.  He is an active trainer of Bronze Medallion, 
Advance Resuscitation and First Aid, and conducts commercial 
training in Surf Rescue Certificate and First Aid for a number of 
schools.

Mike gained his Bachelor of Chemical Engineering (Honours) in 
1980 from Sydney University and was employed in the oil and gas 
industry, working in Australia and overseas for 27 years for majors 
Exxon and Woodside before becoming an industry consultant in 
petroleum engineering for the next 10 years.  Mike retired from 
paid work in 2017 to focus his efforts on member training in surf 
lifesaving.  He gained his Certificate IV in Training and Assessment 
in 2016.

Jack Dowie

Appointed to the SLSWA Board in September 2023. Jack is Senior 
Project Manager primarily within the Western Australian resources 
sector. His skills as an effective leader, manager, facilitator, and 
a proactive communicator, complement the responsibility as a 
Board member as well as an approachable peer club member.

Joining the surf lifesaving community in 2006 as a Nipper 
parent, Jack progressed to Board level at Fremantle SLSC in 
2010, including the role as President from 2019 to 2023. Jack, 
who continues to actively patrol and compete for his club, was 
recognised as a Life Member in 2025.

Richard Elderfield

Appointed to the SLSWA Board in September 2023, Richard 
has been an active surf lifesaving volunteer since 2009. In this 
time he has earned a reputation as a versatile and skilled leader; 
developing qualifications and experience across the full spectrum 
of surf lifesaving activities. As an active trainer, assessor, member 
of the Emergency Response Team, ski coach and surf sports 
competitor, Richard has a strong understanding of the rich 
diversity within the movement and is committed to continuing 
to provide the community with contemporary, effective and 
sustainable surf lifesaving services.

Richard and his family are members of Sorrento SLSC. Together 
with his daughters, he represents the club in State and Aussies 
competition as a surf ski paddler, developing board paddler, and 
more occasionally and less competently as beach competitor.
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Beyond surf lifesaving, Richard has considerable senior leadership 
experience delivering operational services and technology 
solutions in large and complex organisations. Following more 
than 16 years’ as an Australian Army Officer, he went on to lead 
commercial businesses servicing the resources, government, 
commercial and construction sectors with mission-critical 
telecommunications capabilities. More recently he has served as a 
senior executive in the Western Australian State Government and 
currently delivers technology projects in the utilities sector.

Vicki Rassmussen

Appointed to the SLSWA Board in September 2023, Vicki’s passion 
for surf lifesaving is a testament to her commitment, particularly 
to community service, and developing our youth members and 
pathways within surf lifesaving.

Since 2010, Vicki has been a member of the Mullaloo SLSC, joining 
the club to support her children. However, her dedication quickly 
became apparent, and she assumed the role of Club Director 
from 2012 to 2019. During her tenure, Vicki played a pivotal role in 
shaping the club’s success.

From 2017 to 2021, Vicki served as the Chair of the SLSWA’s 
Development Committee. Her leadership in this role facilitated the 
implementation of many member development initiatives, ensuring  
the continued growth and sustainability for members and the 
movement.

Her enthusiasm for surf sports knows no bounds. As a qualified 
Senior Official, she contributes her expertise across all aspects of 
surf sports.

Beyond her surf lifesaving roles, Vicki is a leading not-for-profit 
CEO and a skilled fundraising professional. Her dedication to 
fundraising earned her the prestigious Arthur Venn Fundraiser of 
the Year award from the Fundraising Institute Australia in 2018.

Jarod Stone

Appointed to the SLSWA Board in July 2024 to September 2025 
as a Casual Vacancy. Jarod is a Chartered Accountant who has 
worked in the accounting and finance industry for more than 
two decades. Jarod has previously worked with Ernst & Young, 
Gooding Partners Chartered Accountants and spent time working 
in the UK and Europe. 

Since returning to Perth in 2004 he worked in private family 
offices for nine years and was most recently Financial Controller at 
Wabtec Control Systems. Over that time, he has gained experience 
across industries such as television and film production, aviation, 
domestic and international property, commercial aquaculture, 
construction, corporate healthcare, finance, rail communications 
and labour hire. Jarod is currently the Chief Operating Officer at 
Hoppr Ltd, a startup specialising in ad placement technology, 
a Director and Shareholder of Clear Corporate Solutions, an 
outsourcing company focused on finance and administrative 
placements and is a Director of the Azure Capital Foundation.

Sarah Leonard - Resigned July 2024

Appointed to the SLSWA Board in October 2014. Sarah is the 
General Counsel and Company Secretary of Lynas Rare Earths 
Limited. She is an experienced general counsel and a leading 
resources and infrastructure lawyer. She was previously the Group 
Legal Counsel at Monadelphous Group Limited and a Partner of 
Corrs Chambers Westgarth.  

Sarah is experienced in governance, contract negotiation and 
risk management.  Sarah was formerly the Education Officer at 
City of Perth SLSC and was a participant in the SLSA National 
Leadership Development Program.
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PATRONS

SLSWA AMBASSADORS
Coastal Bravery Awards  -  Joanne Lucas SC 

Coastal Safety  -  Rick Gerring
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Chief Executive Officer  -  James O’Toole	

Management
General Manager, Lifesaving and Training  -  Chris Peck	
General Manager, Corporate Services  -  Rob Murphy	

Executive Office
Legal Counsel  -  Patrick Wong 
Executive Assistant  -  Vasika Bechar 
Administration Officer  -  Mara Krsticevic

Information Technology
IT Development Coordinator  -  Ryan Greenaway

Accounts
Accountant  -  Andrew Mawby
Accounts Officer  -  Sharon Foong
Accounts Officer  -  Nietszche Holmes

Lifesaving 		
Lifesaving Manager  -  Cameron Robbins
Support Operations Coordinator  -  Glen Hinkley
Helicopters Services Coordinator  -  Timothy Gleeson
Senior Operations Supervisor  -  Jason Nugent
Lifesaving Development Officer  -  Lachlan Oliver

Marketing 
Marketing and Partnerships Coordinator  -  Minda Penn
Marketing and Communications Officer  -  Megan Jones		
Digital Content Officer  -  Tarsha Signorile
Partnerships and Events Officer  -  Alexa Ford

Surf Sports and Member Development 
Sports and Development Manager  -  David Somers
Surf Sports Officer, Youth/Open Events  -  Graham Snook
Surf Sports Officer, Little Nipper/Nipper Events  -  Charlie Rigby
Surf Sports Officer, Event Support  -  Blake Sawyer
Surf Sports Officer, Event Support  -  Ben Ramsden
Surf and Development Officer  –  Ethan Rapley 
Development Officer, Nippers, Youth and Leadership  
  -  Maddison Walker
Development Officer, Development Centre - Stevee Belcher

Training and Education
Training and Education Coordinator  -  David Gallagher
Senior Programs Officer  -  Sandy Clarke
Training and Education Development Officer  -  Domenic Cowdell
Training and Education Sales Officer  -  Felicity Mead	
Training and Education Officer  -  Lynette Coleshaw
Training and Education Administrative Officer  -  Deborah Allen
Training and Education Administrative Officer  -  Beth Allen
Member Education Administrative Officer  -  Janie Rowse

CHIEF PATRON
His Excellency, the Honourable
Chris Dawson AC APM
Governor of Western Australia

PATRONS
The Honourable Roger Cook MLA
Premier of Western Australia

VICE PATRONS
The Honourable Nola Marina MP 
Federal Member for Forrest

Mr Josh Wilson MP 
Federal Member for Fremantle

Ms. Rebecca Stephens MLA 
Member for Albany

Mr Paul Lilburne MLA 
Member for Carine

Ms. Christine Tonkin MLA 
Member for Churchland

Ms. Caitlin Collins MLA 
Member for Hillarys

Ms. Divina D’Anna MLA 
Member for Kimberley

Mr Mark Folkard MLA 
Member for Mindarie

Mr Stuart Aubrey MLA 
Member for Scarborough

Ms. Libby Mettam MLA 
Member for Vasse

Ms. Jane Kelsbie MLA 
Member for Warren-Blackwood

His Worship Greg Stocks 
Mayor City of Albany

His Worship Jaysen de San Miguel 
Mayor City of Bunbury

His Worship Phill Cronin 
Mayor City of Busselton

His Worship Jerry Clune 
Mayor City of Greater Geraldton

His Worship Hon. Albert Jacobs JP MLA 
Mayor City of Joondalup

Her Worship Deb Hamblin 
Mayor City of Rockingham

Her Worship Linda Aitkin JP 
Mayor City of Wanneroo

His Worship Gary Mack 
Mayor Town of Cambridge

Councillor Julia Meldrum 
Shire President of Augusta Margaret River

Councillor Michelle Campbell 
Shire President of Harvey



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc. (SLSWA) is an incorporated 
body under the Associations Incorporation Act 2015 (WA) and is 
recognised as the official ‘State Centre’ and controlling authority 
for Surf Life Saving in Western Australia. SLSWA is subject to 
compliance with the Rules and Regulations of Surf Life Saving 
Australia Ltd (SLSA) and is recognised for administering and 
focusing on surf lifesaving in Western Australia (WA). This 
statement summarises SLSWA’s governance practices that were 
in effect during the year, highlighting decisions and reporting in 
accordance within the Rules and Regulations of SLSWA.

Communications with Members
The SLSWA Board aims to ensure that members are kept informed 
of all major developments affecting surf lifesaving. Information 
is communicated to members through this document (SLSWA’s 
Annual Report), bulletins, circulars, minutes and memorandums 
with respect to changes in business, financial position, future 
development, results and activities, and quarterly State Council 
meetings and member advisory board meetings. Electronic 
information is also available on the SLSWA website:  
www.mybeach.com.au

General Meetings of Members (State Council)
The State Council is the legal owner of SLSWA. Its role is to amend 
the SLSWA Constitution, review and elect the Board, review 
SLSWA’s financial position and approve the strategic outcomes 
presented by the Board. 

The State Council comprises the Chairman (President of the 
Board), Ms Heidi Gan OLY and a Club Delegate from each of 
the affiliated clubs in WA each with the right to vote at general 
meetings. The Chairman may exercise a casting vote but no 
deliberative vote. SLSWA Life Members, Board Members, and the 
Chief Executive Officer have the right to be present and to debate 
at general meetings, but not to vote. SLSWA full-time and honorary 
officers and individual members were allowed to attend general 
meetings as visitors. In addition to the AGM on 7 September 2024, 
the Board under Part 21, Para 21.1 of the SLSWA Constitution, 
convened two State Council meetings held on 15 June 2024 and 7 
September 2024.

Club Meetings Held Attendance Proxies Apologies
Albany 2 2   
Alkimos 2 2   
Binningup 2 2   
Broome 2 2   
Busselton 2 2   
Champion Bay 2 2   
City of Bunbury 2 -  2
City of Perth 2 2   
Coogee Beach 2 2 1  
Cottesloe 2 1  1
Dalyellup Beach 2 2   
Dampier 2 2 1  
Denmark 2 1 1 1
Dongara Denison 2 2   
Esperance Goldfields 2 2   
Floreat 2 2   
Fremantle 2 2   
Geraldton 2 2   
Mandurah 2 2 1  
Margaret River 2 2   
Mullaloo 2 2 2  
North Cottesloe 2 1 1 1
Port Bouvard 2 -  2
Quinns Mindarie 2 2   
Scarboro 2 2   
Secret Harbour 2 1  1
Smiths Beach 2 2   
Sorrento 2 2 1  
Swanbourne Nedlands 2 2 1  
Trigg Island 2 2   
Yanchep 2 -  2

Board of Director’s Composition and Meetings
The Board is responsible to members for overall business 
performance. It enacts SLSWA’s strategic direction and priorities to 
be both appropriate and achievable; ensures the financial viability 
and security of SLSWA; established the policy and regulatory 
framework for governing SLSWA; monitors organisational 
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations; assesses 
risks facing the organisation; and appoints committees and 
honorary officers to carry out aspects of their work.

The Board comprised the Chairman and seven Board Members 
who are individual members of SLSWA, each with the right to 
one vote on any question. The Chairman has a casting vote but 
no deliberative vote. These are honorary positions that attract 
no remuneration except for reimbursement of expenses such 
as telephone, travel and accommodation costs incurred whilst 
performing Board activities. Board Members are elected in 
accordance with Part 25, Para 25(a) of the SLSWA Constitution.
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Conflict of Interest
Each Board Member declared their interest in any contractual, 
selection, disciplinary or other matter in which a conflict of 
interest arose and made absent him/her from discussions of 
such matters and was not entitled to vote in respect of such 
matter. In the event of any uncertainty as to whether it was 
necessary for a Board Member to refrain from discussions or 
voting, the issue was immediately determined by the Board.

Code of Conduct
The Board has in place a Code of Conduct contained in its 
Personnel Handbook which all full-time and honorary officers 
and committee members must adhere to. An induction program, 
including the provision of the handbook and member brochure 
was made available to all SLSWA personnel.

Chief Executive Officer
SLSWA’s most senior employee, the Chief Executive Officer is 
appointed by the Board and is subject to annual performance 
reviews by the Board. The role is responsible for the day-to-day 
operations of SLSWA. Mr. James O’Toole was appointed to this 
position, officially commencing on 18 February 2015.

Committees of the Board
Committees and member advisory boards are constituted by 
Part 33 of the SLSWA Constitution to assist the Board in the 
discharge of its responsibilities. The committees and member 
advisory boards are for held for one-year term, this term being 
2024/2025. The Australian Honours and Awards Committee 
Chair appointment is held for two-year term, this being 
2024/2025, 2025/2026.  

Australian Honours and Awards Committee
The Life Members and Awards Committee recommends to 
the Board nominations of individual members for SLSWA Life 
Membership, SLSA Life Membership, appropriate levels of 
Australian Honours and Awards. The committee comprised 
Timothy Tucak (Chair), Bronwyn Meldrum, Garry Williams, 
Stephen Carrick, Tracey Tenaglia and David Somers (Nominee 
of the SLSWA CEO).

Lifesaving Committee
The Lifesaving Committee develops, monitors and reviews 
standards, policy and procedures relating to water safety, 
patrols, training and assessment. The committee comprised 
Liam Burke (Chair), Garry Bunford, Mitchell Shackles, Pia 
Claudius, Richard Lissett, Scott Anderson and Domenic 
Cowdell (Nominee of the SLSWA CEO).

Sports Committee
The Surf Sports Advisory Committee selects finalists and 
winners for Awards of Excellence categories and makes 
recommendations through the CEO to the Board of Directors 
regarding the direction of surf sports in WA. The committee 
comprised Amanda Hunt (Chair), Aaron Bell, Glenn Eldon, 
Justin Meldrum, Nikita Fredonnet and David Somers (Nominee 
of the SLSWA CEO).

Development Committee 
The Development Advisory Committee recommends initiatives 
to provide leadership opportunities and pathways to all 
members and clubs in WA and is involved in establishing good 
practice models for the development of our junior members. 
The committee comprised Elise Stallard (Chair), Dawn Jones, 
Isak Geddis, James Currey and David Somers (Nominee of the 
SLSWA CEO).

Education and Training Committee
The Education and Training Advisory Committee has been 
tasked to review education and training programs, policies and 
activities together with undertaking research and development 
as required. The committee is to participate in moderation 
and validation of resources and engage in the delivery of 
the strategic direction of Member Education of SLSWA. The 
committee comprised Shelly Rourke (Chair), Aaron McRae, 
Jacqueline McGregor, Kate Burke, Meagan Tong and Domenic 
Cowdell (Nominee of the SLSWA CEO).

Hall of Fame Committee
The Hall of Fame Committee recommends to the Board 
nominations of individual members for SLSWA Hall of Fame 
Award. The committee comprised Heidi Gan OLY (SLSWA 
Board), Dean Belmont and David Somers (Nominee of the 
SLSWA CEO).

Finance and Audit Committee
The Finance and Audit Committee oversee the reliability and 
integrity of accounting policies and financial reporting. The 
committee comprised Jarod Stone (Chair), Vicki Rasmussen, 
James O’Toole, Rob Murphy and Andrew Mawby.

Youth Committee
SLSWA Board introduced a Youth Committee comprising of 
U17 members. The Youth Committee were set objectives by 
the Development Committee. The 2024/25 Youth Committee 
comprised of Jack Brohman, Owen Chaloner, Charlie 
Czaplinska, Indiah Reidy, Florence Shaw and Maddison Walker 
(Nominee of the SLSWA CEO).

Name Meetings Held Meetings Attended Expires

Heidi Gan OLY 7 7 2027
Leesa Equid 7 7 2027
Michael Shaw 7 7 2025
Jack Dowie 7 7 2026
Richard Elderfield 7 7 2026
Vicki Rasmussen 7 6 2026
Jarod Stone 7 5 Appointed July 2024
Sarah Leonard 7 1 Resigned July 2024
James O’Toole 7 7 Appointed February 2015
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OFFICIALS
Keely Anderson
Warwick Archer
Robert Aristei
Tracey Axiak
Sian Back
Shayne Baker
Stephen Baker
Anais Barclay
John Barwood
Marni Black
Neil Bowie
Janine Boyle
Garry Bunford
Declan Burke
Patrick Butler
Bianca Butler
Charlie Bydder
Steven Carroll
Gary Carthew
Alysha Castelli
Tanya Channell
Harriet Chin
Sandra Clarke
Penelope Cohen
Maya Coleman
Olivia Colotti
Alistair Cook
Michael Cook
Hitomi Cording
Jakob Crockett
Charlie Czaplinska
John Dayman
Graham Deans
Neil Dickson
Holly Dimov
Dianne Doick
Kevin Duguid
Alexander Duguid
Guy Edwards
Amelie England
Amber Fildes
Adam Fortey
Mark Fortey

Karly  George
Alison Gerrard
Carol Gibbs
Norman Gibbs
Lea Gold
Sasha Goodale
Charlotte Gresley
Daryl Griffin
Leanne Gwynne
Georgia Gwynne
Clare Harrington
Cheryl Harvey
Samantha Hill
Mark Hills
Naomi  Hough
Norman Johnson
Callie Johnson
Norman Johnston
Dawn Jones
Jazmin Kalmar
Villiam Kalmar
Jay Kapica
Sophie Kemp
Shane Kennedy
Clare Ketteringham
Sarah Kierman
Gail King
John King
Anna Kiperman
Jasmine Lamb
Lana Lang
Cate Latimer
Kristina Lemson
Ellie Lyons
Elizabeth Maffescioni
Ray Maffescioni
Tegan Maffescioni
Ian Marsden
Kelli Martin
Zoe Martin
Andrew Matraszek
David McCarron
Jacob McCarron

Connor McComas
Jacqueline McGregor
Teresa McPherson
Becca McTaggart
Bronwyn Meldrum
Justin Meldrum
Brian Moar
Alistair  Morgan
Chris Murphy
Cale Murray
Ethan Nicholls
Marcus Nicholls
Roger Nowell
Jette Oksis
Megan O’Leary
Debra O’Mahony
Jack Owen
Jane Ponsonby
Erne Potgieter
Hannah Potts
Miles Prosonby
Deirdre Purcell
Rachel  Quirk
Sam Ranson
Anne Ranson
Ethan Rapley
Annika Rasmussen
Vicki Rasmussen
Indiah Reidy
Alexander Rhodes
Grace Richardson
Jack  Rigby
David Riley
Luke Roecker
Deannica Ross
Lorraine Rule
Megan Rumford
Yvette Rutherford
Peter Saunders
Phillip Schonken
Tracey Lomas Schonken
Glenda Schulz
William Schupp

Tracey Shaw
Florence Shaw
Michael Shaw
Nancy Shaw
Dylan Shaw
Holly Shiels
Mark  Shirley
Doug Simpson
Ian Smallwood
Nathan Smith
Madelyn Smith
Eric Smith
Belinda Somers
David Somers
David Tasker
Jenny Taylor
Peter Taylor
Tayliah Taylor
Melanie Thomas
David Thomson
George Tolev
Nicole Tolev
Lily Tolev
Brooke Tonkin
Rose Traynor
Dragan Tutulic
Mark Wainwright
Brett Wakefield
Gregory Webb
Robert Welch
Gregory Whipp
Jasmine White
Anne-Marie Widermanski
Garry Williams
Megan Williams
Willow Williamson
Carolyn Wilson
Digby Wilson
Geoffrey Wilson
Kerry Yates
Trent Yates
Glenda Yow
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TRAINERS, ASSESSORS & FACILITATORS
Alex Aberle-Leeming
Paul Ahearn
Kelly Aitken-Fox
Jordan Alabakis
Gavin Allaway
Tim Allingham
Helen Allison
Kyan Ambrosio
Scott Anderson
Melanie Andrews
Fabio Armanni
Melissa Armstrong
Ashley Atwell
Washington Avila
Aiden John Ayoub
Oliver John Ayoub
Arthur Bajada
Pagona Bakalis
Elena Baker
Stephen Baker
Jacob Barker
Jodie Barker
Ayden Bartle
Corey Bartle
Todd Bartle
David Barton
John Barton
Michael Bastow
Jeffery Baxter
Lani Baxter
Joanne Bean-Hannigan
Timothy Begley
Jenaya Bell
Neil Belton
Jayme Bergman
Paul Berry
Jiya Bhardwaj
Byron Bird
Elizabeth Bird
Peran Bishop
Craig Blake
Justin Blankley
Clint Blay
Colleen Blevins
Penelope Boardman
Tom Boisvert
Morgan Boldy
Melanie Boschin
Kathryn Braysich
Phillip Brewer
Christopher Brien
Christopher Brigg
Peter Brigg
Susan Britt
Michael Brooks
Jonathan Broomhall
Jordana Broomhall
Lynette Brosens

Mackenzie Brown
Rebecca Bruce
Eric Buist
Trevor Bulley
Garry Bunford
Declan Burke
Jessica Burke
Kate Burke
Liam Burke
Evan Burns
Richard Burvill
Ava Bushby
Charlie Bydder
Claire Byrne
David Carbon
Steven Carroll
Gary Carthew
Yvette Caruso
Damian Cato
Mark Chalwell
Hayden Chandler
Cristiana Chessa
Sian Chiappa
Flinders Chisholm
Ken Clark
Linda Clark
Sally Clark
Ian Clarke
Sandra Clarke
Pia Claudius
Rianda Clemons
Christopher Colalillo
Terence Colby
Gavin Cole
Amanda Collins
Sam Collins
Kym Colotti
Benjamin Colvin
Niamh Connolly
Dominique Cook
Michael Cook
James Coubrough
Christine Cougan
Domenic Cowdell
Annika Crockford
Scarlett Curtis
Matthew Cybula
Thomas Da Prato
Isabella Dall
Sydney Dall
Elena Damianopoulos
Michael Darragh
Dean Davidson
Alistair Davison
Luke de Laeter
Deborah Dean
Jason Dean
Warren Dean

Sophie Dekenah
Andrew Dennehy
Kathleen Donovan
Mark Dove
Julie Doyle
Rachelle Doyle
Kalagan Driver
Anne Marie Dullaghan
Debra Edmondson
Guy Edwards
Karen Edwards
Kevin Edwards
Richard Elderfield
Ned Eldon
Samantha England
Leesa Equid
Rebecca Febia
Emily Felstead
Kevin Fettes
Christine Ficko
Craig Fisher
Jacob Fitzgerald
Nathan Fitzgerald
Lachlan Flanders-Farmer
Capucine Flipo
Clifford Ford
Joseph Ford
Sarah Forsyth
Adam Fortey
Mark Fortey
Thomas Fox
Peter Fox
Saxon France
Michael Francis
James Gail
John Garnett
Michele Gates
Elena Ghergori
Trevor Gibb
Ashleigh Gillies
Alessandra Gillmore
Matthew Gleeson
Nicholas Gleeson
Stephen Glossop
Stephen Goddard
Natalie Godwin
Anthony Gollan
Sasha Goodale
Wendy Goodliffe
Andrew Gorrie
Darren Gould
Liam Gould
Sydnee Gould
Benjamin Gray
Lainey Gray
Melanie Gray
Craig Graydon
Nicholas Graydon

Alexis Grayson
Kali Grayson
Katherine Grayson
Sheree Greay
Lloyd Green
Phillip Green
Anthony Greenfield
Vivienne Greenfield
Thomas Greenshields
Roger Gregson
Elliot Grierson
Kate Griffin
Leo Griffith
Jacqueline Grljusich
Adam Gugiatti
John Guilfoyle
George Haggett
Christopher Hainsworth
Nicholas Hall
Nicholas Hancock
Paul Hardy
Judith Harlow
Liam Harris
Jack Harrison
Cheryl Harry
Caitlin Harwood
Peter Hastie
Perry Hatchett
Callum Hawkins
Philippa Hawson
Nicola Headling
Bethwyn Hearle
Jeremy Henderson
Sharon Henning
Peter Hilgendorf
Mark Hills
Leif Hinrichsen
John Hodges
Adam Hoes
Adrienne Holt
Tanya Honor
Paul Hughes
Rebecca Claire Hughes
Harriet Hulland
Glenn Hunter
Robert Hunter
Ashleigh Hurford
Timothy-John Hurford
Lillian Hutchinson
Lorenzo Iannuzzi
Albert Iten
Michael Ivey
Talia Jakubans
Caron Jander
Simone Janney
Deborah Jessamine
Amrit Jessy
Paul Johnson
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Gabrielle Jolliffe
Evan Jones
Ewan Jones
Kaitlin Jones
Russell Jones
Tayla Jones
Will Jones
Jaye Jose
Nicholas Journet
Lisa Julian
Jeff Kallawk
Tyler Kallawk
Jazmin Kalmar
Simon Kanakis
Keith Kavanagh
Diane Kelly
Julie Kelly
Elizabeth Kilkenny
Graham Kimber
John King
Robin (David) Knowles
David Kordic
Zachary Krumme
Valentina Kuruc
Belinda Kuster
Christopher Kuster
Soraya Kuster
Phillip Laird
Brett Lamb
Jasmine Lamb
Elizabeth Lane
Richard Lane
Mark Lang
Cate Latimer
Robert Lavis
Sophie Lawson
Daniel Lea
Callum Leahy
Jane Leaversuch
Kim Kong Lee
Austin Leggo
Benjamin Leonard
Elizabeth Lewis
David Lim
Richard Lissett
Barbara Loudon
Richard Lowe
Michael Lowry
Johanna Lucas
Robert Lucas
Danielle Lynch
Liberty Madden
Darren Maisey
Bridget Marchin-Vincent
Danielle Marsland
Cameron Martin
Archie Maslen
Andrew Matraszek

Nathaniel McBain
Michael McBride
Gordon McCabe
Heath McCabe
Chelsea McCarron
David McCarron
Jacob McCarron
Cameron McEvoy
Jacqueline McGregor
Cathrine McIntyre
Craig McIntyre
Samantha McIntyre
Paul McKenner
Ian McLachlan
Timothy McMahon
Angus McMillan
Aaron McRae
Angus McSwan
Jeff Medcalf
Justin Meldrum
Margaret Merrifield
Shane Mickle
Conan Millar
Ebony Millar
Jayden Millar
Rebecca Millar
Dara Mills
Julian Ming
Sam Mizzi
Sarah Moar
Thomas Montague
David Moody
Joel Moore
Emma Morabito
Andrew Morgan
Catherine Morgan
Jason Morgan
Peter Morgan
William Morgan
David Morley
Jordan Morton
Jaydon Moseley
Edwin Moss
Laurence Mott
Laine Mulvay
George Mumford
Jasmine Naylor
Merrilee Needham
Edward Neilan
Peter Nelson
Damien Newbold
Alexander Nicholls
Louise Nicholls
Shaun Nicholls
Jasmine Noorman
Cass Norton
Martin Norwood
Helen O’Brien

Damian O’Donnell
Thomas Offer
Lachlan Olive
Rebecca O’Malley
Kristie Orchard
Jacqueline O’Rourke
Harry Osbourne
Logan Ovenden-Clarke
Rodney Owen
Michael Paccanaro
Mark Pager
Christopher Papaioannou
Angus Park
Bernadette Parker
Kelly Parker
David Parsons
Mary-Anne Paton
Peter Pavlinovich
Leslie Paxton
Georgia Pegrum
Henry Pemberton
Oliver Pemberton
James Peoples
Lachlan Phillips
Craig Piercy
Elisabeth Pitts
Carly Pizzuto
James Plunkett
Thomas Polinelli
Kim Porter
Laura Povey
Courtney Powys
Raelene Powys
John Price
Natasha Price
Russell Price
Robert Pulsford
David Quimby
Paddy Quinn
Nicola Ralph
Jiorja Ralston
Anne Ranson
Luke Raphael
Cameron Rapley
Annika Rasmussen
Angela Razvi
Syed Razvi
Catriona Read
Sonya Read
Anthea Redding
Zak Reed
Michael Rees
Mark Regel
David Reid
John Rhatigan
Jaclyn Riddell
Jack Rigby
Lawson Rimmer

Bernadette Robinson
Kaila Roche
Elliot Rockett
Grant Rosman
Paul Rosser
David Rossow
Shelly Rourke
Denver Rowcroft
Janie Rowse
Neil Rowse
Carolyn Ryan
Eamon Ryan
Jamie Saunders
Peter Saunders
Katherine Schutze
Jeff Scott
Julia Scriven
Camille Selden
Joe Selden
William Selden
Carrie Selten
Graham Sharpe
Campbell Shaw
Michael Shaw
Hollie Sheils-Rudd
Ranee Sidhu
Debra Silver
Douglas Simpson
Matthew Slattery
Ian Smallwood
Julie Smallwood
Adam Smith
Allen Smith
Ava Smith
Derry Smith
James Smith
Peter Smith
Reece Smith
Anthony Snelling
Belinda Somers
David Somers
Natalie Speer
Timothy Speer
Ian Spurgeon
Annabelle Standing
Lucas Stanfield
Christopher Stephens
Matthew Stephens
Helena Stoakley
Madeleine Stockden
Erin Stockton-Rice
Julia Suffell
Kenneth (John) Summers
Matthew Summers
Mitchell Summers
Robyn Sutton
David Synnot
Peter Tan

49 SLSWA 2024/25 ANNUAL REPORT



David Tasker
Jackson Tasker
Ciara Taylor
Jeanette Taylor
Peter Taylor
Carlo Tenaglia
Tracey Tenaglia
Janelle Theron
Melanie Thomas
Stephen Thomas
Janelle Thompson
David Thomson
Phoebe Thornton
Darren Thysse
Alison Tilbury
Larry Tilbury
Caroline Tompkin
Jasmine Tong
Meagan Tong
Aaron Tracey
Peter Traeger

Grant Trew
Timothy Tucak
Max Turner
Tanya Turner
Tia Tutti
Joseph Tyrrell
David Ulbrick
Thomas Van Bruchem
Christine van Deventer
William Van Dongen
Peter Van Geloven
Emilio Velasco Ridley
Lynden Vikingur
Sarah Viney
Reece Vogels
Deborah Wake
Brett Wakefield
Maddison Walker
Blair Walkington
Patrick Walsh
Riley Walsh

Mike Walter
Jodee Walton
Shelby Warren
Keith Warrick
Lauren Warschauer
Craig Waters
Peter Watkins
Duncan Watkinson
Hamish Watson
Rory Watson
Celia Waugh
Gregory Webb
Warwick Webb
Bernard Weir
Jane Wells
Bruce Westerman
Carl Wheeler
John Whitaker
Cooper Whiting
Hudson Whiting
Anne-Marie Widermanski

Garry Williams
Jessica Williams
Megan Williams
Mark Williamson
Carolyn Wilson
Digby Wilson
Duncan Wilson
Timothy Wilson
Graham Wimbridge
Bella Wise
Bernard Wong
Jennifer Wood
Joseph Wooden
Mathew Wools-Cobb
Vicki Wray-Watts
Adam Yeo
Anna Young
Robert Young
Sarah Young

TRAINERS, ASSESSORS & FACILITATORS   (CONT.)
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2025 Fuel to Go & Play WA Surf Life 
Saving Championships - Youth/Open
(Includes: Rescue, Lifesaving & First Aid Championships)

WA Champion Club – Total Aggregate Points
Sorrento SLSC
Awarded to the club with the highest total point score.

WA Handicap Winner
Sorrento SLSC
Awarded to the club with the highest total point score 
overall, based on handicap derived from the previous WA 
Championships overall point score. 

WA Champion Youth Club – Total Aggregate Points
Sorrento SLSC
Awarded to the club with the highest total point score 
from the youth age groups.

Bernie Kelly Medal
Patrick Eley, Sorrento SLSC
The Bernie Kelly Medal is awarded for the most 
outstanding performance by an Open competitor at the 
WA Surf Life Saving Championships.

In 1947, Bernie Kelly of Swanbourne Nedlands SLSC won 
the Open Surf Belt at the Australian Championships, 
becoming the first Western Australian to ever win an 
Australian Open Title, and therefore is honoured with the 
naming of this prestigious award.

Overall Club Rank & Points		
1	 Sorrento	 924
2	 Trigg Island 	 788
3	 North Cottesloe 	 461
4	 City Of Perth 	 371
5	 Mullaloo	 213
6	 Cottesloe 	 177
7	 Scarboro	 93
8	 City Of Bunbury 	 66
9	 Quinns Mindarie 	 65
10	 Fremantle 	 60
11	 Swanbourne Nedlands 	 45
12	 Coogee Beach 	 43
13	 Secret Harbour 	 26
14	 Busselton	 9
15	 Alkimos Surf Life Saving 	 5
	 Broome 	 5
17	 Mandurah 	 3
18	 Floreat	 2
	 Binningup 	 2
20	 Dalyellup Beach 	 1
	 Yanchep 	 1
22	 Albany 	 0

BEACH Results
		
Open Female 2 KM Beach Run	 	
1	 Sienna Hanikeri	 CO
2	 Femke Negus	 TI
3	 Jemma Ford	 NC
4	 Gemma Etheridge	 SO
5	 Celina Meyer	 NC
6	 Asha Moxham	 NC
		
Open Female Beach Flags		
1	 Sydney Rafferty	 SO
2	 Gabrielle Retty	 CY
3	 Ava Yujnovich	 SO
4	 Holly Fraser	 CY
5	 Kali Grayson	 NC
6	 Melina La Rosa	 DB
		
Open Female Beach Relay		
1	 City 100	 CY
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 North Cottesloe Gold	 NC
4	 City 1925	 CY
5	 Quinns Mindarie Blue	 QM
6	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
		
Open Female Beach Sprint		
1	 Sydney Rafferty	 SO
2	 Holly Fraser	 CY
3	 Kali Grayson	 NC
4	 Jacqueline Lord	 CY
5	 Megan McCaffrey	 CY
6	 Charli Harrington	 QM
		

Open Male 2 KM Beach Run		
1	 Owen Chaloner	 NC
2	 Cameron Quirk	 SO
3	 Jarrad Miles	 CB
4	 Joe Quirk	 SO
5	 Brett Cassidy	 NC
6	 Michael Booth	 SO
		
Open Male Beach Flags		
1	 Thomas Nolan	 NC
2	 Matthew Lloyd	 NC
3	 Ethan Nguyen	 CY
4	 Rafferty Mullens	 BY
5	 Sebastien Gibbs	 NC
6	 Dominic Banks-Smith	 NC
		
Open Male Beach Relay		
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Quinns Mindarie Blue	 QM
4	 Sorrento Black	 SO
5	 City 100	 CY
6	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
		
Open Male Beach Sprint		
1	 Matthew Lloyd	 NC
2	 Jackson Symonds	 SO
3	 Charlie Rigby	 QM
4	 Dominic Banks-Smith	 NC
5	 Tom Hodgkin	 NC
6	 Thomas Nolan	 NC
		
Open Mixed Beach Relay		
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Quinns Mindarie Blue	 QM
4	 Sorrento Black	 SO
5	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
6	 North Cottesloe Stripes	 NC
		
U19 Female 2 KM Beach Run		
1	 Harriet Chin	 SO
2	 Annika Negus	 TI
3	 Zoe Moore	 TI
		
U19 Female Beach Flags		
1	 Hayley Mann	 QM
2	 Zahra Buckley	 SO
3	 Jorja Van Pelt	 CY
4	 Daniella Bushell	 QM
5	 Eliza Wood	 NC
		
U19 Female Beach Sprint		
1	 Hayley Mann	 QM
2	 Ashley Atwell	 CO
3	 Zahra Buckley	 SO
4	 Jorja Van Pelt	 CY
5	 Megan McCaffrey	 CY
6	 Eliza Wood	 NC
		
U19 Male 2 KM Beach Run		
1	 Lachlan Bean	 ML
2	 Iwan Scrivens	 SO
3	 Kallan Parsons	 TI
4	 Archie Maslen	 CO
5	 Kai Belmont	 SO
		
U19 Male Beach Flags		
1	 Rory Wallace	 CY
2	 Ethan Nguyen	 CY
3	 Tana Wesley	 QM
4	 Rafferty Mullens	 BY
5	 Leo Kiperman	 CO
		
U19 Male Beach Sprint		
1	 Rory Wallace	 CY
2	 Tana Wesley	 QM
3	 Bradley Varkevisser	 SO
4	 Lachlan Broomhall	 SN
5	 Ethan Nguyen	 CY
6	 Innes Raeburn	 CY
		
U19 Female Beach Relay		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
3	 North Cottesloe Gold	 NC
4	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
5	 City 100	 CY
6	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
		

U19 Male Beach Relay		
1	 City 100	 CY
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Swanbourne Nedlands Rampant Swans	 SN
4	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
5	 Sorrento Black	 SO
6	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
U17 Female 2 KM Beach Run		
1	 Isabella Neervoort	 CO
2	 Gracie Byrne	 CY
3	 Sasha Pallis	 CY
4	 Charlotte King	 NC
5	 Macy Boisvert	 TI
6	 Elyn Bawden	 SO
		
U17 Female Beach Flags		
1	 Giaan Versace	 TI
2	 Macy Boisvert	 TI
3	 Akayla Fairclough	 SO
4	 Ava Yujnovich	 SO
5	 Lilliana Yujnovich	 SO
6	 Charlie Tilbury	 CB
		
U17 Female Beach Relay		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
3	 Sorrento Black	 SO
4	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
5	 Scarboro Black	 SB
6	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
U17 Female Beach Sprint		
1	 Lilliana Yujnovich	 SO
2	 Macy Boisvert	 TI
3	 Emma Atwell	 CO
4	 Zoe Baldwin	 NC
5	 Sasha Pallis	 CY
6	 Akayla Fairclough	 SO
		
U17 Male 2 KM Beach Run		
1	 Owen Chaloner	 NC
2	 Tom Linehan	 SO
3	 Robbie Duffy	 SO
4	 Oscar Blackaby	 SB
5	 Noah Boruff	 NC
6	 Sebastian Duffy	 BP
		
U17 Male Beach Flags		
1	 Sebastien Gibbs	 NC
2	 Kem McMahon	 FM
3	 Joel Shallue	 QM
4	 Noah Skelton	 SO
5	 Piotr Grygierczyk	 SO
6	 Taiyo Findlay	 ML
		
U17 Male Beach Relay		
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
3	 Coogee Beach Blue	 CB
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
5	 Sorrento Blue	 SO
6	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
		
U17 Male Beach Sprint		
1	 Oliver Defrancesco	 SN
2	 Jay Goodwin	 SO
3	 Logan Grant	 QM
4	 Sebastien Gibbs	 NC
5	 James Wall	 NC
6	 Sebastian Duffy	 BP
		
U15 Female 2 KM Beach Run		
1	 Milla Tan	 TI
2	 Ruby Murphy-Marshall	 SO
3	 Salome Woodland	 BY
4	 Aoife Dunne	 ML
5	 Martha Chin	 SO
		
U15 Female Beach Flags		
1	 Coco Fonseca	 SB
2	 Matilda Ashton	 NC
3	 Emma Paice	 SO
4	 Scarlett Callaghan	 SO
5	 Ellie O’Grady	 SO
6	 Jasmin Whitaker	 QM
		
U15 Female Beach Sprint		
1	 Scarlett Callaghan	 SO
2	 Jasmin Whitaker	 QM
3	 Emma Paice	 SO
4	 Coco Fonseca	 SB
5	 Danja Worrad	 TI
6	 Isobell Stack	 CB
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U15 Male 2 KM Beach Run	 	
1	 Sam O’Brien	 SO
2	 Bo Watters	 TI
3	 Isaac May	 TI
4	 Liam Johnson	 SO
5	 Bodhi Duffy	 SO
6	 Finn O’Grady	 SO
		
U15 Male Beach Flags		
1	 Trent Yates	 TI
2	 Elijah Caruana	 BN
3	 Luke Sandy	 CO
4	 Hayden Sadler	 SO
5	 Billy Hawkes	 TI
6	 Simon Pelc	 QM
		
U15 Male Beach Sprint		
1	 Trent Yates	 TI
2	 Luke Sandy	 CO
3	 Elijah Caruana	 BN
4	 Hudson Lloyd	 NC
5	 Eamon Stott	 SO
6	 Hudson Hort	 TI
		
U14 Female 2 KM Beach Run		
1	 Mia Watters	 TI
2	 Matilda Skuse	 CO
3	 Lyla Reed	 SH
4	 Olivia Memik	 ML
5	 Chantal Pallis	 CY
6	 Emmee Bevan	 SO
		
U14 Female Beach Flags		
1	 Ella Ireland	 SO
2	 Mia Bright	 SO
3	 Lyla Reed	 SH
4	 India Murphy	 BY
5	 Olivia Kuscevic	 TI
6	 Tatum Carr	 TI
		
U14 Female Beach Sprint		
1	 Mia Bright	 SO
2	 Aliyah Plint	 SO
3	 Claire Curtis	 SO
4	 Ella Ireland	 SO
5	 Lena Pawlowitsch	 SB
6	 Lily Prentice	 NC
		
U14 Male 2 KM Beach Run		
1	 Sam Butler	 TI
2	 Xavier Ralph	 SO
3	 Oliver Kuhn	 BY
4	 Kostya Rogoysky	 SO
5	 Aidan Beer	 SO
6	 Jack Hurst	 CO
		
U14 Male Beach Flags		
1	 Nathanael D’Alessandro	 SB
2	 Nicholas Whitehouse	 SO
3	 Kai Barrett	 SO
4	 Jorge Ferreira	 MH
5	 Roman Vladich	 FL
6	 Jasper Dunsford-Goodwin	 CB
		
U14 Male Beach Sprint		
1	 Kai Barrett	 SO
2	 Henry Hinson	 QM
3	 Nicholas Whitehouse	 SO
4	 Nathanael D’Alessandro	 SB
5	 Monty Stork	 CO
6	 Zane Jessamine	 YP
		
Youth Female Beach Relay		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Scarboro Black	 SB
4	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
5	 Quinns Mindarie Blue	 QM
6	 Coogee Beach Blue	 CB
		
Youth Male Beach Relay		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Quinns Mindarie Blue	 QM
4	 Fremantle Blue	 FM
5	 Scarboro Black	 SB
6	 Trigg Island RED	 TI

OCEAN Results
		
Open Female 3 Person Board Relay	 	
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
4	 City 100	 CY
5	 Trigg Island WHITE	 TI
6	 Trigg Island BLACK	 TI
		
Open Female 3 Person Taplin Relay	 	
1	 Trigg Island WHITE	 TI
2	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
3	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
4	 City 100	 CY
5	 Trigg Island GOLD	 TI
6	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
		
Open Female 4 Person Surf Team		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 City 100	 CY
3	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
4	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
5	 City 1925 	 CY
6	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
		
Open Female Board Race		
1	 Annika Negus	 TI
2	 Femke Negus	 TI
3	 Ceris Humble	 TI
4	 Macy Boisvert	 TI
5	 Milly Kok	 TI
6	 Samantha Brigden	 TI
		
Open Female Double Ski		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
3	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
4	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
5	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
6	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
		
Open Female Ironwoman		
1	 Harriet Chin	 SO
2	 Kyra Tierney	 NC
3	 Sienna Howard	 TI
4	 Macy Boisvert	 TI
5	 Daisy Hewitt	 CY
6	 Hannah Young	 CY
		
Open Female Single Ski		
1	 Jazmin Shipway Carr	 TI
2	 Emma Stegmann	 TI
3	 Femke Negus	 TI
4	 Jaime Roberts	 SO
5	 Zoe Moore	 TI
6	 Ashlee Booker	 SO
		
Open Female Single Ski Relay		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
4	 City 100	 CY
5	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
6	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
		
Open Female Surf Race		
1	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
2	 Daisy Hewitt	 CY
3	 Annika Negus	 TI
4	 Samantha Brigden	 TI
5	 Sophie Lloyd	 TI
6	 Alexandra Slocombe	 CY
		
Open Male 3 Person Board Relay	 	
1	 City 100	 CY
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
4	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
5	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
6	 City 1925	 CY
		
Open Male 4 Person Surf Team		
1	 City 100	 CY
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
4	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
5	 Fremantle Blue	 FM
6	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
		
Open Male 6 Person Taplin Relay	 	
1	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
2	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
3	 City 100	 CY
4	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
5	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
6	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
		

Open Male Board Race		
1	 Patrick Eley	 SO
2	 Ethan Jackson	 CY
3	 Jules Fredonnet	 CY
4	 Iwan Scrivens	 SO
5	 Blake Allsopp	 SO
6	 Brodie Lee	 ML
		
Open Male Double Ski		
1	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
2	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
3	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
4	 City 100	 CY
5	 North Cottesloe Yellow	 NC
6	 Trigg Island WHITE	 TI
		
Open Male Ironman		
1	 Patrick Eley	 SO
2	 Charlie Hewitt	 CY
3	 Ethan Jackson	 CY
4	 Jules Fredonnet	 CY
5	 Harry Hewitt	 CY
6	 Iwan Scrivens	 SO
		
Open Male Single Ski		
1	 Patrick Eley	 SO
2	 Oscar Jones	 SO
3	 Reece Baker	 TI
4	 Steve Bird	 NC
5	 Jeremy Doney	 NC
6	 Daniel Humble	 TI
		
Open Male Single Ski Relay		
1	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
2	 City 100	 CY
3	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
4	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
5	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
6	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
		
Open Male Surf Race		
1	 Harry Hewitt	 CY
2	 Charlie Hewitt	 CY
3	 Adam Sudlow	 NC
4	 Ben Jones	 ML
5	 Thomas Dreverman	 FM
6	 Joe Quirk	 SO
		
Open Mixed 6 Person Taplin Relay		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
3	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
4	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
5	 City 100	 CY
6	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
		
Open Mixed Double Ski		
1	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
2	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
3	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
4	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
5	 City 1925	 CY
6	 Sorrento TEAM D	 SO
		
U19 Female 3 Person Board Relay		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 Cottesloe White	 CO
5	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
6	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
		
U19 Female 3 Person Taplin Relay		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 Trigg Island GOLD	 TI
4	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
5	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
6	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
		
U19 Female 4 Person Surf Team		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
4	 Trigg Island Red	 TI
5	 City 100	 CY
6	 Sorrento TEAM B 	 SO
		
U19 Female Board Race		
1	 Annika Negus	 TI
2	 Sienna Howard	 TI
3	 Samantha Brigden	 TI
4	 Harriet Chin	 SO
5	 Bethany Bamforth	 ML
6	 Eva Hawkes	 TI
		
U19 Female Double Ski		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 City 100	 CY
3	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
4	 Trigg Island WHITE	 TI
5	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
6	 Sorrento TEAM C	 SO
		

52 Section 02: RECORDS & RESULTS



U19 Female Ironwoman		
1	 Annika Negus	 TI
2	 Harriet Chin	 SO
3	 Hannah Young	 CY
4	 Sienna Howard	 TI
5	 Samantha Brigden	 TI
6	 Bethany Bamforth	 ML
		
U19 Female Single Ski		
1	 Hannah Young	 CY
2	 Zoe Moore	 TI
3	 Harriet Chin	 SO
4	 Tara Kearns-Flanagan	 CO
5	 Annika Negus	 TI
6	 Eva Hawkes	 TI
		
U19 Female Single Ski Relay		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Trigg Island WHITE	 TI
4	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
5	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
6	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
		
U19 Female Surf Race		
1	 Harriet Chin	 SO
2	 Annika Negus	 TI
3	 Samantha Brigden	 TI
4	 Hannah Young	 CY
5	 Sienna Howard	 TI
6	 Lani Baxter	 SO
		
U19 Male 3 Person Board Relay		
1	 City 100	 CY
2	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
3	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
4	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
5	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
6	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
		
U19 Male 3 Person Taplin Relay	 	
1	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 City 100	 CY
4	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
5	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
6	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
		
U19 Male 4 Person Surf Team		
1	 City 100	 CY
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
4	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
5	 City 1925	 CY
6	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
		
U19 Male Board Race		
1	 Jules Fredonnet	 CY
2	 Brodie Lee	 ML
3	 Donnacha Murphy	 ML
4	 Iwan Scrivens	 SO
5	 Kallan Parsons	 TI
6	 Kaleb Knoetze	 NC
		
U19 Male Double Ski		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 City 100	 CY
3	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
4	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
5	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
6	 North Cottesloe Yellow	 NC
		
U19 Male Ironman		
1	 Jules Fredonnet	 CY
2	 Donnacha Murphy	 ML
3	 Brodie Lee	 ML
4	 Lachlan Bean	 ML
5	 Iwan Scrivens	 SO
6	 Flynn Czaplinski	 CO
		
U19 Male Single Ski		
1	 Lachlan Bean	 ML
2	 Iwan Scrivens	 SO
3	 Benjamin Toms	 TI
4	 Jules Fredonnet	 CY
5	 Blake Monaghan	 TI
6	 Maynard Gray	 NC
		
U19 Male Single Ski Relay		
1	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
2	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 City 100	 CY
5	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
6	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
		
U19 Male Surf Race		
1	 Brodie Lee	 ML
2	 Iwan Scrivens	 SO
3	 Flynn Czaplinski	 CO
4	 Thomas Dreverman	 FM
5	 Eben Prinsloo	 FM
6	 Ethan Higgs	 CY
		

U17 Female 3 Person Board Relay		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Cottesloe White	 CO
4	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
5	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
6	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
		
U17 Female 3 Person Taplin Relay		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
4	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
5	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
6	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
		
U17 Female 4 Person Surf Team		
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
3	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
4	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
		
U17 Female Board Race		
1	 Alisha Beeney	 TI
2	 Milly Kok	 TI
3	 Macy Boisvert	 TI
4	 Charlotte King	 NC
5	 Elyn Bawden	 SO
6	 Isabella Neervoort	 CO
		
U17 Female Ironwoman		
1	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
2	 Kyra Tierney	 NC
3	 Kate Rigoll	 CO
4	 Tahlia Croome	 SO
5	 Alisha Beeney	 TI
6	 Anna Lockley	 BY
		
U17 Female Single Ski		
1	 Anna Lockley	 BY
2	 Grace Aitchison	 TI
3	 Milly Kok	 TI
4	 Annabel Hurst	 CO
5	 Macy Boisvert	 TI
6	 Marla Stewart	 CY
		
U17 Female Single Ski Relay		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
4	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
5	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
		
U17 Female Surf Race	 	
1	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
2	 Kate Rigoll	 CO
3	 Tahlia Croome	 SO
4	 Kyra Tierney	 NC
5	 Elyn Bawden	 SO
6	 Alice Massey	 NC
		
U17 Male 3 Person Board Relay		
1	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 City 100	 CY
4	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
5	 City of Bunbury TEAM A	 BY
6	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
		
U17 Male 3 Person Taplin Relay		
1	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
4	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
5	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
6	 City 100	 CY
		
U17 Male 4 Person Surf Team		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 City 100 	 CY
5	 Sorrento TEAM B 	 SO
		
U17 Male Board Race		
1	 Eoghan Barrowclough	 SO
2	 Tighe O’Toole	 CY
3	 Archie Ryan	 CY
4	 Markus Booth	 SO
5	 Jackson Tasker	 SO
6	 Ned Eldon	 CO
		
U17 Male Ironman		
1	 Markus Booth	 SO
2	 Tom Linehan	 SO
3	 Eddie Davis	 NC
4	 Ned Eldon	 CO
5	 Mitchell Tuckey	 BY
6	 Tighe O’Toole	 CY
		

U17 Male Single Ski		
1	 Tom Linehan	 SO
2	 Archie Ryan	 CY
3	 Tristan Oesterwinter	 SO
4	 Eoghan Barrowclough	 SO
5	 Ned Eldon	 CO
6	 Mitchell Tuckey	 BY
		
U17 Male Single Ski Relay		
1	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
2	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
5	 City of Bunbury TEAM B	 BY
6	 Sorrento TEAM C	 SO
		
U17 Male Surf Race		
1	 Tighe O’Toole	 CY
2	 Tom Linehan	 SO
3	 Eddie Davis	 NC
4	 Markus Booth	 SO
5	 Taj Dorrington	 NC
6	 Bay Bruce	 CY
		
U15 Female Board Race		
1	 Skye McCaffrey	 NC
2	 Danja Worrad	 TI
3	 Alexis Harvey	 ML
4	 Holly Dimov	 CB
5	 Allegra Howard	 TI
6	 Neive Tierney	 NC
		
U15 Female Ironwoman		
1	 Neive Tierney	 NC
2	 Skye McCaffrey	 NC
3	 Josie Burton	 TI
4	 Ruby Sudintas	 ML
5	 Leah van den Adel	 CY
6	 Allegra Howard	 TI
		
U15 Female Surf Race		
1	 Neive Tierney	 NC
2	 Salome Woodland	 BY
3	 Martha Chin	 SO
4	 Michellie Neaves	 BY
5	 Ruby Sudintas	 ML
6	 Lila Turner	 SB
		
U15 Male Board Race		
1	 Billy Hawkes	 TI
2	 Bo Watters	 TI
3	 Finlay Sullivan	 NC
4	 Oliver Browne	 TI
5	 Hudson Doherty-Gardiner	 SO
6	 Matthew Brownrigg	 SO
		
U15 Male Ironman		
1	 Oliver Browne	 TI
2	 Billy Hawkes	 TI
3	 Patrick Campbell	 ML
4	 Isaac May	 TI
5	 Bo Watters	 TI
6	 Hudson Doherty-Gardiner	 SO
		
U15 Male Surf Race		
1	 Oliver Browne	 TI
2	 Billy Hawkes	 TI
3	 Lars Belmont	 SO
4	 Bodhi Duffy	 SO
5	 Patrick Campbell	 ML
6	 Pieter Prinsloo	 FM
		
U14 Female Board Race		
1	 Ellie Neervoort	 TI
2	 India Murphy	 BY
3	 Ella Brigden	 TI
4	 Ava Millar	 ML
5	 Zoe Doyle	 SB
6	 Gabriella Jackson	 SO
		
U14 Female Ironwoman		
1	 Ellie Neervoort	 TI
2	 Ella Brigden	 TI
3	 Amelie Gorman	 SH
4	 Ruby Campbell	 CB
5	 Lyla Reed	 SH
6	 India Murphy	 BY
		
U14 Female Surf Race		
1	 Ellie Neervoort	 TI
2	 Ella Brigden	 TI
3	 Ruby Campbell	 CB
4	 Amelie Gorman	 SH
5	 India Murphy	 BY
6	 Emmee Bevan	 SO
		
U14 Male Board Race		
1	 Kostya Rogoysky	 SO
2	 Monty Stork	 CO
3	 Sam Butler	 TI
4	 Max Kryachok	 SB
5	 Liam Barrowclough	 SO
6	 Oliver Kuhn	 BY
		  SU
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U14 Male Ironman		
1	 Monty Stork	 CO
2	 Kostya Rogoysky	 SO
3	 Sam Butler	 TI
4	 Oliver Kuhn	 BY
5	 Max Kryachok	 SB
6	 Jack Hurst	 CO
		
U14 Male Surf Race		
1	 Monty Stork	 CO
2	 Liam Barrowclough	 SO
3	 Jack Keys	 NC
4	 Oliver Kuhn	 BY
5	 Max Kryachok	 SB
6	 Jack Hurst	 CO
		
Youth Female 3 Person Board Relay		
1	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
2	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
3	 Coogee Beach Blue	 CB
4	 City of Bunbury TEAM A	 BY
5	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
6	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
		
Youth Female 4 Person Cameron Relay		
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
3	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
4	 Coogee Beach Blue	 CB
5	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
6	 City of Bunbury TEAM A	 BY
		
Youth Female 4 Person Surf Team	 	
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
4	 City of Bunbury TEAM A	 BY
5	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
6	 Scarboro Black	 SB
		
Youth Male 3 Person Board Relay		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 Sorrento TEAM C	 SO
4	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
5	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
6	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
		
Youth Male 4 Person Cameron Relay	 	
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
4	 Fremantle Blue	 FM
5	 Sorrento TEAM D	 SO
6	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
		
Youth Male 4 Person Surf Team		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
4	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
5	 Sorrento TEAM C	 SO
6	 North Cottesloe Blue 	 NC

SURF BOAT Results
		  	
Open Female Surf Boat		
1	 North Cottesloe Cin Cin	 NC
2	 City Sunrise	 CY
3	 North Cottesloe Glossies	 NC
4	 Fremantle Fire	 FM
5	 North Cottesloe Calypso	 NC
		
Open Male Surf Boat		
1	 North Cottesloe Moose	 NC
2	 City Hot Toddies	 CY
3	 North Cottesloe Saints	 NC
4	 Fremantle Burritos	 FM
5	 North Cottesloe Uppies	 NC
		
Open Mixed Surf Boat Relay		
1	 Fremantle Blue	 FM
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Mullaloo Gold	 ML
4	 Mullaloo Blue	 ML
		
Reserve Female Surf Boat		
1	 North Cottesloe Impact	 NC
2	 Broome Heat	 BM
3	 North Cottesloe Devocean	 NC
4	 North Cottesloe Splash	 NC
5	 City Mystique	 CY
6	 City Peaches	 CY
		
Reserve Male Surf Boat		
1	 North Cottesloe Charmers	 NC
2	 North Cottesloe Peelers	 NC
3	 City Gondola	 CY
4	 City Red	 CY
5	 Fremantle Tostadas	 FM
6	 City Black	 CY
		

U23 Female Surf Boat		
1	 North Cottesloe Glossies	 NC
2	 Secret Harbour Slay Onions	 SH
3	 Mullaloo Mermaids	 ML
4	 Mullaloo Waves	 ML
5	 Fremantle Shark Bait	 FM
6	 Mullaloo Bin Chickens	 ML
		
U23 Male Surf Boat		
1	 North Cottesloe Saints	 NC
2	 North Cottesloe Moose	 NC
3	 Mullaloo Stormbringers	 ML
4	 Secret Harbour Screamin Seamen	 SH
5	 North Cottesloe Cruisers	 NC
6	 Scarboro Sharks	 SB
		
U19 Female Surf Boat		
1	 Sorrento Sunken Treasures	 SO
2	 North Cottesloe Calypso	 NC
3	 Mullaloo Mermaids	 ML
4	 Fremantle Spirit	 FM
5	 Mullaloo Bin Chickens	 ML
6	 Sorrento Sunken Seashells	 SO
		
U19 Male Surf Boat		
1	 North Cottesloe Titans	 NC
2	 Fremantle Fremantle Sons	 FM
3	 Cottesloe Crushers	 CO
4	 Scarboro Plumbers	 SB
5	 Sorrento Swashbucklers	 SP
6	 Mullaloo Flying Fairies	 ML

LIFESAVING Results
		
Open Female Champion Lifesaver		
1	 Grace Young	 CY
2	 Paige Stegmann	 TI
3	 Leesa Equid	 SN
4	 Stella Morgan	 CY
5	 Melanie Thomas	 SB
6	 Poppy Finucane	 NC
		
Open Male Champion Lifesaver		
1	 Kent Jenkinson	 CY
2	 Joe Quirk	 SO
3	 Harrison Abrahams	 SO
4	 Timothy Tucak	 SN
5	 Hudson Baird	 TI
6	 Patrick Eley	 SO
		
Open Mixed 6 Person Champion Patrol		
1	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
2	 Swanbourne Nedlands Rampant Swans	 SN
3	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
Open Mixed First Aid		
1	 Swanbourne Nedlands Rampant Swans	 SN
2	 Sorrento White	 SO
3	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
4	 Sorrento Black	 SO
5	 Sorrento Blue	 SO
6	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U19 Female Champion Lifesaver		
1	 Hannah Young	 CY
2	 Ava Smith	 NC
3	 Harriet Chin	 SO
4	 Lily Tolev	 SB
		
U19 Male Champion Lifesaver		
1	 Ethan Higgs	 CY
2	 Iwan Scrivens	 SO
3	 Kai Belmont	 SO
		
U19 Mixed First Aid		
1	 Sorrento White	 SO
2	 Sorrento Black	 SO
3	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U17 Female Champion Lifesaver	 	
1	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
2	 Eva Hill	 ML
3	 Florence Shaw	 CY
4	 Charlotte King	 NC
5	 Amelie England	 CY
6	 Jessica Jones	 ML
		
U17 Male Champion Lifesaver		
1	 Owen Chaloner	 NC
2	 Markus Booth	 SO
3	 Archie Ryan	 CY
4	 Jackson Tasker	 SO
5	 Izayah Wakely	 ML
6	 Finn Barrett	 ML
		

U17 Mixed 4 Person Champion Patrol		
1	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Trigg Island TEAM A	 TI
4	 Swanbourne Nedlands Rampant Swans	 SN
5	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
		
U17 Mixed First Aid		
1	 Cottesloe TEAM A	 CO
2	 Swanbourne Nedlands Rampant Swans	 SN
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 Alkimos TEAM D	 AK
5	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
6	 Alkimos TEAM C	 AK
		
U15 Female Champion Lifesaver		
1	 Martha Chin	 SO
2	 Salome Woodland	 BY
3	 Ruby Sudintas	 ML
4	 Josie Burton	 TI
5	 Lydia Defrancesco	 SN
6	 Skye McCaffrey	 NC
		
U15 Male Champion Lifesaver		
1	 Lars Belmont	 SO
2	 Hudson Hort	 TI
3	 Harry Linehan	 SO
		
U15 Mixed First Aid		
1	 Sorrento White	 SO
2	 Sorrento Blue	 SO
3	 Sorrento Green	 SO
4	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
5	 Sorrento Black	 SO
6	 Alkimos TEAM A	 AK
		
U14 Female Champion Lifesaver	 	
1	 Amelia Hill	 ML
2	 Olivia Allum	 SO
3	 Lucy England	 CY
		
U14 Male Champion Lifesaver		
1	 Monty Stork	 CO
2	 Aidan Beer	 SO
3	 Aiden Geneff	 SO

SURF RESCUE Results
		  	
Open Female 5 Person R&R		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
		
Open Female Board Rescue		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 City 100	 CY
3	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
4	 Sorrento 	 SO
5	 Trigg Island GOLD	 TI
6	 Trigg Island WHITE	 TI
		
Open Female Rescue Tube Rescue	 	
1	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
2	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
3	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
4	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
5	 Sorrento TEAM C	 SO
6	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
		
Open Female Surf Belt		
1	 Annika Negus	 TI
2	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
3	 Femke Negus	 TI
4	 Sophie Lloyd	 TI
5	 Poppy Finucane	 NC
6	 Alice Harwood	 SB
		
Open Male Board Rescue		
1	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
2	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
3	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
4	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
5	 City 100	 CY
6	 Sorrento TEAM C	 SO
		
Open Male Rescue Tube Rescue	 	
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
3	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
4	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
5	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
6	 Sorrento TEAM C	 SO
		
Open Male Surf Belt		
1	 Tommaso D’Orsogna	 NC
2	 Byron Kimber	 SO
3	 Jake Smith	 TI
4	 Patrick Eley	 SO
5	 Blake Allsopp	 SO
6	 Archie Davis	 NC
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Open Mixed 5 Person R&R		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Scarboro TEAM B	 SB
3	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
Open Mixed 6 Person R&R	 	
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
3	 Scarboro TEAM B	 SB
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
Open Mixed March Past		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 City 100	 CY
3	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
4	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
5	 North Cottesloe Stars in Stripes	 NC
6	 Sorrento Gold	 SO
		
U23 Mixed March Past		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
4	 Sorrento Gold	 SO
5	 North Cottesloe Stars in Stripes	 NC
		
U19 Female Board Rescue		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Trigg Island WHITE	 TI
3	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
4	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
5	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
6	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
		
U19 Female Rescue Tube Rescue		
1	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
2	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
5	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
6	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
		
U19 Female Surf Belt		
1	 Annika Negus	 TI
2	 Hannah Young	 CY
3	 Harriet Chin	 SO
4	 Samantha Brigden	 TI
5	 Lani Baxter	 SO
6	 Bethany Bamforth	 ML
		
U19 Male Board Rescue		
1	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
2	 City 1925	 CY
3	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
4	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
5	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
6	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
		
U19 Male Rescue Tube Rescue		
1	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
2	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
5	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
		
U19 Male Surf Belt		
1	 Brodie Lee	 ML
2	 Jules Fredonnet	 CY
3	 Iwan Scrivens	 SO
4	 Kaleb Knoetze	 NC
		
U17 Female Board Rescue		
1	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
4	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
5	 Trigg Island WHITE	 TI
6	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
		

U17 Female Surf Belt		
1	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
2	 Alice Massey	 NC
3	 Elyn Bawden	 SO
4	 Kyra Tierney	 NC
5	 Charlie Czaplinska	 CO
6	 Tahlia Croome	 SO
		
U17 Male Board Rescue		
1	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
2	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
3	 City 100	 CY
4	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
5	 North Cottesloe Yellow	 NC
6	 Sorrento TEAM D	 SO
		
U17 Male Surf Belt		
1	 Bay Bruce	 CY
2	 Markus Booth	 SO
3	 Eoghan Barrowclough	 SO
4	 Henri van den Adel	 CY
5	 Obi Rogers	 NC
6	 Finn Barrett	 ML
		
U15 Mixed 2 Person R&R		
1	 Sorrento Gold	 SO
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Coogee Beach A	 CB
4	 Scarboro White	 SB
5	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
6	 Coogee Beach M	 CB
		
U15 Mixed 5 Person R&R		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
3	 Coogee Beach A	 CB
		
Youth Female Board Rescue		
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Coogee Beach 2	 CB
3	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
4	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
5	 Trigg Island WHITE	 TI
6	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
		
Youth Male Board Rescue		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
3	 Sorrento TEAM C	 SO
4	 Trigg Island GOLD	 TI
5	 Sorrento TEAM B	 SO
6	 Scarboro Black	 SB

2024 WA Pool Rescue 
Championships, Youth/Open
2024 Pool Rescue WA Champion Club
Sorrento SLSC
Awarded to the club with the highest total point score 
across Nipper, Youth, Open & Masters, at the 2024 Pool 
Rescue Championships.

Results 

Open Female 100m Manikin Carry w Fins	
1	 Lani Baxter	 SO
2	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
3	 Elise Airey	 SO
4	 Sofie Frichot	 SO
5	 Felicity Metcalfe	 SH
6	 Annika Rasmussen	 ML
		

Open Female 100m Manikin Tow w Fins		
1	 Lani Baxter	 SO
2	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
3	 Kate Rigoll	 CO
4	 Elise Airey	 SO
5	 Felicity Metcalfe	 SH
6	 Sofie Frichot	 SO
		
Open Female 100m Rescue Medley		
1	 Elise Airey	 SO
2	 Sofie Frichot	 SO
3	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
4	 Lani Baxter	 SO
5	 Felicity Metcalfe	 SH
6	 Annika Rasmussen	 ML
		
Open Female 12.5m Line Throw		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
3	 Coogee Beach 1	 CB
		
Open Female 200m Obstacles		
1	 Sofie Frichot	 SO
2	 Kate Rigoll	 CO
3	 Lani Baxter	 SO
4	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
5	 Elise Airey	 SO
6	 Jessica Madden	 SO
		
Open Female 200m Super Lifesaver		
1	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
2	 Lani Baxter	 SO
3	 Sofie Frichot	 SO
4	 Felicity Metcalfe	 SH
		
Open Female 4x25m Manikin Carry Relay	
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
3	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
4	 Sorrento White	 SO
5	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
		
Open Female 4x50m Medley Relay		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Cottesloe White	 CO
3	 Sorrento White	 SO
4	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
		
Open Female 4x50m Obstacle Relay	 	
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
3	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
4	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
Open Female 50m Freestyle w Fins		
1	 Lani Baxter	 SO
2	 Sofie Frichot	 SO
3	 Jessica Madden	 SO
4	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
5	 Felicity Metcalfe	 SH
6	 Elise Airey	 SO
		
Open Female 50m Manikin Carry	 	
1	 Elise Airey	 SO
2	 Felicity Metcalfe	 SH
3	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
4	 Lani Baxter	 SO
5	 Annika Rasmussen	 ML
		
Open Male 100m Manikin Carry w Fins	 	
1	 Jake Smith	 TI
2	 Harrison Hynes	 TI
3	 Kelton Rothnie	 TI
4	 Flynn Czaplinski	 CO
5	 David McCarron	 SH
6	 Will Everett	 CO
		
Open Male 100m Manikin Tow w Fins	 	
1	 Jake Smith	 TI
2	 Harrison Hynes	 TI
3	 Kelton Rothnie	 TI
4	 Flynn Czaplinski	 CO
5	 David McCarron	 SH
		
Open Male 100m Rescue Medley		
1	 Jake Smith	 TI
2	 Kelton Rothnie	 TI
3	 Harrison Hynes	 TI
4	 Zachary Brown	 CY
5	 Flynn Czaplinski	 CO
6	 Gerard Hurst	 CO
		
Open Male 12.5m Line Throw		
1	 Trigg Island TEAM A	 TI
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
4	 Sorrento Blue	 SO
5	 Sorrento Red	 SO
6	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
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Open Male 200m Obstacles		
1	 Jake Smith	 TI
2	 Matthew Colliss	 CY
3	 Harrison Hynes	 TI
4	 Flynn Czaplinski	 CO
5	 Ethan Jackson	 CY
6	 Joel Doddy	 TI
		
Open Male 200m Super Lifesaver		
1	 Jake Smith	 TI
2	 Harrison Hynes	 TI
3	 Flynn Czaplinski	 CO
4	 Robert Czaplinski	 CO
		
Open Male 4x25m Manikin Carry Relay	 	
1	 Trigg Island TEAM A	 TI
2	 City TEAM A	 CY
3	 Sorrento Green	 SO
4	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
5	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
6	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
Open Male 4x50m Medley Relay		
1	 Trigg Island TEAM A	 TI
2	 City TEAM A	 CY
3	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
5	 Cottesloe White	 CO
6	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
Open Male 4x50m Obstacle Relay		
1	 Trigg Island TEAM A	 TI
2	 TEAM A	 CY
3	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
5	 Sorrento White	 SO
6	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
		
Open Male 50m Freestyle w Fins		
1	 Harrison Hynes	 TI
2	 Jake Smith	 TI
3	 Kelton Rothnie	 TI
4	 Flynn Czaplinski	 CO
5	 Matthew Colliss	 CY
6	 Will Everett	 CO
		
Open Male 50m Manikin Carry		
1	 Jake Smith	 TI
2	 Harrison Hynes	 TI
3	 Kelton Rothnie	 TI
4	 Matthew Colliss	 CY
5	 Flynn Czaplinski	 CO
6	 Joel Doddy	 TI
		
Open Mixed 4x50m Lifesaver Relay	 	
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Cottesloe Team A	 CO
3	 Cottesloe Team Black	 CO
4	 Secret Harbour Team A	 SH
5	 Sorrento Black	 SO
6	 Sorrento Red	 SO
		
U17-U19 Mixed 4x50m Lifesaver Relay	 	
1	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
2	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
3	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U17 Female 100m Manikin Carry w Fins		
1	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
2	 Kate Rigoll	 CO
3	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
4	 Carris Terry	 SH
5	 Paige Grover	 CO
		
U17 Female 100m Manikin Tow w Fins	 	
1	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
2	 Kate Rigoll	 CO
3	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
4	 Carris Terry	 SH
5	 Paige Grover	 CO
		
U17 Female 100m Rescue Medley		
1	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
2	 Kate Rigoll	 CO
3	 Carris Terry	 SH
		
U17 Female 200m Obstacles		
1	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
2	 Carris Terry	 SH
		
U17 Female 200m Super Lifesaver		
1	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
2	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
3	 Kate Rigoll	 CO
4	 Carris Terry	 SH
		
U17 Female 50m Freestyle w Fins		
1	 Kate Rigoll	 CO
2	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
3	 Carris Terry	 SH
4	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
5	 Lani Baxter	 SO
6	 Paige Grover	 CO
		

U17 Female 50m Manikin Carry		
1	 Eleanor Flowers	 TI
2	 Jaimee Traeger	 SO
3	 Kate Rigoll	 CO
4	 Carris Terry	 SH
5	 Paige Grover	 CO
		
U17 Male 100m Manikin Carry w Fins	 	
1	 Mitchell Tuckey	 BY
2	 Markus Booth	 SO
3	 Jackson Tasker	 SO
4	 Alexander Gardner	 PB
		
U17 Male 100m Manikin Tow w Fins		
1	 Mitchell Tuckey	 BY
2	 Markus Booth	 SO
3	 Jackson Tasker	 SO
4	 Alexander Gardner	 PB
		
U17 Male 100m Rescue Medley		
1	 Mitchell Tuckey	 BY
2	 Markus Booth	 SO
3	 Jackson Tasker	 SO
		
U17 Male 200m Obstacles		
1	 Samuel Hicks	 CO
2	 Mitchell Tuckey	 BY
3	 Markus Booth	 SO
4	 Jackson Tasker	 SO
5	 Alexander Gardner	 PB
		
U17 Male 200m Super Lifesaver		
1	 Mitchell Tuckey	 BY
2	 Markus Booth	 SO
		
U17 Male 50m Freestyle w Fins		
1	 Samuel Hicks	 CO
2	 Mitchell Tuckey	 BY
3	 Javi Marginet	 CO
4	 Markus Booth	 SO
5	 Nicholas Kryachok	 SB
6	 Jackson Tasker	 SO
		
U17 Male 50m Manikin Carry		
1	 Markus Booth	 SO
2	 Jackson Tasker	 SO
3	 Mitchell Tuckey	 BY
4	 Alexander Gardner	 PB
		
U17 Female 12.5m Line Throw		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
		
U17 Male 12.5m Line Throw		
1	 Sorrento White	 SO
2	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
3	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U15 Female 100m Manikin Carry w Fins		
1	 Hitomi Cording	 CO
2	 Charlie Czaplinska	 CO
3	 Lily Lucas	 CO
4	 Sienna Stone	 SO
5	 Tahlia Croome	 SO
		
U15 Female 100m Manikin Tow w Fins		
1	 Charlie Czaplinska	 CO
2	 Hitomi Cording	 CO
3	 Sienna Stone	 SO
4	 Lily Lucas	 CO
5	 Tahlia Croome	 SO
		
U15 Female 100m Rescue Medley	 	
1	 Hitomi Cording	 CO
2	 Charlie Czaplinska	 CO
		
U15 Female 200m Obstacles		
1	 Charlie Czaplinska	 CO
2	 Hitomi Cording	 CO
3	 Tahlia Croome	 SO
4	 Sienna Stone	 SO
		
U15 Female 200m Super Lifesaver		
1	 Hitomi Cording	 CO
2	 Charlie Czaplinska	 CO
		
U15 Female 50m Freestyle w Fins		
1	 Hitomi Cording	 CO
2	 Charlie Czaplinska	 CO
3	 Lily Lucas	 CO
4	 Tahlia Croome	 SO
5	 Sienna Stone	 SO
6	 Alanna Moroney	 SB
		
U15 Female 50m Manikin Carry		
1	 Hitomi Cording	 CO
2	 Charlie Czaplinska	 CO
3	 Lily Lucas	 CO
4	 Tahlia Croome	 SO
5	 Sienna Stone	 SO
		

U15 Male 100m Manikin Carry w Fins	 	
1	 Hamish Gardner	 PB
2	 Jack Brohman	 SB
		
U15 Male 100m Manikin Tow w Fins		
1	 Jack Brohman	 SB
		
U15 Male 100m Rescue Medley		
1	 Hamish Gardner	 PB
2	 Ky Koerber	 SB
		
U15 Male 200m Obstacles		
1	 Brandon Pawle	 SO
2	 Ky Koerber	 SB
3	 Jack Brohman	 SB
		
U15 Male 50m Freestyle w Fins	 	
1	 Ky Koerber	 SB
2	 Hamish Gardner	 PB
3	 Jack Brohman	 SB
		
U15 Male 50m Manikin Carry		
1	 Jack Brohman	 SB
2	 Ky Koerber	 SB
3	 Hamish Gardner	 PB
		
U15 Female 12.5m Line Throw		
1	 Cottesloe White	 CO
		
U14 Female 100m Manikin Carry w Fins		
1	 Iona Alsop	 SH
2	 Aoife Dunne	 ML
3	 Lila Turner	 SB
4	 Mikaela Cook	 SH
		
U14 Female 100m Manikin Tow w Fins	 	
1	 Iona Alsop	 SH
2	 Mikaela Cook	 SH
3	 Aoife Dunne	 ML
4	 Lila Turner	 SB
5	 Jessica Safranek	 SB
		
U14 Female 200m Obstacles		
1	 Iona Alsop	 SH
2	 Lila Turner	 SB
3	 Jessica Safranek	 SB
4	 Aoife Dunne	 ML
		
U14 Female 35m Manikin Carry		
1	 Iona Alsop	 SH
2	 Aoife Dunne	 ML
3	 Lila Turner	 SB
4	 Jessica Safranek	 SB
5	 Mikaela Cook	 SH
		
U14 Female 50m Freestyle w Fins	 	
1	 Aoife Dunne	 ML
2	 Iona Alsop	 SH
3	 Lila Turner	 SB
4	 Jessica Safranek	 SB
5	 Piper Watson	 SB
6	 Mikaela Cook	 SH
		
U14 Male 100m Manikin Carry w Fins	 	
1	 Lars Belmont	 SO
2	 Oliver Browne	 TI
		
U14 Male 100m Manikin Tow w Fins		
1	 Lars Belmont	 SO
2	 Oliver Browne	 TI
3	 Sam Needham	 SH
4	 Owen Wright	 SB
		
U14 Male 200m Obstacles		
1	 Oliver Browne	 TI
2	 Lars Belmont	 SO
3	 Owen Wright	 SB
4	 Rhys Hunter	 SO
5	 Sam Needham	 SH
6	 Austin Wyeth	 SB
		
U14 Male 35m Manikin Carry		
1	 Lars Belmont	 SO
2	 Oliver Browne	 TI
3	 Sam Needham	 SH
4	 Owen Wright	 SB
5	 Shaun Turrell	 SH
		
U14 Male 50m Freestyle w Fins		
1	 Owen Wright	 SB
2	 Oliver Browne	 TI
3	 Lars Belmont	 SO
4	 Rhys Hunter	 SO
5	 Hudson Hort	 TI
6	 Austin Wyeth	 SB
		
U14 Male 12.5m Line Throw		
1	 Scarboro Team A	 SB
2	 Secret Harbour Team A	 SH
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2024 WA IRB Championships
2024 IRB WA Champion Club
Mullaloo SLSC
Awarded to the club with the highest total point score, 
across Open & Masters, at the 2024 IRB Championships.

Results 

Open Female IRB Mass Rescue		
1	 Fremantle Flames	 FM
2	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
3	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
4	 Quinns Mindarie TEAM A	 QM
5	 Coogee Beach Coogee Cowgirls	 CB
6	 Scarboro Purple	 SB
		
Open Female IRB Single Rescue		
1	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
2	 Coogee Beach Coogee Cowgirls	 CB
3	 Quinns Mindarie TEAM A	 QM
4	 Coogee Beach Coogee Sea Sisters	 CB
5	 Fremantle Flames	 FM
		
Open Female IRB Teams Rescue		
1	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
2	 Quinns Mindarie Sandeaters	 QM
3	 Coogee Beach Coogee Cowgirls	 CB
		
Open Female IRB Tube Rescue		
1	 Fremantle Flames	 FM
2	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
3	 Quinns Mindarie TEAM A	 QM
4	 Scarboro Purple	 SB
5	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
6	 Quinns Mindarie Wizzy	 QM
		
Open Male IRB Mass Rescue		
1	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
2	 Fremantle Furious	 FM
3	 Fremantle Fa5t	 FM
4	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
5	 Fremantle Fireflies	 FM
6	 Coogee Duck Divers	 CB
		
Open Male IRB Single Rescue		
1	 Scarboro White	 SB
2	 Fremantle Fa5t	 FM
3	 Mullaloo TEAM C	 ML
4	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
5	 Mullaloo TEAM H	 ML
6	 Mullaloo TEAM D	 ML
		
Open Male IRB Teams Rescue		
1	 Scarboro White	 SB
2	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
3	 Trigg WHITE	 TI
4	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
5	 Fremantle Fast and Furious	 FM
		

Open Male IRB Tube Rescue		
1	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
2	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
3	 Fremantle Fa5t	 FM
4	 Mullaloo TEAM E	 ML
5	 Mullaloo TEAM G	 ML
6	 Mullaloo TEAM C	 ML
		
U23 Female IRB Mass Rescue		
1	 Coogee Cowgirls	 CB
2	 Scarboro Purple	 SB
3	 Fremantle Flames	 FM
4	 Coogee YTG	 CB
		
U23 Female IRB Single Rescue	 	
1	 Fremantle Fireflies	 FM
2	 Coogee YTG	 CB
3	 Quinns Mindarie Leprechaun	 QM
4	 Coogee Sea Sisters	 CB
5	 Coogee Cowgirls	 CB
		
U23 Female IRB Tube Rescue		
1	 Quinns Mindarie Villie	 QM
2	 Fremantle Finns	 FM
3	 Coogee Cowgirls	 CB
4	 Coogee YTG	 CB
		
U23 Male IRB Mass Rescue		
1	 Scarboro White	 SB
2	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
3	 Coogee Quack Attack	 CB
4	 Mullaloo TEAM C	 ML
5	 Fremantle Fireflies	 FM
6	 Scarboro Red	 SB
		
U23 Male IRB Single Rescue		
1	 Fremantle Fa5t	 FM
2	 Scarboro White	 SB
3	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
4	 Trigg U23’s	 TI
5	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
6	 Fremantle Fireflies	 FM
		
U23 Male IRB Teams Rescue		
1	 Fremantle Fast and Furious	 FM
2	 Scarboro White	 SB
3	 Coogee Quack Attack	 CB
4	 Scarboro Blue	 SB
5	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
6	 Trigg U23’s	 TI
		
U23 Male IRB Tube Rescue		
1	 Scarboro White	 SB
2	 Trigg U23’s	 TI
3	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
4	 Mullaloo TEAM C	 ML
5	 Fremantle Fa5t	 FM
6	 Fremantle Furious	 FM	

2024 WA Board Riding Championships
2024 Board Riding WA Champion Club
Trigg Island SLSC
Awarded to the club with the highest total point score, across 
Open & Masters, at the 2024 Board Riding Championships.

Results 
			 
Open Female Short Board		
1	 Lauren Ware	 NC
2	 Jessica Stoop	 CY
3	 Courtney Sutherland	 FM
4	 Kali Grayson	 NC
		
Open Male Long Board		
1	 Mark Mulvay	 TI
2	 Alan Albert	 TI
3	 Archie Davis	 NC
4	 Dale Harrison	 ML
		
Open Male Short Board		
1	 Matthew Mcewen	 TI
2	 Alan Albert	 TI
3	 Donnacha Murphy	 ML
4	 Lucas Klomfass	 SB
		
Open Mixed Short Board Teams		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
3	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
4	 Sorrento TEAM A	 SO
		
U17 Male Short Board		
1	 Donnacha Murphy	 ML
2	 Seamus Patterson	 SB
3	 Nicholas Kryachok	 SB
4	 Jackson Tasker	 SO
		
U15 Male Short Board		
1	 Brandon Pawle	 SO
2	 Alex Walker	 TI
3	 Angus Hope	 BY
4	 Taige Howell	 SO
5	 Robbie Duffy	 SO
		
U14 Female Short Board		
1	 Amber Farrell	 FM
2	 Lucy Sutherland	 FM
3	 Amelie Gorman	 SB
		
U14 Male Short Board		
1	 Bo Watters	 TI
2	 Bodhi Duffy	 SO
3	 Finlay Sullivan	 NC
4	 Timothy Hannon	 TI
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2025 Fuel to Go & Play WA Little Nipper 
Championships

Results
		  	
U8 Female Surf Race		
1	 Phoebe MacKinnon	 NC
2	 Taylor Jenkin	 SO
3	 Chloe Rovira	 NC
		
U8 Female Board Race		
1	 Taylor Jenkin	 SO
2	 Chloe Rovira	 NC
3	 Olivia Dyer	 NC

U8 Female Beach Sprint		
1	 Natasha Seserko	 CY
2	 Summer How	 YP
3	 Katherine Park	 SB
		
U8 Female Beach Flags		
1	 Natasha Seserko	 CY
2	 Summer How	 YP
3	 Poppi Fanderlinden	 ML
		
U8 Male Surf Race		
1	 Jesse Tan	 TI
2	 Henry Barnett	 FM
3	 Harry Biggs	 NC

U8 Male Board Race		
1	 Alfred Watchorn	 SB
2	 Kye Gregory	 CY
3	 Fletcher Farrell	 ML
		

SURF SPORTS RESULTS LITTLE NIPPERS

U8 Male Beach Sprint		
1	 Hunter Watts	 QM
2	 Henry Barnett	 FM
3	 Sunny Greer	 SB

U8 Male Beach Flags		
1	 Fletcher Farrell	 ML
2	 Sunny Greer	 SB
3	 Hudson Fildes	 ML
		
U9 Female Surf Race		
1	 Georgie Rodsjo	 BY
2	 Alea Bleus	 FM
3	 Isla Taylor	 NC
		
U9 Female Board Race		
1	 Alea Bleus	 FM
2	 Olivia Woods	 TI
3	 Isabella Davey	 SH
	
U9 Female Beach Sprint		
1	 Cora Spencer	 SO
2	 Alea Bleus	 FM
3	 Georgie Rodsjo	 BY
	
U9 Female Beach Flags		
1	 Lola Green	 QM
2	 Evie Rutherford	 QM
3	 Shona O’Brien	 SO
		

U9 Male Surf Race		
1	 Lockie Sinclair	 SO
2	 Oscar Przeradzki	 SB
3	 William Israel-Dale	 TI
	
U9 Male Board Race		
1	 Oscar Przeradzki	 SB
2	 Lewis Buchan	 SH
3	 Dylan Osbaldeston	 SB
			 
U9 Male Beach Sprint		
1	 Joshua Ferrier	 SO
2	 Teddy Choa	 NC
3	 William Pearse	 MH
		
U9 Male Beach Flags		
1	 Parker Ahmad	 SO
2	 Finlay Smith	 QM
3	 Will Burgess	 FM
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2025 Fuel to Go & Play WA Nipper 
Championships

WA Nipper Champion Club – Total Aggregate Points
Sorrento SLSC
Awarded to the club with the highest total point score.

WA Nipper Handicap Winner
Mullaloo SLSC
Awarded to the club with the highest total point score 
overall, based on handicap derived from the previous WA 
Championships overall point score. 

Overall Club Rank & Points		
1	 Sorrento 	 377
2	 North Cottelsoe 	 269
3	 Mullaloo	 266
4	 Scarboro	 220
5	 Quinns Mindarie 	 149
6	 Trigg Island	 119
7	 City of Perth	 109
8	 Cottelsoe 	 87
9	 Frementle 	 58
	 Secret Harbour 	 58
11	 Coogee Beach 	 47
12	 City of Bunbury	 27
13	 Denmark 	 14
14	 Binningup	 12
15	 Busselton 	 11
16	 Swanbourne Nedlands 	 10
17	 Smiths Beach	 9
18	 Port Bouvard 	 8
19	 Champion Bay	 5
20	 Dongara Denison	 2
21	 Albany 	 1
22	 Esperance Goldfields 	 0
	 Geralton 	 0
	 Mandurah 	 0

SURF RESCUE Results
		
Nippers Mixed March Past		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
3	 Sorrento Green	 SO
4	 Sorrento White	 SO
5	 Mullaloo Gold	 ML
6	 Scarboro Black	 SB
		
U11 Mixed 2 Person R&R		
1	 Scarboro Black	 SB
2	 Coogee Beach A	 CB
3	 Coogee Beach TEAM B	 CB
		
U13 Mixed 2 Person R&R		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Fremantle Blue	 FM
3	 Scarboro Green	 SB
4	 Scarboro Yellow	 SB
5	 Coogee Beach J	 CB
6	 Coogee Beach A	 CB

BEACH & OCEAN Results
		  	
U10 Female 1 KM Beach Run		
1	 Aisling O’Brien	 SO
2	 Heidi Wynyard	 ML
3	 Georgia Eldridge	 NC
4	 Lyla Gilhome	 QM
5	 Lucy Minchin	 FM
6	 Grace Gribbon	 SB
		
U10 Female Beach Flags		
1	 Eliza Traynor	 SO
2	 Mary Nugent	 CY
3	 Aurora House	 CB
4	 Lola Miles	 CB
5	 Matilda Stanfield	 QM
6	 Lyla Gilhome	 QM
		
U10 Female Beach Relay		
1	 Sorrento Yellow	 SO
2	 City Black	 CY
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 Quinns Mindarie NAVY BLUE	 QM
5	 Coogee Beach Blue	 CB
6	 Mullaloo Mullaloo mini mermaids	 ML
		

U10 Female Beach Sprint		
1	 Mary Nugent	 CY
2	 Eliza Traynor	 SO
3	 Milla Mulvay	 PB
4	 Madeline Gee	 NC
5	 Jada Desouza	 SB
6	 Bella Almeida	 CB
		
U10 Female Board Race		
1	 Madalene Sneddon	 ML
2	 April Baggott	 CY
3	 Hawaii-Skye Straight	 TI
4	 Kenna Duckett	 QM
5	 Grace Gribbon	 SB
6	 Isla Dorrington	 CY
		
U10 Female Board Relay		
1	 City of Bunbury TEAM A	 BY
2	 Mullaloo Besties	 ML
3	 Scarboro Black	 SB
4	 Sorrento Yellow	 SO
5	 City Black	 CY
6	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U10 Female Ironwoman		
1	 Aisling O’Brien	 SO
2	 Madalene Sneddon	 ML
3	 Piper Knight	 CB
		
U10 Female Surf Race		
1	 Eve Steele	 CB
2	 Lily McDonald	 ML
3	 Madison Shrives	 ML
4	 Beatrice Biggs	 NC
5	 Aisling O’Brien	 SO
6	 Michelle Munroe	 CO
		
U10 Female Surf Teams		
1	 Mullaloo Besties	 ML
2	 Coogee Beach Blue	 CB
3	 Sorrento Yellow	 SO
4	 City Black	 CY
5	 Mullaloo Mullaloo Mangos	 ML
6	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
		
U10 Female 4 Person Cameron Relay	 	
1	 Mullaloo Besties	 ML
2	 City Black	 CY
3	 Coogee Beach Orange	 CB
4	 Coogee Beach Blue	 CB
5	 Sorrento Blue	 SO
6	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U10 Male 1 KM Beach Run		
1	 Marcus Fallan	 QM
2	 Matthew Dyett	 NC
3	 Stephan Ariano	 ML
4	 Sam Smith	 CO
5	 Henry Park	 SB
6	 Oliver Shipp	 CB
		
U10 Male Beach Flags		
1	 Marcus Fallan	 QM
2	 William Lister	 SO
3	 Ezekiel Standen	 SO
4	 Alak Scarce	 ML
5	 William Edwards	 BP
6	 Alexander Taylor	 SO
		
U10 Male Beach Relay		
1	 Scarboro Black	 SB
2	 Mullaloo White	 ML
3	 Mullaloo Blue	 ML
4	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
5	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
6	 Quinns Mindarie NAVY BLUE	 QM
		
U10 Male Beach Sprint		
1	 Marcus Fallan	 QM
2	 William Edwards	 BP
3	 Leo Alsford	 ML
4	 Tatum Whitney	 TI
5	 Charlie Baglin	 ML
6	 Chance Waikari	 CB
		
U10 Male Board Race		
1	 Kirill Mazheiko	 SB
2	 Henry Tate	 SB
3	 William Lister	 SO
4	 Lucas Peall	 SO
5	 Leo Todd	 SM
6	 Drew Leyland	 CY
		

U10 Male Board Relay		
1	 Scarboro Black	 SB
2	 Sorrento Yellow	 SO
3	 City Black	 CY
4	 Quinns Mindarie NAVY BLUE	 QM
5	 Scarboro Green	 SB
6	 Trigg Island GREEN	 TI
		
U10 Male Ironman	 	
1	 Lucas Peall	 SO
2	 Kirill Mazheiko	 SB
3	 Leo Todd	 SM
4	 Sam Smith	 CO
5	 Henry Tate	 SB
6	 George Buckle	 NC
		
U10 Male Surf Race		
1	 George Buckle	 NC
2	 Kirill Mazheiko	 SB
3	 Sam Smith	 CO
4	 Leo Todd	 SM
5	 Henry Tate	 SB
6	 Alexander Taylor	 SO
		
U10 Male Surf Teams		
1	 Scarboro Black	 SB
2	 City Black	 CY
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
5	 Sorrento Blue	 SO
6	 City Red	 CY
		
U10 Male 4 Person Cameron Relay		
1	 Scarboro Black	 SB
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Sorrento Green	 SO
4	 Mullaloo Yellow	 ML
5	 City Black	 CY
6	 Scarboro Green	 SB
		
U11 Female 1 KM Beach Run		
1	 Aubree Wynyard	 ML
2	 Emmie Lanoelle	 SO
3	 Cara Dunne	 ML
4	 Hannah Simpson	 SH
5	 Cora Broady	 TI
6	 Myla Hurst	 CH
		
U11 Female Beach Flags		
1	 Isabella Van Goethem	 CO
2	 Aubree Wynyard	 ML
3	 Pearl Elliot	 QM
4	 Allaria Ritchie	 SO
5	 Ava O’Neill	 QM
6	 Alice Michelotti	 TI
		
U11 Female Beach Relay		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Quinns Mindarie SKY BLUE	 QM
3	 Mullaloo Mullaloo Stars	 ML
4	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
5	 Quinns Mindarie NAVY BLUE	 QM
6	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
U11 Female Beach Sprint		
1	 Emme Coppini	 CY
2	 Allaria Ritchie	 SO
3	 Jarah Wroth	 CH
4	 Cara Dunne	 ML
5	 Hannah Simpson	 SH
6	 Poppy Slater	 AL
		
U11 Female Board Race		
1	 Aubree Wynyard	 ML
2	 Shae O’Toole	 CY
3	 Cara Dunne	 ML
4	 Olive Hawkins	 SO
5	 Darcie Holdsworth	 SN
6	 Cora Broady	 TI
		
U11 Female Ironwoman		
1	 Cara Dunne	 ML
2	 Bella Stone	 SO
3	 Zoe Keene	 CY
4	 Shae O’Toole	 CY
5	 Stevie Woods	 TI
6	 Aubree Wynyard	 ML
		
U11 Female Surf Race		
1	 Bella Stone	 SO
2	 Zoe Keene	 CY
3	 Cara Dunne	 ML
4	 Emilia Brooker	 SB
5	 Rose Khoury	 CO
6	 Ava Bradley	 CY		

SURF SPORTS RESULTS NIPPERS

59 SLSWA 2024/25 ANNUAL REPORT



U11 Female 4 Person Cameron Relay	
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Mullaloo Cameron 1	 ML
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 City Black	 CY
5	 Scarboro Black	 SB
6	 Mullaloo Cameron 2	 ML
		
U11 Female Board Relay		
1	 Mullaloo Purple	 ML
2	 City Black	 CY
3	 North Cottesloe Yellow	 NC
4	 Mullaloo Aqua	 ML
5	 Sorrento Green	 SO
6	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
		
U11 Female Board Rescue		
1	 Mullaloo Stars	 ML
2	 City Black	 CY
3	 Sorrento Pink	 SO
4	 City Red	 CY
5	 Trigg Island Trigg Red	 TI
6	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
		
U11 Female Surf Teams		
1	 City Black	 CY
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
4	 Fremantle Blue	 FM
5	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
6	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
		
U11 Male 1 KM Beach Run		
1	 Aiden Rovira	 NC
2	 Leon Rocamora	 ML
3	 Flynn Schmid	 SH
4	 Casey Reed	 SH
5	 Felix Britten	 CO
6	 Zayden Dullard	 SB
		
U11 Male Beach Flags		
1	 Gerry Conway	 TI
2	 Blake Latham	 SO
3	 Cruz Pollard	 PB
4	 Hugh Hutchings	 TI
5	 Xander Pearman	 SO
6	 Flynn Lord	 CY
		
U11 Male Beach Relay		
1	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Quinns Mindarie NAVY BLUE	 QM
4	 Scarboro Black	 SB
5	 Sorrento White	 SO
6	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
		
U11 Male Beach Sprint		
1	 Gerry Conway	 TI
2	 Max Jackson	 SO
3	 Soli Greer	 SB
4	 Ray Suzuki	 NC
5	 Leon Rocamora	 ML
6	 Jett Cattanach	 SO
		
U11 Male Board Race		
1	 Aiden Rovira	 NC
2	 Samuel Brownrigg	 QM
3	 Gerry Conway	 TI
4	 Casey Reed	 SH
5	 Patrick Jones	 SB
6	 Jacob Allum	 SO
		
U11 Male Ironman		
1	 Samuel Brownrigg	 QM
2	 Aiden Rovira	 NC
3	 Jacob Allum	 SO
4	 Tyce Andrews	 SB
5	 Angus Rea	 NC
6	 Flynn Schmid	 SH
		
U11 Male Surf Race		
1	 Samuel Brownrigg	 QM
2	 Flynn Schmid	 SH
3	 Tyce Andrews	 SB
4	 Angus Rea	 NC
5	 Orlando Messina	 SO
6	 Hamish Buckle	 NC
		
U11 Male 4 Person Cameron Relay
1	 Quinns Mindarie Blue	 QM
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Scarboro Black	 SB
4	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
5	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
6	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
		
U11 Male Board Relay		
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
3	 Mullaloo Gold	 ML
4	 Quinns Mindarie WHITE	 QM
5	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
6	 Scarboro Black	 SB
		

U11 Male Board Rescue		
1	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Scarboro Black	 SB
4	 Mullaloo Gold	 ML
5	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
6	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U11 Male Surf Teams		
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Mullaloo Gold	 ML
4	 Quinns Mindarie NAVY BLUE	 QM 
5	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
6	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
		
U12 Female 1 KM Beach Run		
1	 Erin Tierney	 NC
2	 Charlotte Cracroft-Wilson	 BN
3	 Lucy Phillips	 SN
4	 Charlotte Holdsworth	 SN
5	 Summer Abbott-Vidler	 SB
6	 Willow Littlemore	 SO
		
U12 Female Beach Flags		
1	 Charlotte Cracroft-Wilson	 BN
2	 Imogen Gilhome	 QM
3	 Leni Ellis	 SO
4	 Hanna Firych	 QM
5	 Izabelle Jeffery	 DD
6	 Jenna Musika	 CB
		
U12 Female Beach Relay		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Quinns Mindarie NAVY BLUE	 QM
3	 Quinns Mindarie SKY BLUE	 QM
4	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
5	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
6	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
U12 Female Beach Sprint	 	
1	 Ebony Rosman	 TI
2	 Imogen Gilhome	 QM
3	 Bailey McCormick	 FM
4	 Olivia Bove	 SO
5	 Isabella Pickles	 SO
6	 Hanna Firych	 QM
		
U12 Female Board Race		
1	 Lily Cornell	 ML
2	 Erin Tierney	 NC
3	 Bailey McCormick	 FM
4	 Charlotte Day	 SO
5	 Georgia Shirley	 ML
6	 Milla Lang	 SO
		
U12 Female Ironwoman		
1	 Erin Tierney	 NC
2	 Milla Lang	 SO
3	 Lily Cornell	 ML
4	 Charlotte Day	 SO
5	 Esther Gregorevic	 FM
6	 Josephine White	 CO
		
U12 Female Surf Race		
1	 Milla Lang	 SO
2	 Erin Tierney	 NC
3	 Lily Cornell	 ML
4	 Josephine White	 CO
5	 Esther Gregorevic	 FM
6	 Georgie Barnes	 SB
		
U12 Female 4 Person Cameron Relay	
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Fremantle Green	 FM
3	 Mullaloo Navy	 ML
4	 Mullaloo White	 ML
5	 Sorrento White	 SO
6	 Sorrento Blue	 SO
		
U12 Female Board Relay		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Sorrento White	 SO
3	 Mullaloo Navy	 ML
4	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
5	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
6	 City Red	 CY
		
U12 Female Board Rescue		
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
4	 Sorrento Blue	 SO
5	 Mullaloo Navy	 ML
6	 Scarboro Green	 SB
		
U12 Female Surf Teams		
1	 Sorrento White	 SO
2	 Mullaloo White	 ML
3	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
4	 City Red	 CY
5	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
6	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
		

U12 Male 1 KM Beach Run		
1	 Hugo Smith	 CO
2	 Zach Marsden	 QM
3	 Patrick King	 NC
4	 Zachary Mcnally	 SB
5	 Maki Baldwin	 SO
6	 George Cowan	 BY
		
U12 Male Beach Flags		
1	 Louis Gibbs	 NC
2	 Zackary Whitby	 SO
3	 Zach Marsden	 QM
4	 Lachlan Hannon	 TI
5	 Lachlan Anderson	 TI
6	 Jude Jamieson	 SO
		
U12 Male Beach Relay		
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Sorrento White	 SO
3	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
5	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
6	 Mullaloo Black	 ML
		
U12 Male Beach Sprint		
1	 Lachlan Anderson	 TI
2	 Zackary Whitby	 SO
3	 Louis Gibbs	 NC
4	 Jace Liddell-Houghton	 TI
5	 Zachary Lloyd	 NC
6	 Fergus Mellor	 SN
		
U12 Male Board Race		
1	 Hugo Smith	 CO
2	 Lachlan Jones	 SB
3	 Patrick King	 NC
4	 Filip Kryachok	 SB
5	 Jake Whinnen	 SO
6	 Gregory Small	 NC
		
U12 Male Ironman		
1	 Lachlan Jones	 SB
2	 Patrick King	 NC
3	 Jedd Butler	 TI
4	 Hugo Smith	 CO
5	 Gregory Small	 NC
6	 Max Przeradzki	 SB
		
U12 Male Surf Race		
1	 Daniel Rodsjo	 BY
2	 Leo Stork	 CO
3	 Jedd Butler	 TI
4	 Hugo Smith	 CO
5	 Gregory Small	 NC
6	 Max Przeradzki	 SB
		
U12 Male 4 Person Cameron Relay	
1	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
2	 Scarboro Green	 SB
3	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
4	 City of Bunbury TEAM B	 BY
5	 Mullaloo Blue	 ML
6	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U12 Male Board Relay		
1	 Scarboro Green	 SB
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
4	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
5	 Sorrento Green	 SO
6	 Sorrento Blue	 SO
		
U12 Male Board Rescue		
1	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
2	 Mullaloo Orange	 ML
3	 Scarboro Green	 SB
4	 North Cottesloe Yellow	 NC
5	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
6	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U12 Male Surf Teams		
1	 Scarboro Green	 SB
2	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO 
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 Trigg Island RED	 TI
5	 City of Bunbury TEAM A	 BY
6	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U13 Female 2 KM Beach Run		
1	 Georgia Baber	 FM
2	 Fearne Stone	 SO
3	 Alayla Schmid	 SH
4	 Emileah Steadman	 FM
5	 Scarlett Marr	 SO
6	 Audrey Bingham	 SO
		
U13 Female Beach Flags		
1	 Makiah Suttie	 DK
2	 Nakita Grant	 QM
3	 Lottie Kemp	 QM
4	 Indiana Stephenson	 ML
5	 Scarlett Marr	 SO
6	 Dana Chung	 FM
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U13 Female Beach Relay		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Quinns Mindarie SKY BLUE	 QM
4	 Scarboro Black	 SB
5	 Mullaloo Yellow	 ML
6	 Mullaloo Blue	 ML
		
U13 Female Beach Sprint		
1	 Makiah Suttie	 DK
2	 Teleah Edwards	 BP
3	 Tayla Johnson	 QM
4	 Maddison Jackson	 SO
5	 Anzu Haywood	 ML
6	 Indiana Stephenson	 ML
		
U13 Female Board Race		
1	 Diana Mazheiko	 SB
2	 Fearne Stone	 SO
3	 Georgia Tasker	 SO
4	 Alayla Schmid	 SH
5	 Hannah Cipolloni	 NC
6	 Ada Heaton	 ML
		
U13 Female Ironwoman		
1	 Molly Smith	 FM
2	 Amelie Ridley	 SO
3	 Alayla Schmid	 SH
4	 Diana Mazheiko	 SB
5	 Aria Berry	 ML
6	 Olivia Booth	 SO
		
U13 Female Surf Race	 	
1	 Molly Smith	 FM
2	 Anzu Haywood	 ML
3	 Hannah Cipolloni	 NC
4	 Amelie Ridley	 SO
5	 Ashley Buck	 TI
6	 Alayla Schmid	 SH
		
U13 Female 4 Person Cameron Relay	
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Sorrento White	 SO
3	 Scarboro Black	 SB
4	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
5	 Mullaloo White	 ML
6	 Sorrento Blue	 SO
		
U13 Female Board Relay	 	
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Sorrento White	 SO
3	 Mullaloo White	 ML
4	 Scarboro Black	 SB
5	 Mullaloo Blue	 ML
6	 City of Bunbury TEAM A	 BY
		
U13 Female Board Rescue	 	
1	 Sorrento Yellow	 SO
2	 Sorrento Blue	 SO
3	 Mullaloo Blue	 ML
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
5	 Fremantle Blue	 FM
6	 Fremantle Yellow	 FM
		
U13 Female Surf Teams		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
3	 Mullaloo Yellow	 ML
4	 City of Bunbury TEAM A	 BY
5	 Fremantle Blue	 FM
6	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
U13 Male 2 KM Beach Run		
1	 Thomas Fallan	 QM
2	 Ryan Cavanagh	 ML
3	 Parker Goddard	 SH
4	 Cillian Leonard	 FM
5	 Xavier McEwan	 DK
6	 Keir Whitaker	 QM
		
U13 Male Beach Flags		
1	 Rocco Than-Whall	 SO
2	 Edward Wallis	 NC
3	 Pierce Rovira	 NC
4	 Luca De Vries	 NC
5	 Thomas Fallan	 QM
6	 Keenan Viola-Tiongson	 BY
		
U13 Male Beach Relay		
1	 Quinns Mindarie SKY BLUE	 QM
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 Mullaloo Yellow	 ML
5	 City of Bunbury TEAM A	 BY
6	 City Black	 CY
		
U13 Male Beach Sprint		
1	 Edward Wallis	 NC
2	 Rocco Than-Whall	 SO
3	 Keir Whitaker	 QM
4	 Luca De Vries	 NC
5	 Logan Vukelic	 BY
6	 Zeke Buckley	 SO
		

U13 Male Board Race		
1	 Khyber Andrews	 SB
2	 Pierce Rovira	 NC
3	 Nathaniel Leeks	 ML
4	 Ashton Stott	 SO
5	 Cael Mclure	 SB
6	 Darcy Tate	 SB
		
U13 Male Ironman		
1	 Cael Mclure	 SB
2	 Pierce Rovira	 NC
3	 Hugo Brierley	 ML
4	 Darcy Tate	 SB
5	 Euan Buchan	 SH
6	 Remy Fischer	 NC
		
U13 Male Surf Race		
1	 Cael Mclure	 SB
2	 Pierce Rovira	 NC
3	 Hugo Brierley	 ML
4	 Zachary Ashworth	 CY
5	 Darcy Tate	 SB
6	 Ashton Stott	 SO
		
U13 Male 4 Person Cameron Relay	
1	 Scarboro Black	 SB
2	 Mullaloo Yellow	 ML
3	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
5	 City Black	 CY
6	 North Cottesloe White	 NC
		
U13 Male Board Relay	 	
1	 Scarboro Black	 SB
2	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
3	 Sorrento White	 SO
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
5	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
6	 Mullaloo Yellow	 ML
		
U13 Male Board Rescue		
1	 Scarboro Black	 SB
2	 Mullaloo Pink	 ML
3	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
4	 City Black	 CY
5	 Sorrento White	 SO
6	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
		
U13 Male Surf Teams		
1	 North Cottesloe Blue	 NC
2	 Scarboro Black	 SB
3	 City Black	 CY
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
5	 Mullaloo Yellow	 ML
6	 Fremantle Blue	 FM

2024 WA Pool Rescue Championships, 
Nippers
2024 Pool Rescue WA Champion Club
Sorrento SLSC
Awarded to the club with the highest total point score 
across Nipper, Youth, Open & Masters, at the 2024 Pool 
Rescue Championships.

Results
	
U10 Female 100m Obstacles		
1	 Rose Khoury	 CO
2	 Cara Dunne	 ML
3	 Bella Stone	 SO
4	 Emilia Brooker	 SB
5	 Maeva Trend	 SB
6	 Eva Stirling	 ML
		
U10 Female 50m Brick Carry		
1	 Rose Khoury	 CO
2	 Cara Dunne	 ML
3	 Emilia Brooker	 SB
4	 Violet Zuchkan	 SB
5	 Bella Stone	 SO
6	 Eva Stirling	 ML
		
U10 Female 50m Freestyle w Fins	 	
1	 Violet Zuchkan	 SB
2	 Cara Dunne	 ML
3	 Maeva Trend	 SB
4	 Bella Stone	 SO
5	 Emilia Brooker	 SB
6	 Rose Khoury	 CO
		
U10 Male 100m Obstacles		
1	 Tyce Andrews	 SB
2	 Flynn Schmid	 SH
3	 Harris Bowman	 CO
4	 Patrick Jones	 SB
5	 Max McGhie	 SB
6	 Maxwell Poole	 SO
		

U10 Male 50m Brick Carry		
1	 Flynn Schmid	 SH
2	 Tyce Andrews	 SB
3	 Harris Bowman	 CO
4	 Max McGhie	 SB
5	 Patrick Jones	 SB
6	 Maxwell Poole	 SO
		
U10 Male 50m Freestyle w Fins		
1	 Flynn Schmid	 SH
2	 Harris Bowman	 CO
3	 Tyce Andrews	 SB
4	 Patrick Jones	 SB
5	 Max McGhie	 SB
6	 Maxwell Poole	 SO
		
U10 Female 100m Patient Tow w Fins		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
3	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
4	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
5	 Cottesloe White	 CO
6	 Port Bouvard TEAM A	 PB
		
U10 Female 10m Line Throw		
1	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
		
U10 Male 100m Patient Tow w Fins	 	
1	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
2	 Scarboro TEAM B	 SB
		
U10-U11 Female 4x25m Brick Carry Relay	
1	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
4	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
5	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
6	 Port Bouvard TEAM A	 PB
		
U10-U11 Female 4x50m Medley Relay		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
3	 Cottesloe White	 CO
4	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
5	 Port Bouvard TEAM A	 PB
6	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
U10-U11 Female 4x50m Obstacle Relay		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
3	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
4	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
5	 Port Bouvard TEAM A	 PB
6	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
		
U10-U11 Male 4x25m Brick Carry Relay	 	
1	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
2	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
3	 Scarboro TEAM B	 SB
		
U10-U11 Male 4x50m Medley Relay		
1	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
2	 Scarboro TEAM B	 SB
3	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
		
U10-U11 Male 4x50m Obstacle Relay	 	
1	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
2	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
3	 Scarboro TEAM B	 SB
		
U11 Female 100m Obstacles		
1	 Lacey Maclean	 SH
2	 Milla Lang	 SO
3	 Ella McBride	 TI
4	 Bridget Evans	 SH
5	 Georgia Flowers	 TI
6	 Charlotte Day	 SO
		
U11 Female 50m Brick Carry		
1	 Milla Lang	 SO
2	 Lacey Maclean	 SH
3	 Ella McBride	 TI
4	 Harriet Burnage	 CO
5	 Caoilinn McGrath	 CO
6	 Bridget Evans	 SH
		
U11 Female 50m Freestyle w Fins		
1	 Milla Lang	 SO
2	 Ella McBride	 TI
3	 Lacey Maclean	 SH
4	 Gracie Wood	 ML
5	 Bridget Evans	 SH
6	 Harriet Burnage	 CO
		
U11 Male 100m Obstacles		
1	 Filip Kryachok	 SB
2	 Leo Stork	 CO
3	 Lachlan Jones	 SB
4	 Morrie Goodsell	 CY
5	 Angus Hunter	 SO
6	 Henry Adams	 CO
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U11 Male 50m Brick Carry		
1	 Leo Stork	 CO
2	 Morrie Goodsell	 CY
3	 Filip Kryachok	 SB
4	 Lachlan Jones	 SB
5	 Bennett Howard	 SB
6	 Brayden Hunter	 CB
		
U11 Male 50m Freestyle w Fins		
1	 Morrie Goodsell	 CY
1	 Filip Kryachok	 SB
3	 Leo Stork	 CO
4	 Lachlan Jones	 SB
5	 Campbell Mclure	 SB
6	 Brayden Hunter	 CB
6	 Jackson Rieger	 SB
		
U11 Female 100m Patient Tow w Fins		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
3	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
4	 Trigg Island TEAM A	 TI
5	 Secret Harbour TEAM B	 SH
6	 Port Bouvard TEAM A	 PB
		
U11 Female 10m Line Throw		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Cottesloe White	 CO
3	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
4	 Mullaloo TEAM C	 ML
5	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
U11 Male 100m Patient Tow w Fins		
1	 Cottesloe White	 CO
2	 City TEAM A	 CY
3	 Coogee Beach 1	 CB
4	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
5	 Trigg Island TEAM A	 TI
6	 Scarboro TEAM B	 SB
		
U11 Male 10m Line Throw		
1	 Scarboro TEAM B	 SB
2	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
3	 Coogee Beach 2	 CB
4	 Cottesloe White	 CO
5	 City TEAM A	 CY
		
U12 Female 100m Obstacles		
1	 Anzu Haywood	 ML
2	 Isabella Bowman	 CO
3	 Mia Safranek	 SB
4	 Audrey Cheeseman	 CB
5	 Amelie Ridley	 SO
6	 Alayla Schmid	 SH
		
U12 Female 50m Brick Carry		
1	 Isabella Bowman	 CO
2	 Anzu Haywood	 ML
3	 Lexie Conrad	 SH
4	 Audrey Cheeseman	 CB
5	 Amelie Ridley	 SO
6	 Mia Safranek	 SB
		
U12 Female 50m Freestyle w Fins	 	
1	 Isabella Bowman	 CO
2	 Anzu Haywood	 ML
3	 Audrey Cheeseman	 CB
4	 Mia Safranek	 SB
5	 Maddy Jackson	 SO
6	 Alayla Schmid	 SH
		
U12 Male 100m Obstacles		
1	 Cael Mclure	 SB
2	 Tadhg Hartzer	 QM
3	 Euan Buchan	 SH
4	 Hugo Brierley	 ML
5	 Logan Wright	 SB
6	 Parker Goddard	 SH
		
U12 Male 50m Brick Carry		
1	 Tadhg Hartzer	 QM
2	 Euan Buchan	 SH
3	 Hugo Brierley	 ML
4	 Cael Mclure	 SB
5	 Parker Goddard	 SH
6	 Oliver Spencer-Cotton	 CO
		
U12 Male 50m Freestyle w Fins		
1	 Tadhg Hartzer	 QM
1	 Cael Mclure	 SB
3	 Logan Wright	 SB
4	 Hugo Brierley	 ML
5	 Parker Goddard	 SH
6	 Euan Buchan	 SH
		
U12 Female 100m Patient Tow w Fins	 	
1	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
2	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
3	 Sorrento White	 SO
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
5	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
6	 Coogee Beach 2	 CB
		

U12 Female 10m Line Throw		
1	 Coogee Beach 2	 CB
2	 Sorrento Green	 SO
3	 Cottesloe White	 CO
4	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
		
U12 Male 100m Patient Tow w Fins	 	
1	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
2	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
3	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U12 Male 10m Line Throw		
1	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
2	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
3	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U12-U13 Female 4x25m Brick Carry Relay	
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
3	 Yanchep Red	 YP
4	 Sorrento White	 SO
5	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
6	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
		
U12-U13 Female 4x50m Medley Relay	 	
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
3	 Coogee Beach 1	 CB
4	 Sorrento White	 SO
5	 Yanchep Red	 YP
6	 Sorrento Black	 SO
		
U12-U13 Female 4x50m Obstacle Relay		
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Coogee Beach TEAM A	 CB
3	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
4	 Yanchep Red	 YP
5	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
6	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
U12-U13 Male 4x25m Brick Carry Relay	 	
1	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
2	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
3	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U12-U13 Male 4x50m Medley Relay		
1	 Cottesloe Black	 CO
2	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
3	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U12-U13 Male 4x50m Obstacle Relay		
1	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
2	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
3	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO
4	 Sorrento Green	 SO
		
U13 Female 100m Obstacles		
1	 Ellie Neervoort	 TI
2	 Evie D’Souza-Cookson	 TI
3	 Ruby Campbell	 CB
4	 Emmee Bevan	 SO
5	 Lyla Reed	 SH
6	 Livia Papotto	 SB
		
U13 Female 50m Brick Carry		
1	 Evie D’Souza-Cookson	 TI
2	 Ruby Campbell	 CB
3	 Ellie Neervoort	 TI
4	 Emmee Bevan	 SO
5	 Abigail Campbell	 YP
6	 Livia Papotto	 SB
		
U13 Female 50m Freestyle w Fins	 	
1	 Evie D’Souza-Cookson	 TI
2	 Ruby Campbell	 CB
3	 Amy Maddox	 CY
4	 Ellie Neervoort	 TI
5	 Indiana Fox	 YP
6	 Emmee Bevan	 SO
		
U13 Male 100m Obstacles		
1	 Monty Stork	 CO
2	 Koga Haywood	 ML
3	 Max Kryachok	 SB
4	 Jack Hurst	 CO
5	 Kostya Rogoysky	 SO
6	 Aiden Geneff	 SO
		
U13 Male 50m Brick Carry		
1	 Monty Stork	 CO
2	 Max Kryachok	 SB
3	 Koga Haywood	 ML
4	 Jack Hurst	 CO
5	 Kostya Rogoysky	 SO
6	 Aidan Beer	 SO
		

U13 Male 50m Freestyle w Fins		
1	 Monty Stork	 CO
2	 Max Kryachok	 SB
3	 Koga Haywood	 ML
4	 Aiden Geneff	 SO
5	 Jack Hurst	 CO
6	 Kostya Rogoysky	 SO
		
U13 Female 100m Patient Tow w Fins	 	
1	 Sorrento Green	 SO
2	 Coogee Beach 1	 CB
3	 Secret Harbour TEAM A	 SH
4	 Coogee Beach 2	 CB
5	 Yanchep Red	 YP
6	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
		
U13 Female 10m Line Throw		
1	 Sorrento White	 SO
2	 Coogee Beach 1	 CB
3	 Coogee Beach 2	 CB
4	 Cottesloe White	 CO
5	 Yanchep Red	 YP
		
U13 Male 100m Patient Tow w Fins		
1	 Cottesloe White	 CO
2	 Mullaloo TEAM A	 ML
3	 Sorrento Green	 SO
4	 Scarboro TEAM A	 SB
5	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
6	 Sorrento White	 SO
		
U13 Male 10m Line Throw		
1	 Sorrento White	 SO
2	 Cottesloe White	 CO
3	 Mullaloo TEAM B	 ML
4	 Scarboro TEAM B	 SB
5	 Sorrento Green	 SO
6	 Cottesloe Yellow	 CO

2024 WA Board Riding 
Championships, Nippers

Results
U13 Male Short Board		
1	 Kostya Rogoysky	 SO
2	 Archie Knight	 SO
3	 Alby Haines	 TI
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
The Directors submit the financial report of Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc. (“the Association”) for the year ended 30 
April 2025.

Board of Directors
The names of Directors throughout the year and at the date of this report are:

James O’Toole 		  (CEO)
Heidi Gan OLY		  (President – Chair)
Leesa Equid		  (Director)
Mike Shaw		  (Director)
Vicki Rasmussen		  (Director) 	
Jack Dowie		  (Director) 	
Richard Elderfield		  (Director)	
Jarod Stone		  (Director)	 Commenced July 2024
Sarah Leonard		  (Director)	 Concluded July 2024

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Association during the financial year were:

•	The provision of life saving and emergency services, recreation, sport and youth development throughout Western 
Australia.

The operating activities of Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc. reported a surplus of $574,177 (2024 $603,579).  

The surplus will continue to provide support across several areas of the movement. These include:
1.		 Maintaining and improving key assets such as IT infrastructure and the ERCN network;

2.	 Expediting the rollout of various equipment, and providing for maintenance and replacement;

3.	 Assistance with the development of new programs to provide long term benefit to clubs and their members, in particular 
Nippers, Youth and Surf Sport development;

4.	 Assisting the Association to deploy more services in growth areas, and to assist clubs with their expanding role/s in the 
delivery of frontline services;

5.	 Allowing increased focus outside the metropolitan area through the delivery of initiatives aligned to lifesaving, surf 
sport, nippers & youth and training & education.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Heidi Gan OLY			   James O’Toole
President			   Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 26th day of August 2025
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS  
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 April 2025

Note 2025 
$

2024 
$

Revenue 3 14,041,315 13,729,268

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 43,660 20,480

Expenses

Employee benefits expense (1,455,262) (1,248,621)

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 4a (1,451,744) (1,434,891)

Fundraising expenses (67,232) (336,434)

Development and education expenses (1,880,776) (1,792,772)

Lifesaving expenses 4b (4,998,646) (4,730,226)

Marketing and sponsorship expenses (577,545) (482,834)

Competition expenses (766,503) (677,645)

Commercial activity expenses 4c (2,090,204) (2,158,992)

Finance costs – right of use assets (47,142) (116,562)

Other expenses (175,744) (167,192)

Surplus for the Year 574,177 603,579

Other comprehensive income 

Changes in asset revaluation surplus 657,509 -

Total other comprehensive income 657,509 -

Total comprehensive income for the Year 1,231,686 603,579

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 April 2025

Note 2025 
$

2024 
$

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 15 11,125,008 9,502,514

Financial Assets 20,000 20,000

Trade and other receivables 15 915,901 1,833,956

Prepayments (other assets) 104,318 295,318

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 12,165,227 11,651,788

NON - CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment 5 11,826,335 11,381,285

Right-of-use asset 9 6,879 990,250

TOTAL NON - CURRENT ASSETS 11,833,214 12,371,535

TOTAL ASSETS 23,998,441 24,023,323

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 6 & 15 2,483,891 2,979,690

Provisions 7 749,516 474,925

Lease Liability 10 7,551 1,032,985

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,240,958 4,487,600

NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES

Provisions 7 85,956 88,330

Lease Liability 10 - 7,552

TOTAL NON - CURRENT LIABILITIES 85,956 95,882

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,326,914 4,583,482

NET ASSETS 20,671,527 19,439,841

EQUITY

Reserves 8 500,000 500,000

Accumulated Surplus 8 19,514,018 18,939,841

Asset Revaluation Reserve 8 657,509 -

TOTAL EQUITY 20,671,527 19,439,841

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 April 2025

Accumulated 
Surplus 

$

General 
Reserve 

$

Asset 
Revaluation 
Reserve   $

Total 
$

Balance at 30 April 2023 18,336,262 500,000 - 18,836,262

Surplus attributable to directors 603,579 - - 603,579

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 603,579 - - 603,579

Balance at 30 April 2024 18,939,841 500,000 19,439,841

Surplus attributable to directors 574,177 - - 574,177

Revaluation increment - - 657,509 657,509

Total comprehensive income for the year 574,177 - 657,509 1,231,686

Balance at 30 April 2025 19,514,018 500,000 657,509 20,671,527

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 April 2025

Note 2025 
$

2024 
$

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from operating activities 14,458,337 12,999,759

Payment to suppliers and employees (12,003,491) (11,044,616)

Interest received 460,030 374,376

Net cash provided by operating activities 14 2,914,876 2,329,519

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (495,891) (411,535)

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 283,636 118,639

Net cash used in investing activities (212,255) (292,896)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of lease liabilities (1,080,127) (1,075,802)

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (1,080,127) (1,075,802)

Net increase in cash held 1,622,494 960,821

Cash at the beginning of the financial year 15 9,502,514 8,541,693

Cash at the end of the financial year 11,125,008 9,502,514

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 April 2025

Note 1: Material accounting policy information
The accounting policies that are material to the company are set out below. The accounting policies adopted are consistent with 
those of the previous financial year, unless otherwise stated. 

New, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted
The Association has adopted all of the new, revised or amending Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’) that are mandatory for the current reporting period.

Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been early adopted. 
The incorporated association’s assessment of the impact of these new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations, most 
relevant to the incorporated association, are set out below. 

AASB 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements
This standard is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027 and early adoption is permitted. The 
standard replaces IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’, with many of the original disclosure requirements retained and 
there will be no impact on the recognition and measurement of items in the financial statements. But the standard will affect 
presentation and disclosure in the financial statements, including introducing five categories in the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income: operating, investing, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations. The standard introduces 
two mandatory sub-totals in the statement: ‘Operating profit’ and ‘Profit before financing and income taxes’. There are also new 
disclosure requirements for ‘management-defined performance measures’, such as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and 
amortisation (‘EBITDA’) or ‘adjusted profit’. The standard provides enhanced guidance on grouping of information (aggregation and 
disaggregation), including whether to present this information in the primary financial statements or in the notes. The incorporated 
association will adopt this standard from 1 January 2027 and it is expected that there will be a significant change to the layout of the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation 
of the Association’s annual financial statements for the previous reporting period.

Basis of preparation
This financial report is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 
Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board, the requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 and the Associations 
Incorporation Act 2015.

The financial report covers Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc. as an individual entity.  Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc. is 
an Association incorporated in Western Australia under the Associations Incorporation Act 2015.

The financial report of Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc. as an individual entity complies with all Australian equivalents to 
International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) in their entirety. Compliance with AIFRS ensures compliance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Association in the preparation of the financial report. 
The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 

The accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all years presented.

Reporting Basis and Conventions
The financial report has been prepared on an accrual basis and is based on historical costs modified by the revaluation of selected 
non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities for which the fair value basis of accounting has been applied. The 
amounts presented in the financial report are present in Australian dollars and have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

Accounting Policies

(a)	 Income Tax

The Association has obtained tax-exempt status under current Australian Taxation legislation

(b)	 Current and non-current classification

Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when: it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the 
Association’s normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is expected to be realised within 12 
months after the reporting period; or the asset is cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to 
settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.
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Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2025

A liability is classified as current when: it is either expected to be settled in the Association’s normal operating cycle; it is 
held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or there is no 
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are 
classified as non-current.

(c)	 Property, Plant and Equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value as indicated less, where applicable, any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.

Property

Freehold land and buildings are recorded at their fair value (being the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between 
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction), based on periodic, but at least triennial valuations by external 
independent valuers. During the intervening periods, the fair values are determined on the basis of a directors’ valuation.

If the carrying amount of a class of assets is increased as a result of a revaluation, the net revaluation increase is credited to 
a revaluation reserve in equity. However, the net revaluation increase is recognised in the profit or loss to the extent that it 
reverses a net revaluation decrease of the same class of assets previously recognised in the profit or loss. 

If the carrying amount of a class of assets has decreased as a result of a revaluation, the net revaluation is recognised in the 
profit or loss. However, the net revaluation decrease is debited to the revaluation reserve in equity to the extent of any credit 
balance existing in any revaluation surplus in respect of that same class of asset. The net revaluation decrease recognised in 
the revaluation reserve reduces the amount accumulated in equity.

Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment is measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by Directors to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable 
amount from these assets.  The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be 
received from the assets’ employment and subsequent disposal.  The expected net cash flows have been discounted to present 
values in determining recoverable amounts.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of plant and equipment along with the motor vehicles and building fit outs are depreciated on a 
diminishing value basis or straight-line basis over their useful life from the time the asset is held ready for use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets (excluding land and buildings) are:

Class of Fixed Asset	 Depreciation Rate

Office equipment	 13.33% to 40%
Coastal Safety equipment	 25% to 100%
Surf education equipment	 30% to 67%
Competition equipment	 20% to 67%
Motor vehicles	 25%
Fixtures and Fittings	 3% to 13%

Assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than 
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are 
included in the statement of comprehensive income.

(d)	 Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Association reviews the carrying values of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any 
indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the 
higher of the assets fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the 
assets carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the statement of comprehensive income.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Association estimates the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2025

(e)	  Fair Value Measurement

When an asset or liability, financial or non-financial, is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, the 
fair value is based on the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place either: in the principal 
market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming 
they act in their economic best interest. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement is based on its highest and best 
use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair 
value, are used, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

(f)	 Employee Benefits

Provision is made in respect of the Association’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees 
to balance date.  Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts 
expected to be paid when the liability is settled, plus related on-costs. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been 
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits.

(g)	 Revenue recognition

The Association recognises revenue as follows:

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the association is expected to be entitled in 
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. For each contract with a customer, the association: identifies the 
contract with a customer; identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determines the transaction price which takes 
into account estimates of variable consideration and the time value of money; allocates the transaction price to the separate 
performance obligations on the basis of the relative stand-alone selling price of each distinct good or service to be delivered; 
and recognises revenue when or as each performance obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts the transfer to the 
customer of the goods or services promised.

Grants/ Sponsorship
Grant revenue is recognised in profit or loss when the Association satisfies the performance obligations stated within the 
funding agreements. If performance obligations are not sufficiently specific and enforceable, the Association recognises this 
revenue, at a point in time, which is generally on receipt.

Donations
Revenue from donations is recognised upon receipt of the funds.

Interest
Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.

Volunteer services
The Association has elected not to recognise volunteer services as either revenue or other forms of contributions received. As 
such, any related consumption or capitalisation of such resources received is also not recognised.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

(h)	 Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not 
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office.  In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition 
of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown 
inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the cash flow statement on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing 
activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.

(j)	 Financial assets

Initial recognition

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and 
borrowings or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs.  The Association’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and accruals.
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Subsequent measurement

Trade and Other payables, Accruals 

After initial recognition, trade and other payables and accruals are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Gains and losses 
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognised.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the associated obligation is discharged, cancelled or expires.  When an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income.

(j)	 Right of Use Assets

A right-of-use asset is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which 
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date net of any lease incentives received, any initial direct costs incurred, and, except where included in the cost of 
inventories, an estimate of costs expected to be incurred for dismantling and removing the underlying asset, and restoring the site 
or asset.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the 
asset, whichever is the shorter. Where the Association expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, 
the depreciation is over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are subject to impairment or adjusted for any remeasurement of 
lease liabilities.

The Association has elected not to recognise a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term leases with terms 
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments on these assets are expensed to profit or loss as incurred.

(k)	 Lease Liabilities

A lease liability is recognised at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value 
of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate 
cannot be readily determined, the Association’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less 
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under 
residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasonably certain to occur, and 
any anticipated termination penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the 
period in which they are incurred.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are remeasured if there 
is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index, or a rate used; residual guarantee; lease 
term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease liability is remeasured, an adjustment is made to the 
corresponding right-of use asset, or to profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written down.
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Note 2: Critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, 
liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates and assumptions on historical 
experience and on other various factors, including expectations of future events, management believes to be reasonable under the 
circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the related actual results. The judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that have a material risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities (refer to the respective notes) within the next financial year are discussed below. 

Revenue Recognition & Timing

For grant funding received, the determination of whether the grant agreement includes sufficiently specific performance obligations 
and enforceability, was a significant judgement involving discussions with a number of parties at the Association and consideration 
of the terms and conditions within the agreement.

Grants received by the Association have been accounted for under both AASB 15 and AASB 1058 depending on the terms and 
conditions and decisions made. If this determination was changed, then the revenue recognition pattern would be different from 
that recognised in these financial statements.

Fair value measurement hierarchy

The Association is required to classify all assets and liabilities, measured at fair value, using a three level hierarchy, based on the 
lowest level of input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement, being: Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date; Level 2: Inputs other than quoted 
prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and Level 3: Unobservable 
inputs for the asset or liability. Considerable judgement is required to determine what is significant to fair value and therefore which 
category the asset or liability is placed in can be subjective.

The fair value of assets and liabilities classified as level 2 is determined by the use of valuation models. Land and buildings have 
been valued based on similar assets, location and market conditions.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets

The Association assesses impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill and other indefinite life intangible assets at each 
reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Association and to the particular asset that may lead to impairment. If an 
impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. This involves fair value less costs of disposal or value-
in-use calculations, which incorporate a number of key estimates and assumptions.

Employee benefits provision

The liability for employee benefits expected to be settled more than 12 months from the reporting date are recognised and 
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows to be made in respect of all employees at the reporting date. In 
determining the present value of the liability, estimates of attrition rates and pay increases through promotion and inflation have 
been taken into account.

Incremental borrowing rate

Where the interest rate implicit in a lease cannot be readily determined, an incremental borrowing rate is estimated to discount 
future lease payments to measure the present value of the lease liability at the lease commencement date. Such a rate is based on 
what the Association estimates it would have to pay a third party to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value 
to the right-of-use asset, with similar terms, security and economic environment.

Estimate of Useful Life of PPE

The incorporated association determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its 
property, plant and equipment and finite life intangible assets. The useful lives could change significantly as a result of technical 
innovations or some other event. The depreciation and amortisation charge will increase where the useful lives are less than 
previously estimated lives, or technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold will be written off or 
written down.
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Note 3: Revenue 
Note 2025 

$
2024 

$

AASB 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers

Development & Education 1,104,095 1,115,528 

Grants 11 296,095 477,770 

Lifeguard Services 2,066,561 1,957,530 

Lifesaving 166,094 54,174 

Member Services 518,328 507,333 

Surf Sports 170,128 142,194 

Other 15,000 15,000 

4,336,301 4,269,529

AASB 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers

Goods and services transferred at a point in time 1,779,645 1,640,229

Services transferred over time 2,556,656  2,629,300   

4,336,301 4,269,529

AASB 1058 – Income for Not for Profits

Development & Education 149,000  140,000   

Grants 11 5,990,688 5,819,357 

Lifesaving 80,000 75,000 

Helicopter Services 26,238 12,000 

Marketing 1,534,908 1,428,996 

Member Services 895,000 750,000 

8,675,834 8,225,353

Other revenue

Other 142,169 157,231

Bequests & Donations 426,981 702,779

Gain on Revaluation of Land and Buildings 43,660 -

Interest Received 460,030 374,376

1,072,840 1,234,386

Total Revenue 14,084,975 13,729,268
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 Note 4: Expenses
2025 

$
2024 

$

Surplus is stated after charging or crediting:

a) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation of right-of-use asset 990,250 983,365

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 461,494 451,526

1,451,744 1,434,891

b) Lifesaving Expenses

Salaries & Wages 2,778,257 2,612,005

Travel 110,667 105,690

Insurance 21,912 22,309

Club Support Services 804,695 686,682

Helicopter Services 490,918 501,335

Fuel & Oil 324,560 309,337

Repairs & Maintenance 188,909 147,659

Equipment 144,873 154,888

Other 133,855 190,321

4,998,646 4,730,226

c) Commercial Activity Expenses

Salaries & Wages 462,977 488,035

Travel 33,591 41,304

Insurance 302,128 286,833

Club Support Services 350,000 354,972

Computer Expenses 176,330 175,982

Venue Hire 91,872 82,594

Equipment 53,706 125,011

Other 619,600 604,261

2,090,204 2,158,992
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Note 5: Property, plant and equipment
2025 

$
2024 

$

Office Equipment:

At cost 414,502 396,837

Accumulated depreciation (376,297) (348,699)

38,205 48,138

Coastal Safety Equipment:

At cost 1,417,746 1,161,369

Accumulated depreciation (1,155,453) (1,000,469)

262,293 160,900

Surf Education Equipment:

At cost 8,971 8,971

Accumulated depreciation (8,815) (8,619)

156 352

Competition Equipment:

At cost 136,503 136,504

Accumulated depreciation (115,953) (110,011)

20,550 26,493

Motor Vehicles:

At cost 523,968 603,852

Accumulated depreciation (244,439) (236,584)

279,529 367,268

Land and Building (including Improvements) (a):

At Fair Value 11,250,000 10,750,000

Accumulated depreciation (163,994) (160,752)

11,086,006 10,589,248

Fixtures and Fittings:

At cost 275,022 275,022

Accumulated depreciation (135,426) (86,136)

139,596 188,886

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 11,826,335 11,381,285

(a)	 Balance determined to be the fair value of the State Centre Office at 7 Delawney Street, Balcatta, Western Australia and the 
Margaret River Property at 214-222 Railway Terrace. 

	 The Balcatta property was purchased on 7 May 2012 for $6,300,000. As at 30 April 2025, the Directors have assessed the fair 
value of the Land and Building to be $5,750,000 based on an independent valuation undertaken in June 2025. 

	 The Margaret River property was purchased on 6 April 2020 for $1,350,000 and had been accounting for at cost until the 
building came into use. During the year practical completion of the property was achieved, and an independent valuation 
was performed. The directors have assessed the fair value of land and buildings to be $5,500,000 based on an independent 
valuation undertaken in June 2025. 
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Note 5: Property, plant and equipment (Cont.)
a)	 Movements in carrying amounts

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment.

Office 
Equipment

Coastal 
Safety 

Equipment

Surf 
Education 

Equipment

Competition 
Equipment

Motor 
Vehicles

Land  
and 

Building

Fixtures and 
Fittings

Total

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Balance at 
30 April 2023 55,244 196,705 894 17,179 288,598 10,750,000 210,813 11,519,433

Additions 3,770 43,690 - 15,700 309,922 - 38,453 411,535

Disposals - - - - (98,157) - - (98,157)

Depreciation (10,876) (99,060) (542) (6,386) (113,530) (160,752) (60,380) (451,526)

Revaluation - - - - - - - -

Transfers - 19,565 - - (19,565) - - -

Balance at 
30 April 2024 48,138 160,900 352 26,493 367,268 10,589,248 188,886 11,381,285

Additions - 256,378 - - 239,514 - (49,289) 446,603

Disposals - - - - (239,977) - - (239,977)

Depreciation (9,933) (154,985) (196) (5,943) (87,277) (160,751) - (419,085)

Revaluation - - - - - 657,509 - 657,509

Transfers - - - - - - - - 

Balance at 
30 April 2025 38,205 262,293 156 20,550 279,528 11,086,006 139,597 11,826,335

 
Note 6: Trade and other payables

2025 
$

2024 
$

Trade and other payables 2,213,503 2,668,299

Grants received in advance 270,388 311,391

2,483,891 2,979,690

Unsatisfied performance obligations
The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are not satisfied at the end of the 
reporting period is $270,388 as at 30 April 2025 ($311,391 as at 30 April 2024) and is expected to be recognised as revenue in future 
period as follows:

Within 6 months - -

6 to 12 months 270,388 311,391

270,388 311,391

76 Section 03: FINANCIAL REPORT



Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2025

Note 7: Provisions
Annual  

Leave 
$

Long  
Service Leave 

$
Total 

$

Opening Balance at 1 May 2024 328,618 234,637 563,255

Net Movement in Provision 4,288 267,929 272,217

Balance at 30 April 2025 332,906 502,566 835,472

2025 
$

2024 
$

Analysis of Total Provisions

Current 749,516 474,925

Non-Current 85,956 88,330

835,472 563,255

Provision for Long Service Leave
A provision has been recognised for employee entitlements relating to long service leave. In calculating the present value of future cash 
flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service leave being taken is based on historical data. The measurement 
and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits have been included in Note 2 to this report.

Note 8: Reserves
General Reserve

The purpose of the reserve is to provide protection against any adverse effects on major revenue streams to ensure that the critical 
operational aspects of SLSWA can be provided. The reserve was reviewed prior to the end of the financial year and the Board 
considered that the amount of $500,000 to be appropriate. This policy is to be reviewed at the end of each financial year.

Note 9: Right of use asset
2025 

$
2024 

$

Helicopters

At Cost (a) 2,932,397 2,932,397

Accumulated Depreciation (2,932,397) (1,954,931)

- 977,466

Office Equipment

At Cost 39,500 39,500

Accumulated Depreciation (32,621) (26,716)

6,879 12,784

Total Right of Use Assets 6,879 990,250

The Association does not have any short term or low value leases that are expensed as incurred.
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Note 10: Lease liability
2025 

$
2024 

$

Current 7,552 1,032,985

Non-Current - 7,552

7,552 1,040,537

Future lease payments are due as follows:

Within one year 7,552 1,079,524

Two to five years - 7,552

Less: Future finance cost - (46,539)

7,552 1,040,537

Note 11: Grants
Total grants received and recognised as income during the year include the following:

Fire and Emergency Services Authority of Western Australia (Service Agreement) 1,470,571 1,522,273

SLSA Beach Safe 296,095 477,770

State Government 4,001,283 3,998,425

Department of Sports and Recreation 235,000 220,000

Lotterywest 283,834 80,653

Other - (1,994)

6,286,783 6,297,127

Note 12: Fair value measurement
The following tables detail the Association’s assets and liabilities, measured or disclosed at fair value, using a 

three-level hierarchy, based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the entire fair value measurement, 

being - Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the 
measurement date.  Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly.  Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Level 1 
$

Level 2 
$ 

Level 3 
$

Total 
$

2025

Assets

Land and Buildings - 11,250,000 - 11,250,000

Total Assets - 11,250,000 - 11,250,000

2024

Assets

Land and Buildings - 10,750,000 - 10,750,000

Total Assets - 10,750,000 - 10,750,000

There were no transfers between levels during the financial year.
Valuation techniques for fair value measurements categorised within Level 2

Land and buildings have been valued based on similar assets, location and market conditions.

78 Section 03: FINANCIAL REPORT



Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2025

Note 13: Events after the balance sheet date
There have been no events after the balance sheet date which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the 
Association.

Note 14: Cash flow information
2025 

$
2024 

$

Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with Surplus from Ordinary Activities

Surplus from ordinary activities 573,807 603,579

Non cash flows in profit from ordinary activities

 Depreciation and amortisation 1,451,744 1,434,891

 Net (gain) / loss on sale of assets (43,660) (20,480)

 Lease liability - interest 47,142 116,562

Changes in assets and liabilities:

 Decrease/(Increase) in receivables 918,055 (129,539)

 Increase/(Decrease) in trade creditors and other creditors (495,800) 346,312

 (Decrease)/Increase in provisions and employee entitlements 272,587 161,831

 (Increase)/Decrease in other assets 191,001 (183,637)

2,914,876 2,329,519

Non-cash investing and financing activities

Additions to the right-of-use assets - -

- -

Note 15: Financial Instruments
The Association’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Association’s 
overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse 
effects on the financial performance of the Association. 

The Association uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include sensitivity 
analysis in the case of interest rate and aging analysis for credit risk. The Association does not use derivative financial instruments 
(such as interest rate swaps) to hedge certain risk exposures. Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.

The Association holds the following financial instruments:

30 April 2025 
$

30 April 2024 
$

Cash and cash equivalents 11,125,008 9,502,514

Trade and other receivables 915,901 1,833,956

12,040,909 11,336,470

Trade and other payables 2,212,153 2,668,299

2,212,153 2,668,299
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Note 15: Financial Instruments (Cont.)
(i) Interest rate risk

The Association’s main interest rate risk arises from cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits held 
at call with bank that are at variable interest rates. Interest rate risks also arise from borrowings.

As at the reporting date, the Association had the following deposits at call with banks.

30 April 2025 30 April 2024

Weighted 
average 

interest rate
Balance 

$

Weighted 
average 

interest rate
Balance 

$

Cash and cash equivalents 4.26% 11,125,008 4.76% 9,502,514

Sensitivity analysis – interest rate risk

Sensitivity analysis has not been provided on the basis that such an analysis is not considered to be material.

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Association, which comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade and other 
receivables. The Association’s exposure to credit risk arises from potential default of the counter party, with a maximum exposure 
equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. 

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and on 30-day terms. A provision for impairment loss is recognised when there 
is objective evidence that an individual trade receivable is impaired. No impairment loss was recognised in respect of trade 
receivables in 2025 (2024: Nil).

At 30 April 2025, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

2025 
$

2024 
$

Current 550,882 1,730,806

Past due 30 – 60 days 96,131 97,269

Past due 60 – 90 days 265,120 1,050

Past due over 90 days 3,768 4,831

915,901 1,833,956

The Association trades with only recognised and creditworthy third parties and as such collateral is not requested nor is it the 
Association’s policy to securitise its trade and other receivables.

In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Association’s exposure to bad debts is 
not significant.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter party is a bank with a high credit rating.

(iii) Liquidity risk

The Association manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity 
profiles of financial assets and liabilities. 

The Association’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables that are paid on a 30-day period.

Note 16: Key management personnel remuneration
The total remuneration paid to key management personnel of the Association is $1,259,734 (2024: $1,090,376).

Note 17: Commitments
The association did not have any commitments at 30 April 2025 (30 April 2024: Nil.) 
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Note 18: Contingencies 
The Association did not have any contingencies at 30 April 2025 (30 April 2024: Nil).

Note 19: Related parties
(a) The Association’s related parties refers to the key management personnel (refer to Note 15).

	 Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Association, 
directly or indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) is considered key management personnel. 

(b) Transactions with related parties

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable than those available 
to other parties unless otherwise stated. Other than the remuneration of key management personnel, there are no transactions 
with related parties.

Note 20: Auditors’ remuneration
2025 

$
2024 

$

Audit services – Crowe Perth

- auditing the financial report 30,300 29,400

- auditing of grant acquittals 2,000 2,000

32,300 31,400

Non-Assurance services – Crowe Perth 3,000 3,000

3,000 3,000

Note 21: Association details
Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc is a Not-for-Profit incorporated association, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The 
registered office of the Association and principal place of business is:

Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc
7 Delawney Street
Balcatta WA 6021

81 SLSWA 2024/25 ANNUAL REPORT



DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors the financial report as set out on pages 64 to 81:

1.		 Presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc. as at 30 April 2025 and 
its performance for the year ended on that date in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-Profits Commission Act 2012 and the Associations Incorporation Act 2015;

2.	 At the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc. will 
be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due; and

3.	 The attached financial statements and notes comply with the Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory 
professional reporting requirements.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board and is signed for and on behalf of the Board by:

Heidi Gan OLY				    James O’Toole
President				    Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 26th day of August 2025
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AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SLSWA
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

 
 

Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd, trading as Crowe Australasia is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein. Each member firm of Crowe Global is a 
separate and independent legal entity. Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd and its affiliates are not responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe 
Global or any other member of Crowe Global. Crowe Global does not render any professional services and does not have an ownership or 
partnership interest in Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd. Services are provided by Crowe Perth, an affiliate of Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd. Liability limited by a 
scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. Liability limited other than for acts or omissions of financial services licensees.  
© 2025 Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd 

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
 
In accordance with the requirements of section 60-40 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Act 2012, as lead auditor for the audit of Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc. for the 
year ended 30 April 2025, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no 
contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Crowe Perth 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Richard Gregson 
Senior Partner 
 
Dated at Perth this 28 August 2025 
 

 
 

Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd, trading as Crowe Australasia is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein. Each member firm of Crowe Global is a 
separate and independent legal entity. Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd and its affiliates are not responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe 
Global or any other member of Crowe Global. Crowe Global does not render any professional services and does not have an ownership or 
partnership interest in Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd. Services are provided by Crowe Perth, an affiliate of Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd. Liability limited by a 
scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. Liability limited other than for acts or omissions of financial services licensees.  
© 2022 Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SURF LIFE SAVING WESTERN 
AUSTRALIA INC. 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Opinion  

We have audited the financial report of Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc (the Association), which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 April 2023, the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Association has been prepared in accordance 
with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the 
Associations Incorporation Act 2015, including:  
 
(a) giving a true and fair view of the Association’s financial position as at 30 April 2023 and of its 

financial performance for the year then ended; and  
(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and 

Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2012. 
 
Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)  (the Code) that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.  
 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report  

The Directors of the Association are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of the applicable legislation, 
including the requirements of Section 15(1) and 15(2) of the Charitable Collections Act (WA) 1946 
and Charitable Collections Regulations (WA) 1947 and for such internal control as the Directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the 
Association to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate 
the Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SURF LIFE SAVING WESTERN 
AUSTRALIA INC. 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Opinion  

We have audited the financial report of Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc (the Association), which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 April 2025, the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy 
information, and the directors’ declaration.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Association has been prepared in accordance 
with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the 
Associations Incorporation Act 2015, including:  
 
(a) giving a true and fair view of the Association’s financial position as at 30 April 2025 and of its 

financial performance for the year then ended; and  
(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and 

Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2012. 
 
Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.  
 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report  

The Directors of the Association are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
report in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of the applicable legislation, including the 
requirements of Section 15(1) and 15(2) of the Charitable Collections Act (WA) 1946 and Charitable 
Collections Regulations (WA) 1947 and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary 
to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the Association 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Association or 
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SURF LIFE SAVING WESTERN 
AUSTRALIA INC. 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Opinion  

We have audited the financial report of Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc (the Association), which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 April 2023, the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Association has been prepared in accordance 
with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the 
Associations Incorporation Act 2015, including:  
 
(a) giving a true and fair view of the Association’s financial position as at 30 April 2023 and of its 

financial performance for the year then ended; and  
(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and 

Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2012. 
 
Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)  (the Code) that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.  
 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report  

The Directors of the Association are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of the applicable legislation, 
including the requirements of Section 15(1) and 15(2) of the Charitable Collections Act (WA) 1946 
and Charitable Collections Regulations (WA) 1947 and for such internal control as the Directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the 
Association to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate 
the Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.  

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.  

 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
the preparation of the financial report. We also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events and conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the disclosures in the financial 
report about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion 
on the financial report. However, future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to 
continue as a going concern.  

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.  
 
We are also required to provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may be reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.   
 
  

 
 

Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd, trading as Crowe Australasia is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein. Each member firm of Crowe Global is a 
separate and independent legal entity. Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd and its affiliates are not responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe 
Global or any other member of Crowe Global. Crowe Global does not render any professional services and does not have an ownership or 
partnership interest in Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd. Services are provided by Crowe Perth, an affiliate of Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd. Liability limited by a 
scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. Liability limited other than for acts or omissions of financial services licensees.  
© 2022 Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SURF LIFE SAVING WESTERN 
AUSTRALIA INC. 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Opinion  

We have audited the financial report of Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc (the Association), which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 April 2023, the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Association has been prepared in accordance 
with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the 
Associations Incorporation Act 2015, including:  
 
(a) giving a true and fair view of the Association’s financial position as at 30 April 2023 and of its 

financial performance for the year then ended; and  
(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and 

Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2012. 
 
Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)  (the Code) that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.  
 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report  

The Directors of the Association are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of the applicable legislation, 
including the requirements of Section 15(1) and 15(2) of the Charitable Collections Act (WA) 1946 
and Charitable Collections Regulations (WA) 1947 and for such internal control as the Directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the 
Association to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate 
the Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
Opinion pursuant to the Charitable Collections Act (WA) 1946 and Charitable Collections 
Regulations (WA) 1947 
 
In our opinion, the Association has complied, in all material respects, with the requirements of the 
Charitable Collections Act (WA) 1946 and Charitable Collections Regulations (WA) 1947 for the year 
ended 30 April 2025. 
 
 
 
 
Crowe Perth 
 
 
 
 
 
Richard Gregson 
Senior Partner 
 
Dated at Perth this 28 August 2025 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SURF LIFE SAVING WESTERN 
AUSTRALIA INC. 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Opinion  

We have audited the financial report of Surf Life Saving Western Australia Inc (the Association), which 
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 April 2023, the statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies, and the directors’ declaration.  
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the Association has been prepared in accordance 
with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the 
Associations Incorporation Act 2015, including:  
 
(a) giving a true and fair view of the Association’s financial position as at 30 April 2023 and of its 

financial performance for the year then ended; and  
(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and 

Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2012. 
 
Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)  (the Code) that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.  
 

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report  

The Directors of the Association are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial report in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of the applicable legislation, 
including the requirements of Section 15(1) and 15(2) of the Charitable Collections Act (WA) 1946 
and Charitable Collections Regulations (WA) 1947 and for such internal control as the Directors 
determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the ability of the 
Association to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate 
the Association or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  
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